
CITY OF RJCHARDSON, TEXAS 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Prepared By: 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

Kent Pfeil - Director of Finance 

Patricia Loposer, CPA - Controller 

Anita Collins, CGFO 

Eddie Mueller, CPA 

Carolyn Kaplan, CPA 

Jean Chang, CPA 



I. Introductory Section 

Letter of Transmittal 
Principal Officials 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year ended September 30,2010 

Table of Contents 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
Organizational Chart 

II. Financial Section 

Independent Auditor's Report 

A. Management's Discussion and Analysis 

B. Basic Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Activities 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental 

Funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

C. Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
Schedules of Pension and Post-Employment Health Care Benefits Funding Progress 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Page 

1 
7 
8 
9 

10 

12 

22 
23 

24 

25 

26 

27 
29 
30 

32 

67 
68 
69 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year ended September 30, 201 0 

Table of Contents 

D. Combining Financial Statements 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Debt Service Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Police Funds 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - State Grant Funds 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Municipal Court Building Security Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Library Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Traffic Safety Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Federal Grant Funds 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Wireless 911 Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Judicial Efficiency Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Hotel-Motel Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Technology Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Tax Increment Financing 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Richardson Improvement Corporation 

Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

III. Statistical Section (Unaudited) 

Table 

1. Statement ofNet Assets by Component 
2. Changes in Net Assets 
3. Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
4. Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
5. Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
6. Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
7. Principal Property Tax Payers 
8. Property Tax Levies and Collections 
9. Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 
I 0. Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
11. Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

ii 

Page 

73 
75 
77 
78 
79 
80 
81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
87 
88 
89 

91 
92 
93 

95 
96 
98 
99 

101 
102 
103 
104 
105 
106 
107 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year ended September 30, 201 0 

Table of Contents 

12. Legal Debt Margin Information 
13. Pledged-Revenue Coverage 
14. Demographic and Economic Statistics 
15. Principal Employers 
16. Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 
17. Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
18. Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 

iii 

Page 

108 
109 
110 
111 
112 
113 
114 



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



February 3, 2011 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
and to the Citizens of the City of Richardson, Texas: 

City Council 
Gary A. Slagel 
Mayor 
Bob Townsend 
Mayor Pro Tem 
Mark Solomon 
.John Murphy 
Bob Macy 
Steve IU!tchell 
AmirOmar 

Bill Keffler 
City Manager 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Richardson (the "City"), for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2010, is hereby submitted as mandated by both local ordinances and state statutes. These ordinances 
and statutes require that the City issue an annual report on its fmancial position and activity, and that an independent 
firm of certified public accountants audit this report. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all 
disclosures, rests with management. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from Joss, theft or misuse and to 
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but 
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (I) the 
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits 
requires estimates and judgments by management. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. 

The City Council selected the firm of KPMG LLP, Certified Public Accountants to audit these financial statements. 
The independent auditor has issued an unqualified ("clean") opinion on the City's financial statements for the year 
ended September 30, 2010, and the auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Management provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in 
the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This Jetter of transmittal is designed to complement 
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the 
independent auditors' report. 

Profile of the Government 

The City is located in North Central Texas and was originally incorporated in 1925, with the first Charter being 
adopted in 1956 and the latest revision made on November 14, 2007. The City currently has a land area of 28.5 
square miles and an estimated population of 101,200. The City is a home rule city and operates under the Council­
Manager form of government. Every two years, Richardson voters simultaneously elect seven council members to 
represent them. All council members are elected at large, with four representing each of the City's four districts . The 
Mayor is selected from among the Council members by a vote of the Council. Terms of office for all Council 
positions are for two consecutive years. 

The Charter requires that the City Council appoint a City Manager to act as the chief administrative and executive 
officer of the City. The City Manager is not appointed for a fixed time and may be removed at the will and pleasure 
of the majority of the City Council. One of the responsibilities of the City Manager is to appoint and remove 
department heads and conduct the general affairs of the City in accordance with the policies of the City Council. 

.,...,._~\ r · ··r"(' . ., ...... . \ 1-, ¢ i .. (\. .':.1.1..1 ! ·~ 
r 1 j r" "l[ l · • r···· -... .. . . ~ ,:. , .• ·'-

P.O. Box 830309 
Richardson, 'IT 
75083-Q309 
972-7 44-4100 
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The City provides to it<; citizens a full range of services including police and fire protection, emergency ambulance 
service, water and sewer service, solid waste disposal, park and recreational activities, cultural events, and a library. 
In addition, the City provides planning for future land use, traffic control, building inspection, and neighborhood 
services and operates two eighteen-hole golf courses. The City also operates the Charles W. Eisemann Center for 
Perfonning Arts and Corporate Presentations, which is a multi-venue performing arts and presentation center. Certain 
parks and recreation services are performed by the Richardson Improvement Corporation, which functions, in 
essence, as a department of the City of Richardson and therefore has been included as an integral part of the City's 
financial statements. Additional information on this legally separate entity can be found in the notes to the fmancial 
statements (see Note I.A.) 

Activities of the general, debt service, water and sewer, golf, solid waste, and special revenue funds are included in 
the annual appropriated budget. The City Council is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within and among 
departments and ratifies, through the Budget Ordinance, any transfers and/or amendments made by the City Manager. 
The legal level of control for each budget is at the fund level, which is to say that total expenditures for each fund 
should not exceed total budgeted expenditures for that fund. 

Purchase orders that exceed appropriated balances are not released until they have been further reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or his representative. Departmental appropriations that have not been expended by the 
departments lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Funds that were budgeted and not used by the departments during the 
fiscal year are not available for their use unless appropriated in the budget of the ensuing fiscal year. 

The City maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. 
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities. The commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. The City amends the 
budget at the end of each fiscal year to provide for additional expenditures or expenses and also to provide reductions 
in other expenditures or expenses, or supplemental revenues to fund such amendments. 

Local Economy 

The City of Richardson, along with its Telecom Corridor area, is one of the major employment centers in the Dallas­
Fort Worth Metroplex, second only to the Central Business District in Dallas in the number of people employed. 
Richardson has historically been known for its concentration of technology-based businesses, but is becoming a 
center of economic diversity, with high-quality businesses in the financial services and insurance sectors as well, 
making the area attractive for companies of all backgrounds. Richardson has extensive resources in academia, a 
highly-skilled labor pool, transportation assets, infrastructure support, excellent lodging, and major corporate 
employers which will continue to prove beneficial in the recruitment of new businesses. 

Richardson and the region benefit from the location of two major highways in the City. The President George Bush 
Turnpike, running east-west along the northern border of the City, provides a convenient connection to the Dallas­
Fort Worth International Airport, as well as links to IH-35E, IH-30, SH-114, and SH-183 west of the City. 
Construction projects on the Turnpike will add links to IH-20 west of Richardson and a second link to IH-30 on the 
east. U.S. 75 runs north-south through the City, with access to the IH-635/U.S. 75 interchange (known as the High 
Five) just south of the City's borders. 

Texas Instruments announced plans to begin operations at its 1.1 million square foot semiconductor manufacturing 
facility, located at Renner Road and Alma Road in the northwest section of the City. The facility was completed in 
2006 in anticipation of future semiconductor demand requiring additional manufacturing capacity. The company 
began production of 300-mm analog wafer chips at the facility in September, 2010. The facility will employ 1,000 
jobs at full capacity. TI announced in the spring of 2010 that it would begin the second phase of adding 
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manufacturing equipment within the facility, giving the company the ability to generate $2 billion each year from the 
Richardson location and placing the plant at about 2/3 capacity. 

The University of Texas at Dallas ("UTD"), located within the City of Richardson, is in the middle of a campus-wide 
facility renovation. A new 400-bed Residence Hall opened in August 2009, and a 28,000 square-foot Dining Hall and 
expansion of the existing Student Union building was dedicated in September 2009. A Campus Landscape 
Enhancement, which added new landscaping, entry, and water features, was dedicated in September 2010 and 
featured more than 5,000 trees and native plants. A new 76,000 square-foot Student Services building and a new 
74,000 Science Learning Center were completed in the summer of2010. UTD also stands to benefit from the passage 
of state legislation and a constitutional amendment which establishes more than $680 million in funding for UTD and 
six other emerging research universities across the state of Texas. Funds will be made available to universities as they 
meet target criteria established by the legislation, and will be used to increase the number of Tier One universities in 
the state. Tier One status is one ofUTD's key strategic goals. 

Richardson Regional Medical Center became Methodist Richardson Medical Center as the Richardson Hospital 
Authority, the governing board of Richardson Regional signed a 20-year operating lease agreement with the 
Methodist Health System. Methodist will operate the Richardson location and lease its facilities and equipment while 
the Hospital Authority will maintain ownership of the hospital. The partnership with the Methodist Health System is 
expected to accelerate the expansion of the Bush/Renner satellite campus, which is currently home to a medical office 
building, outpatient hospital and a cancer center. Methodist Richardson Medical Center was named a Best Place to 
Work in the Large Category by the Dallas Business Journal in 2009. 

Richardson also benefits from the DART Light Rail line which parallels U.S. 75 and has four stations in the City. 
Complementing the rail line is an 896-acre Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District. The TIF District, established in 
2006, encompasses the U.S. 75 corridor from Campbell Road south to Spring Valley Road, and extends west from 
U.S. 75 to Coit Road along Spring Valley. Dallas County began financial participation in the TIF in Fiscal Year 
2010. The TIF District and the DART Light Rail line are key strategic elements in the City's redevelopment plans, 
and the City has begun to benefit from projects which are taking advantage of these assets: 

• In 2009, Dallas-based Parliament Group purchased a 220-acre tract of land south of the President George Bush 
Turnpike which borders the DART line on the west and has convenient access to the Bush Turnpike DART 
station. The Parliament Group is in the process of examining plans and options to maximize opportunities for 
transit-oriented development at the site. The deal was named a finalist in the Dallas Business Journal's Best 
Real Estate Deals of 2009. Work has begun on a planned development for the area in conjunction with 
neighboring undeveloped tracts of land. 

• The Leland Consulting Group, which specializes in developing economic revitalization plans for cities, has been 
retained by the City to prepare a comprehensive investment strategy for the West Spring Valley corridor, a 
section of the TIF between U.S. 75 and Coit Road. The corridor is comprised of aging and underperforming 
multi-family and commercial establishments and was identified in Richardson's recently adopted Comprehensive 
Plan as an area targeted for "Enhancement/Redevelopment." The goal of this investment strategy will be to 
ensure that the future use of financial resources in this area yields desirable and sustainable redevelopment. 
Phase I of the study was recently completed and Phase II of the study is anticipated to be completed in mid-2011. 
To facilitate development, the City Council passed a 90-day moratorium on commercial development in 
December 2010 for the West Spring Valley corridor. 

• Digital Realty Trust, in partnership with Skyrise Properties, announced plans for a $488 million redevelopment 
on a 70-acre section of Collins Technology Park, located at the southeast comer of East Collins Boulevard and 
Alma Road. The former technology equipment manufacturing campus will be converted to a data center park, 
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and the existing seven buildings will be upgraded to accommodate equipment for telecommunications and data 
processing. A key driver for the property is the onsite, privately-owned electric substation, which can provide 
large amounts of affordable electricity, needed for the computing equipment housed in data centers. Half of the 
first data center building is already leased and several Fortune 500 companies are evaluating the site for their data 
center needs. Texas Governor Rick Perry presided at the ribbon-cutting for Datacenter park on May 26, 2010. 
The deal was named a finalist in the Dallas Business Journal's Best Real Estate Deals of2009. 

• Champion Partners announced a multi-million dollar purchase of two buildings in the U.S. 75 corridor. The One 
Telecom Center and 2370 Performance Drive buildings, totaling more than half a million square feet of space, 
formerly housed telecom companies AT&T and Norte! Networks. Champion Partner Stephen Modory was 
quoted in a December 10, 2010 article in the Dallas Morning News entitled "Telecom Corridor's Revival" as 
saying "we believe that North Texas - and the Telecom Corridor - is going to benefit from the recovering 
economy." 

• BlueCross BlueShield of Texas announced in December 2006 that they would consolidate their DFW Metroplex 
operations into a new headquarters campus in the Galatyn Park Urban Center. Groundbreaking occurred in 
October 2007 on the 34-acre campus just north of the Charles W. Eisemann Center for the Performing Arts and 
Corporate Presentations and the facility was occupied in March, 2010. The $265 million, 1.1 million square foot 
complex is expected to house up to 3,900 employees at full capacity. The BlueCross facility is the largest office 
campus built in DFW since 1987. As part of the development, the City, in partnership with Collin County, built 
Routh Creek Parkway from Lookout Drive to Renner Road, which will enhance access to the new facility. 

• Galatyn Park Corporation, Galatyn Properties Limited, and Legacy Partners built The Venue, a transit-oriented 
residential project in the heart of the Galatyn Park Urban Center with direct access to the Galatyn Park DART 
station. The Venue is a $34 million development that includes 283 apartment units and approximately 7,000 
square feet of retail space. The Venue began leasing operations in the spring of 2008, and the project was 95% 
leased as of August, 2010. 

• In 2006, construction began on the Eastside development, a $90-million mixed-use project situated at the 
southeast comer of U.S. 75 and Campbell Road, between the Arapaho Center and Galatyn Park transit stations. 
Eastside, led by Fobare Commercial, Skyrise Properties, Greenway Investments, and Post Properties, includes 
approximately 86,000 square feet of retail and restaurant space, 19,000 square feet of new office space (in 
addition to 191,000 square feet of existing office space), and 436 apartment units, built around a two-acre park. 
The development was completed in 2009, and features a vertically mixed-use design, shared multi-function open 
space, and pedestrian-friendly streetscapes. In August, 2010, multi-family units at Eastside were 95% leased. 

• The City entered into an infrastructure, grant, and reimbursement agreement with Centennial Park, Ltd. in 
September 2007 for the construction of Brick Row, located on 30 acres adjacent to the DART Spring Valley 
transit station in the TIF District. The development replaces an aging 337-unit apartment complex and 18 single­
family dwellings with a mix of950 residential units (townhomes, apartments, and condominiums), 44,000 square 
feet of ground floor retail and a two-acre public park. The Floyd Branch drainage corridor, which bisects 
Centennial Park, has been enhanced to not only accommodate storm water protection, but to also serve as an 
amenity by incorporating trails that will connect with Richardson's city-wide trail network. Construction began 
in early 2009 on three mixed-use buildings, which includes 500 urban-style apartment family units and 16,764 
square feet of retail space. The infrastructure for 127 townhomes has been completed, model units have been 
constructed, and several townhomes have been purchased by home owners. 

TriQuint Semiconductor announced that it had increased its headcount in 2010 from 527 to over 700 at its 545,000 
square foot Richardson fab located at 500 West Renner Road. In addition to adding over 170 employees, the 
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company will invest $100 million in new equipment at the plant over the next five years and add capacity to print 
chips on six-inch wafers in addition to the four-inch wafers currently in use. 

Stream Data Centers completed a $35 million data center on Essex Drive, northeast of Renner Road and Shiloh Road. 
The 20,000 square foot "spec" facility will target corporate users looking for robust, secure space for their servers and 
other equipment. The building includes dual power feeds from separate substations and has access to multiple fiber 
optic service providers. 

Construction began in June on The Shire retail center's second phase at the southwest comer ofthe President George 
Bush Turnpike and the Shire Boulevard. The $10 million, 32,000 square foot development, will include an Ebby 
Halliday Realtors office and a restaurant in addition to other retail. 

Long-term Financial Planning 

The $15,403,047 unreserved fund balance in the general fund is the equivalent of 59.64 days of expenditures and 
transfers. On an annual basis, the City studies a five-year plan for evaluating tax rates and utility rates as they relate 
to debt financing for capital needs and the operating costs of providing services to citizens. 

Major Initiatives 

In June of 2010, the City issued $66 million in General Obligation Bonds which were approved by voters in a May 
2010 election. These bonds were designated for street improvements, parks and recreation improvements, 
construction and improvements to public buildings, and neighborhood vitality initiatives. Key features of the 2010 
bond sale include a new recreation center and pool at Heights Park, a new Gymnastics Center, a new Fire Station #4 
and a new Fire Training Center. Simultaneous to the General Obligation Bond sale, the City issued approximately 
$18.3 million in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation to meet the City's capital equipment needs 
and make improvements to the water and sewer system. 

Awards and Acknowledgments 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. This was the thirty-second year that the City has received this prestigious 
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a municipality must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report satisfied both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are 
submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated 
service of the accounting division. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions 
made in the preparation of this report. In addition, we would like to thank Dan Johnson, Deputy City Manager, and 
Keith Dagen, Assistant Director of Finance, for providing support and guidance. 
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Special thanks are extended to all members of the City Council for their leadership and support of sound fiscal 
management. 

Sincerely, 

~tt4Z~ 
Bill Ke~~ '-""'--

City Manager 

Kent Pfeil 
Director of Finance 

Patricia Loposer, CPA 
Controller 
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KPMG LLP 
Suite 3100 
717 North Harwood Street 
Dallas, TX 75201-6585 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager 
City of Richardson, Texas: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Richardson, Texas 
(the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 20 I 0, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
:misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting th~ 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities . the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 3, 2011 
on our consideration of the City' s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis, and the budgetary information and schedules of funding 
progress on pages 12 through 21 , pages 67, 77 through 89, and page 68, respectively, are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

KPMG LLP i~~" ~ Oal:;~warR limii_,..l liabi!itv p2rtnership, 
the U.S. mei'Tib•~r f,rm of KPMG lntcrnationBi Cuoperslivt! 
("KPMG lntemaiionar'), a Swiss entity. 



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectivdy 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining financial statements, 
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the;; 
basic financial statements. The combining financial statements and individual fund budgetary comparison 
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and, in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 

February 3, 201 1 
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Management's discussion and analysis provides a narrative overview of the financial activities and changes in 
the fmancial position of the City of Richardson, Texas (the City), for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. It 
is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial statements. Readers should use the 
information presented here in conjunction with additional information furnished in our letter of transmittal, 
which can be found on pages 1 through 6 of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at September 30,2010, by $202,621 ,409 (net assets). Of this 
amount, $12,538,247 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations 
to citizens and creditors. 

The City's total net assets decreased $3,351,286. The highli~':lts ofthis decrease can be found on pages 15 
and 16 of this report. 

• At September 30, 2010, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$115,593,894. Approximately 19.66% of this amount, $22,730,053 is available for spending at the 
government's discretion lunreserved fund balance). 

• .. A .. t the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund v;a:; $15~403,047, or 
16.34% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. 

• The City's total debt increased by approximately $57,606,000 (22.3%) during the current fiscal year. The 
highlights of this increase can be found on page 20 of this report. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The 
reporting focus is on the City as a whole and on individual major funds. It is intended to present a more 
comprehensive view of the City's financial activities. 

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required 
supplementary information and other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of 
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the City's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Both are prepared using the 
economic resources focus and the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that all the current year's revenues and 
expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital 
assets and long-term obligations. The difference between the two is reported as net assets. Over time, the 
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. Other indicators of the City's financial position should be taken into consideration, 
such as the change in the City's property tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure (i.e., roads, drainage 
systems, water and sewer lines, etc.), in order to more accurately assess the overall financial condition of the 
City. 

12 (Continued) 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 20 I 0 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. It focuses on both the gross and net costs of the government's various activities and thus 
summarizes the cost of providing specific government services. This statement includes all current year revenues 
and expenses. 

The Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of Activities divide the City's activities into two types: 

Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general government, 
police and fire protection, emergency ambulance service, planning for future land use, traffic control, building 
inspection, public health, neighborhood integrity, park and recreational activities, cultural events, and library. 
Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the majority of the financing for these activities. 

Business-Type Activities - Activities for which the City charges a fee to customers to pay most or all of the costs 
of a service it provides are reported here. The City's business-type activities include water distribution and 
wastewater collection, solid waste collection and disposal, and the municipal golf course. 

Fund Financial Statements. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts 
that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segiegated for specific activities or objectives. 
These statements focus on the most significant funds and may be used to find more detailed information about 
the City's most significant activities. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the majority of the City's activities, which are 
essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

The focus of the governmental funds financial statements is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements. Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the 
governmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison. These reconciliations explain the 
differences between the government's activities as reported in the government-wide statements and the 
information presented in the governmental funds financial statements. 

The City maintains 15 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental 
funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Fund, all of which are considered to be 
major funds. Data for the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining 
statements elsewhere in this report. 
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Proprietary Funds. When the City charges customers for services it provides, the activities are generally reported 
in proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal 
service funds. 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type acttvtttes in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer 
operations, solid waste collection and disposal services, and the operations of the municipal golf course, all of 
which are considered to be major funds. These services are primarily provided to outside, or nongovernmental, 
customers. 

Internal service funds arc an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's 
Yarious functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its warehouse, mail and records 
management operations, and for its employee health insurance program. Because these services predominantly 
benefit governmental-type functions rather than business-type functions, they have been included within 
governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the 
water and sewer operations, solid waste collection and disposal and the golf course operations. Both internal 
service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. 
Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in 
this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to gain a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the City adopts an 
annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the 
General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and 
healthcare benefits to its employees and retirees. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal 
service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and 
health care. · 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Total assets of the City at September 30, 2010 were $574,261,737, while total liabilities were $371,640,328 
resulting in a net asset balance of $202,621,409. 
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The largest portion of the City's net assets, $165,565.815 (81.71 %) reflects its investment in capital assets (land 
and improvements, buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding 
debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City reports its capital assets net of related debt, 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Table 1 

Net Assets 

Governmental activities Business-!Xpe activities Total 
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

(In thousands) 

Current and other assets $ 133,137 $ 75,279 $ 40,383 $ 34,489 $ 173,520 $ 109,768 
Capital assets 293.51" 288,682 107.225 107,493 400,742 396,175 

Total assets 426,654 363,961 147,608 141.982 574,262 505,943 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 268,507 223,622 63,975 59,680 332.482 283,302 
Other liabilities 29,606 10,919 9,552 5,750 39.158 16.669 

Total liabilities 298,113 234,541 73,527 65,430 371,640 299,971 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related 

_debt 112,015 105,653 53,551 55.054 165,566 160,707 
Restricted 22,180 22,864 2,338 3,873 24.:-18 26,737 
Unrestricted (5.654) 903 18,192 17,625 12,538 18.528 

Total net assets $ 128541 $ 129.420 $ 74.081 $ 76,552 $ 202.622 $ 205.972 

An additional portion of the City's net assets, $24,517,347 (12.1%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $12,538,247 
(6.19%) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net 
assets. 

Governmental Activities: Net assets decreased $879,695 in fiscal year 2010. Key revenue and expense 
transactions for the year are as follows: 

• Total governmental revenues increased approximately $2,330,000 over the prior year. 

• Property tax revenues increased approximately $531,000. The City's tax rate remained at $0.57516 and the 
taxable assessed value at year end had increased approximately 1.1% when compared to the prior year end. 

• Actual sales tax revenue collections for fiscal year 2010 were approximately $4,153,000 higher than fiscal 
year 2009. The majority of this increase is related to State Comptroller audit adjustment transactions that 
effected both fiscal year 2010 and 2009. 
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• Interest earnings declined by approximately $1,965,000. The City's aYerage yield on the total portfolio for 
fiscal year 2010 was 0.35% and 2.10% for fiscal year 2009. 

• Total expenses for fiscal year 2010 decreased by approximately ·$533,000 (0.42%)when compared to 
fiscal year 2009. 

Business-Type Activities: Business type activities decreased net assets by $2,4 71,591. Key elements to the 
change in net assets are as follows : 

• Water and sewer revenues for the current fiscal year were slightly lower (0.72%) than last year. Current 
year expense for the purchase of water increased 7.6% compared to last year. Total operating expenses 
were higher by 1.3%. 

• Solid waste revenues were flat compared to the previous year. Operating expenses for the current year 
were 2.9% higher than in 2009. 

• Golf course revenue for the year was down approximately 25% compared to fiscal year 2009. Weather 
related conditions as well as course conditions impacted the number of rounds played this year which 
resulted in a significant loss in revenues. Operating expenses for the year were 1.4% higher than fiscal year 
2009. 
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Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 
Op.orating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise fees 
Mixed beY. & bingo tax 
HoteUmotel taxes 
Interest earnings 
Gmn on sale of assets 

Tr.msiers in!( out) 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public services 
Library 
Parks and recreation 
Public health 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Water and sewer 
Solid waste 
Golf 

Total expenses 

Decrease in net assets 

Net assets - October I 

Net assets - September 30 $ 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2010 

Table 2 

Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental activities Business-type activities 
2010 2009 2010 2009 

(In thousands) 

17.204 $ 17,342 $ 56,617 $ 57,423 
642 369 

10,144 10,059 1,228 872 

58,105 57,574 
24.967 20,814 
12,275 12,206 

392 401 
2,713 2.585 

333 2,298 73 294 
13 134 90 730 

(695) (19) 695 19 

126,093 123,763 58,703 59,338 

27,767 27,784 
44,318 43,610 
26,652 27,070 

4,099 4,224 
14,507 1'3,658 

1,460 1,582 
8,169 9,577 

46,168 45,745 
12,712 12,326 
2,294 2,402 

126,972 127,505 61,174 60.473 

(879) (3,742) (2,471) (1,135) 

129,420 133,162 76,552 77.687 

128,541 $ 129,420 $ 74,081 $ 76,552 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Total 
2010 2009 

$ 73,821 $ 74,765 
642 369 

11,372 10,931 

58,105 57,574 
24,967 20,814 
12,275 12,206 

392 401 
2,713 2,585 

406 2,592 
103 864 

184,796 183,101 

27,767 27,784 
44,318 43,610 
26,652 27,070 

4,099 4,224 
14,507 13,658 

1,460 1,582 
8,169 9,577 

46,168 45,745 
12,712 12,326 
2,294 2,402 

188,146 187.978 

(3,350) (4,877) 

205,972 210,849 

$ 202,622 $ 205,972 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$115,593,894. Approximately 19.66%, or $22,730,053, constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available 
for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been committed to pay for inventory, prepaid items, and 
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encumbrances $11,247,827, debt service $1,603,602, and for capital equipment purchases and capital 
improvements $80,012,412. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund 
balance of the General Fund was $15,403,047. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both the unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. 
Unreserved fund balance represents 16.34% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out, while total 
fund balance represents 17.11% of total General fun.d expenditures and transfers out. The General Fund's fund 
balance increased $289,373 this fiscal year. 

The Debt Service Fund has a fund balance of $1,603,602, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt. The 
City's financial policy is to maintain an ending fund balance each year of 30 days of expenditures in the Debt 
Service Fund. The fund balance in the Capital Fund ended the year at $94,560,534, of which $80,012,412 is 
reserved for future capital equipment purchases and construction projects, $10,122,931 is reserved for 
construction commitments, and $4,425,191 is unreserved. The fund balance increased by $57,388,923 primarily 
due to issuance of the 2010 General Obligation Bonds described below. The Other Governmental Funds fund 
balance decreased by $514,465. 

Proprietary Funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets in the Water and Sewer Fund, the Solid Waste Fund, and the Golf Fund at the end of the 
year amounted to $13,972,852, $4,128,098, and $(276,214), respectively. Total net assets in the Water and Sewer 
Fund decreased $2,060,861, total net assets in the Solid Waste Fund decreased by $40 1, 922, and total net assets 
in the GolfFund decreased by $68,015. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

General Fund revenues were projected to be $92,678,801 or 0.7% higher than estimated year-end revenues for 
fiscal year 2009. Property tax and sales and other business tax revenues make up 64.1% of General Fund 
revenues. Based on the increase in assessed property values, property tax revenue for fiscal year 20 10 was 
budgeted 0.5% higher than the previous year. This marked the fifth year of positive tax base growth for the City. 
Sales and other business tax revenues were originally budgeted to be 5.6% lower for 2010. Actual sales tax 
collections were approximately $4,153,000 more than fiscal year 2009. Total expenditures and transfers for the 
2009-2010 budget year totaled $92,678,801. This is a decrease of 1.4% over last year and is primarily 
attributable to the maintenance and supplies categories. Budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2010 were revised 
from $92,678,801 to $93,888,244, an increase of $1,209,443 or 1.3%. Total budgeted expenditures and transfers 
were revised from $92,678,801 to $93,873,265, an increase of$1,194,464. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
September 30, 2010 amounts to $400,742,093 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and 
construction in progress. The total increase in the City's inYestment in capital assets for the current fiscal year 
was 1.15%, with governmental activities increasing 1.68% and business-type activities decreasing 0.25%. 
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• The City completed construction of the Huffhines Recreation Center for a cost of approximately 
$7.4 million. In addition, other major park improvements were completed which included over $8 million 
for ball field construction projects located at Hufihines and Breckinridge Parks. 

• Numerous street and paving projects, sidewalk and alley repairs, in addition to neighborhood vitality 
projects totaling over $10 million were completed this year. 

• The City added a number of fleet vehicles including a heavy duty aerial quint fire truck, an ambulance, 
police pursuit automobiles, and three dump trucks at an approximate cost of $1.7 million. 

• Machinery and equipment purchases for fiscal year 2010 included a new telephone system, medical 
emergency response equipment, and various mowers and tractors. 

The Water and Sewer Fund completed $5.7 million in projects which extended and improved the City's Water 
and Sewer system. In addition, equipment and fleet vehicles were purchased for approximately $490,000. 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total 

Table3 

Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation 

Governmental activities Business-type activities 
2010 2009 2010 2009 

(In thousands) 

$ 44,932 $ 44.209 $ 543 $ 543 
67,917 63,456 3,807 3,641 
27,141 17,630 5,200 5,809 

128,313 126,903 88,144 87,326 
12,778 11,431 5,521 5,562 
12,436 25,052 4.010 4.612 

293,517 
$===== 

$ 288,681 $ 107,225 $ 107,493 

Total 
2010 2009 

$ 45,475 $ 44,752 
71.724 67,097 
32,341 23,439 

216,457 214,229 
18,299 16,993 
16,446 29,664 

$ 400.742 $ 396,174 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 3(d). on pages 46 through 48 of this 
report. 
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Long-Term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Richardson had total bonded debt outstanding 
of $308,325,000. Of this amount, $244,561,083 represents tax-supported bonds, $63,763,917 represents 

-self-supported bonds. The other obligations of $8,105,379 in the governmental activities relates to notes payable 
for computer and telephone equipment, a police training facility, economic grants, and other contractual 
obligations. The other obligations of $62,487 in the business-type activities relates to the financing and purchase 
of computer equipment. 

Table4 

Outstanding Debt 

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total 
ii!to ioo9 2010 :zoo§ iOIO 2009 

(In thousands) 

General obligation bonds $ 221,126 $ 154,899 $ 15.059 $ 7,011 s 236,185 $ 161,910 
Certificates of obligation 23,435 34,835 48,705 49,840 72,140 84,675 
Other obligations 8,105 12,178 62 123 8,167 12.301 

s 252,666 $ 201,912 s 63,826 s 56,974 s 316,492 s 258,886 

In June 2010, the City issued $81,445,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds. Proceeds 
from the sale of the Bonds were used to pay for permanent public improvements based on an election held in the 
City on May 8, 2010 and refund $22,310,000 in outstanding debt for debt service savings. In addition, the City 
was able to recognize debt service savings by issuing $6,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Taxable Bonds 
and using the proceeds to refund $6,005,000 of existing taxable bonds. Combination Tax and Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation were issued in the amount of $18,305,000 to pay for the purchase of vehicles and 
equipment for various departments throughout the City, the purchase and installation of an emergency 
communications system, for acquiring, constructing, and improving municipal buildings and facilities, and for 
improving the City's water and sewer system. The City entered into an agreement to finance telephone 
equipment and software in the amount of $979,828. In addition, the City entered into an agreement to purchase 
land and right-of-way at a cost of $143,882. The City made principal payments of approximately $16,592,000. 
The City's total long-term obligations resulted in an overall increase of approximately $57,606,000. 

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services assigned its 'AAA' rating, with a stable outlook, to the City's Series 2010 
General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2010A Taxable General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, and Series 2010 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation. At the same time, Standard & 
Poor's affirmed its 'AAA' long-term rating and underlying rating on the City's existing General Obligation debt. 
Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) assigned an 'Aaa' rating for the City's Series 2010 General Obligation 
Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 201 OA Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, and 
Series 2010 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation. In conjunction with this assignment, 
Moody's has affirmed the 'Aaa' rating on outstanding general obligation debt. The City is permitted by 
Article XI, Section 5, of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation 
for general governmental services including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation long-term 
debt. The current ratio of tax-supported debt to the assessed value of all taxable property is 2.49%. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in notes 3(h) and 3(i) on pages 50 through 59 
of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

General Fund revenues and transfers-in for the 20 I 0-2011 budget are expected to increase by 0.38% compared to 
the fiscal year 2009-2010 revised budget. Expenditures and transfers for the General Fund are budgeted 0.33% 
higher than expenditures and transfers-out in the revised budget for fiscal year 2009-2010. The majority of this 
increase is reflected in personal services. Overall, the General Fund is expected to end fiscal year 2010-2011 in 
compliance with the City's financial policy by maintaining a fund balance equal to 60.28 days of operating 
expenditures. 

Key Highlights of the 2010~2011 Budget Include: 

• A $0.06 property tax rate increase to fund the $66 million bond program approved by voters in May 2010 
was authorized. 

• A 1.8% reduction in overall property values has been factored in based on the 20 I 0 certified tax roll. 

• A 3% increase in base sales tax is projected. 

• No increase in water and sewer rates was included. 

• No increase in commercial or residential solid waste rates was included. 

• No increase in golf rates was included. 

• Revisions to the City's Texas Municipal Retirement System have been implemented to ensure the fiscal 
sustainability of this benefit. 

• Funding for employee step pay plan merit increases has been included for 2011. 

• Continuing the commitment of $0.01 of the tax rate to the street rehabilitation program was approved. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances. Questions regarding any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Office of the Finance Director, P. 0. Box 830309, Richardson, Texas 75083-0309 . 
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Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

Assets: 
Cash and investments $ 119,553,430 $ 10,638,508 $ 130,191,938 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 10,565,080 6,746,681 17,311,761 
Inventory of supplies, at cost 545,577 106,460 652,037 
Prepaid items 179,506 469 179,975 
Deposits 117,500 117,500 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and investments 21,780,929 21,780,929 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectib1es) 14,821 14,821 

Internal balances (367,271) 367,271 
Capital assets: 

Nondepreciable 57,367,853 4,552,429 61,920,282 
Depreciable (net) 236,149,446 102,672,365 338,821,811 

Deferred charges 2,542,666 728,017 3,270,683 

Total assets 426,653,787 147,607,950 574,261,737 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 4,339,008 1,820,612 6,159,620 
Retainage payable 618,417 618,417 
Accrued liabilities 178,789 156,996 335,785 
Accrued interest 2,664,196 435,037 3,099,233 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Accounts payable 419,425 419,425 
Retainage payable 65,223 65,223 
Customer deposits 2,390,188 2,390,188 
Accrued liabilities 14,888 14,888 

Unearned revenue 3,671,680 3,671,680 
Money held in escrow 356,731 356,731 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year: 
Bonds, leases, and contractual obligations 15,572,559 4,024,994 19,597,553 
Compensated absences 1,051,148 153,792 1,204,940 
Arbitrage rebate liability 242,506 242,506 
Workers' compensation 210,780 71,342 282,122 
Unpaid claims liability 700,000 700,000 

Due in more than one year: 
Bonds, leases, and contractual obligations 246,060,364 60,500,209 306,560,573 
Arbitrage rebate liability 26,792 26,792 
Post employment benefits 14,736,330 2,319,855 17,056,185 
Compensated absences 7,710,657 1,127,810 8,838,467 

Total liabilities 298,113,165 73,527,163 371,640,328 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 112,014,795 53,551,020 165,565,815 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 18,883,007 1,803,245 20,686,252 
Debt service 534,515 534,515 
Public safety 1,335,947 1,335,947 
Special purposes 1,960,633 1,960,633 

Unrestricted (5,653, 760) 18,192,007 12,538,247 

Total net assets $ 128,540,622 $ 74,080,787 $ 202,621,409 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Program revenues Net ~exl!ensel revenue and changes in net assets 
Operating Capital 

Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Business-type 
Exl!enses services contributions contributions activities activities Total 

Functions/programs: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 27,766,869 $ 3,110,916 $ 218,842 $ 63 ,461 $ (24,3;73,650) $ $ (24,373,650) 
Public safety 44,317,660 8,398,383 301,919 533,749 (35,083,609) (35,083,609) 
Public services 26,651,979 1,956,461 8,606,588 (16,088,930) ( 16,088,930) 
Library 4,099,175 183,636 37,081 20,852 (3,857 ,606) (3,857 ,606) 
Parks and recreation 14,507,394 3,290,850 47,500 918,902 (10,250,142) (10,250,142) 
Public health 1,460,038 263,624 37,066 (1,159,348) (1 ,159,348) 
Interest and fiscal charges 8,169,070 (8,169,070~ ~8,169,070~ 

Total governmental activities 126,972,185 17,203,870 642,408 101143,552 !98,982,355l (98,982,355~ 

Business-type actiYities: 
Water and Sewer 46,168,370 42,807,084 1,228,131 (2,133,155) (2,133,155) 
Solid Waste 12,711,630 12,273,982 (437,648) (437,648) 
Golf 2,294,425 1,535,859 {758,566) p58,566) 

N w 
Total business-type activities 61,174,425 56,616,925 1,228,131 (3,329,369) (3,329,369) 

Total $ 188,146,610 $ 73,820,795 $ 642,408 $ 11,371,683 (98,982,355) (3,329,369) (102,311,724) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 58,104,525 58,104,525 
Sales taxes 24,967,161 24,967,161 
Franchise fees 12,274,990 12,274,990 
Mixed beverage and bingo tax 391,823 391 ,823 
Hotel/motel taxes 2,712,966 2,712,966 
Unrestricted interest earnings 332,401 73,343 405,744 
Gain on sale of assets 13,471 89,758 103,229 

Transfers in (out) ~694,677l 694,677 

Total general revenues 98,102,660 857,778 98,960,438 

Changes in net assets (879,695) (2,471,591) (3,351 ,286) 

Net assets-beginning 129,420,317 76,552,378 205,972,695 

Net assets-ending $ 128,540,622 $ 74,080,787 $ 202,621,409 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds 

September 3 0, 20 I 0 

Other 
Governmental 

General Debt service Cal!ital Fund Funds Total 

Assets: 
Cash and investments 13,762,847 $ 2,105,593 $ 96,456,871 $ 3,940,052 $ I 16,265,363 
Receivables (net of allowances for 

uncollectibles of $2,563,602): 
Taxes-Ad Valorem 1,029,303 1,029,303 
Taxes-sales 1,764,762 1,764.762 
Taxes-hotcl'motel 411 ,758 411,758 
Trade accounts 2,715,610 459,944 3,175,554 
Interest 49,202 442,471 491,673 
Intergovernmental 1,184 3,259,246 127.068 3,387,498 
Other 12.564 34,191 46,755 

Due from Other Funds 88,005 88,005 
Inventory of supplies, at cost 330,854 330,854 
Prepaid items 86,176 91,479 I 77,655 
Deposits 117,500 I 17,500 

T ota! assets $ 19,945.443 s 2,118.157 $ 100,192,779 $ 5,030.301 $ 127,286,680 

Liabilities and fund balances: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 1,920,358 $ $ 1,419,790 $ 694,724 $ 4,034,872 
Developer's participation payable 107,1l98 107,898 
Retainage payable 2,274 588,935 27,208 618,417 
Accrued liabilities 106,596 72,193 178,789 
Accrued interest 514,555 514,555 
Oue to Other Funds 88,005 88,005 
Deferred revenue 1,783 ,037 3,221 ,633 788,849 5,793,519 
Money held in escrow 293,989 62.742 . 356,731 

Total liabilities 3,812,265 514,555 5,632,245 1,733,721 11.692,7H6 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for inventory 330,854 330,854 
Reserved for prepaid items 86,176 91 ,479 177,655 
Reserved for encumbrances 313,101 10,122,931 303.286 10,739,318 
Reserved for debt service 1,603,602 1,603,602 
Resen.ed for capital projects 80,012,412 80,012,412 
Unreserved, reported in General fund 15,403,047 15,403,047 
Special revenue funds 2,901,815 2,901 ,815 
Capital fund 4,425 ,191 4,425, 191 

Total fund balances 16, 133,178 1,603,602 94,560,534 3,296.580 I 15,593,894 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 19.945.443 $ 2.118.157 $ I 00.192.779 $ 5.030,301 

Amounts reported tor governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefor.:, are not reported in the funds. 293,460,250 
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds . 2,121 ,839 
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of central services and insurance to individual funds. 
A portion of the assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the 

Statement of Net Assets. 2,366,681 
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, accrued interest, and related deferred charges, are not due and payable 

in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (see note 2(a)) (285,002,042) 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 128,540,622 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -Gov.m~mental Funds 

Y ~ar ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Other 
Governmental 

General Debt service CaJ!ital Fund Funds Total 

Revenues: 
General property taxes $ 36,792,431 $ 21,029,516 $ $ 263,052 $ 58,084,999 
Franchise fees 12,274,990 12,274,990 
Sales tax 24,967,161 24,967,161 
Mixed beverage and bingo tax 391,823 391.823 
HoteJimotel taxes 2,712,966 2,712,966 
911 revenue 1,079,142 442,342 1,521,484 
lntergo\ emmental revenue .43,039 3,942,439 960,030 4,945,508 
Licenses and permits 1,465,813 1,465,813 
Fines and forfeitures 3,891,149 1,691,701 5,582,850 
Interest icvcnuc 10(),356 10,093 197,500 10,044 326,993 
Civic center use 328,504 328,504 
Eisemann center revenue 2,142,769 2,142,769 
Recreation and leisure 3,275,010 3,275,010 
Rents 20,976 20.976 
Public safety 1,818,803 1,818,803 
Contributions 22,948 172,132 97,860 292,940 
Participation 170,954 170,954 
Other revenue 644,290 181,842 59,698 885,830 
General administration 6.745,132 6,745,132 

Total revenues 93,870.567 21,039.609 4.664,867 8,380.462 127.955,505 

Expenditures: 
General government 23.625,923 248,371 4,484,092 28,358,386 
Public safety 36,200,308 150,984 1,841,336 38,192,628 
Public services 14,668,740 3,944,010 18,612,750 
Library 3,155,563 282,646 89,247 3,527,456 
Parks and recreation 10,330,345 727,5R9 123,371 11,181,305 
Public health 1,271,740 3,566 22,740 1,298,046 
General administration 75,000 480.000 555,000 
Capital out! ay 206,011 19,475,755 1,251,878 20,933,644 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 12,547,775 12,547,775 
Interest and fiscal charges 27,214 9,029,376 6,710 9,063,300 
Payments for other obligations 560,562 273,956 393,290 1,227,808 
Issuance costs 195,307 645,238 840,545 

Total expenditures 90,046,406 22,046,414 25,953,159 8,292,664 146,338,643 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 3,824,161 ( 1 ,006,805) (21 ,288,292) 87.798 (18,383,138) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 481,383 455,000 3,454,132 129.297 4,519,812 
Transfers out (4,221,361) (248,974) (744,154) (5,214,489) 
Issuance of certificates of obligation 7,520,000 7,520,000 
Issuance of general obligation bonds 60,665,000 60,665,000 
Issuance of refunding bonds 18,440,000 18,440,000 
Issuance of other obligations 1,123,710 1,123,710 
Premium/discount on bonds 1,269,620 6,108,231 7,377,851 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ( 19,501 ,560) (19 ,501 ,560) 
Insurance recoveries 72,609 55,116 127,725 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 132,581 12.594 145,175 

Total other financing sources (uses) (3.534,788) 663,060 78,677.215 (602,263) 75.203,224 

Net change in fund balances 289,373 (343,745) 57,388,923 (514,465) 56,820,086 

Fund balances - October I 15,843,805 1,947,347 37,171,611 3,811,045 58,773,808 

Fund balances - September 30 $ 16,133,178 $ 1,603,602 $ 94,560,534 $ 3,296,580 $ 115,593,894 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current 
period. (note 2(b)). 

The net effect of the sales of capital assets decreased net assets. 
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 
The issuance of long-term debt provides current fmancial resources to 

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current fmancial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when 
debt is originally issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in 
the statement of activities . .This amount is the net effect of these differences 
in the treatment oflong-term debt and related items. (note 2(b)) 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current fmancial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. (note :!(b)) 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of central 
services and insurance to individual funds. The net expense of certain activities 
of the Internal Service Funds is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 

September 30. 20 I 0 

Business-T~J!e Activities-Ente!:J!rise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities-
Water and Solid Internal 

Assets Sewer Fund Waste Fund Golf Fund Total Service Funds 

Cash and investments $ 8,172,940 $ 2,256,750 $ 208.818 $ 10.63!;,508 $ 3.288,067 
Receh:ables (net of allowances): 

Trade accounts 5,252,352 1.051.058 27,004 6,330,414 
Other 74.226 332.441 406,667 257.777 
lntergovennental Receivable 2,000 4,000 6.000 
Interest 3,600 3,600 

Inventory of supplies, at cost 76,003 30,457 106,460 214,723 
Prepaid items 11~ 352 469 1,851 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and investments 16,860,945 4,865,935 54,049 21,780,929 
Interest receivable 900 900 
Other receivable 8,819 3.048 2,054 13,921 

Total current assets 30,451.902 8,544,041 291,925 39,287,868 3.762.418 

Capita! assets: 
Land 357,950 65,560 119,329 542.839 56,011 
Improvements 37,371 9,066,719 9,104,090 23,023 
Buildings 7,698,645 791 641 8,490.286 :!59,990 
Water and Sewer S}stem 177,996.579 177,996,579 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 15,369.327 9,246,563 1,030.338 25,646,228 268,859 

Total capital assets 201,422,501 9,349,494 11.008,027 221,780,022 607,883 

Less accumulated depreciation (1 07,180,395) (6,276,607) (5,107,816) ( 118,564,818) (550,834) 
Constn1ction in progress 3.990,522 !9,068 4,009,590 

Net capital assets 98.232,628 3,091,955 5,900,211 107,224,794 57,049 

Deferred charges 616,644 67.366 44,007 728,017 

Total noncurrent assets 98,849,272 3,159,321 5.944,218 I 07,952,811 57.049 

Total assets $ 129.301.174 $ 11,703.362 $ 6.236.143 $ 147,240,679 $ 3,819,467 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 

September 30, 20 I 0 

Business-Tv!!e Activities-Ente!]!rise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities-
Water and Solid Internal 

Liabilities and Net Assets Sewer Fund Waste Fund Golf Fund Total Service Funds 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 1,748,308 $ 51,652 $ 20,652 $ 1.820,612 $ 196,238 
Accrued liabilities 116,282 40,714 156,996 
Accrued interest 332,057 44.406 58,574 435,037 
Unpaid claims liabilities "'00,000 
Current maturities of bonds, leases and 

contractual obligations 2,841.449 804,208 379.337 4,024,994 
Compensated absences 97,833 42,865 13,094 153,792 3,435 
Workers' compensation liability 512 70,398 432 71,342 
Current liabilities payabie from restricted assets : 

Accounts payable 355.114 64,311 419,425 
Retainagc payable 65,223 65,223 
Deposits 2,390,188 2,390. I 88 
Accrued liabilities 14.888 14,888 

Total currentliabiiities 7,96i,854 J.lll!,554 472,089 9.552,497 899,673 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds. leases and contractual obligations 49,558.434 6,222,216 4,719,559 60,500.209 
Arbitrage rebate liability 26.792 26,792 
Post-employment benefits 1,222,374 730,21\J 367,271 2,319,855 158,403 
Compensated absences 717,445 314,345 96.020 1,127.810 27,439 

Total noncurrent liabilities 51,525,045 7.266,771 5,182.850 63.974,666 185.842 

Total Eabiliti~s 59.486.899 8,335~325 5,654.939 73527J63 1,085,515 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 53,634.438 (884,733) 801,315 53,551,020 57,049 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 1,802,365 880 1,803,245 
Debt service 404.620 73.792 56,103 534,515 

Unrestricted 13 ,972,852 4.128.098 (276.214) 17,824.736 2,676,903 

Total net assets $ 69,814.275 $ 3.318,03':' $ 581,204 73,713.516 $ 2,733,952 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds 367.271 

Net assets of business-type activities $ 74.080.787 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assel<; - Proprietary Funds 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Business-TvJ:!e Activities-Enter(!rise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities-
Water and Solid Internal 

Sewer Fund Wastefo'und Golf Fund Total Service Funds 

Operating revenues: 
Water sales $ 26.490.906 $ $ $ 26,490,906 $ 
Sewer service 15,389,382 15,389.382 
Penalties 401,644 401,644 
Service fees (other) 47,989 47,989 
Antenna rentals 321.210 321,2]() 
Meter fe.es 24,777 24.777 
Solid waste tee• 11,502,349 11.502,349 
Golf course fees 1,494,2RR 1 ,494,2RR 
Golf course restaurant 36,346 36,346 
Charges for services 557,388 
City and employee contributions 80.594 47,784 4,440 132,818 9,442,177 
Intergovernmental revenue 9,253 10,656 514 20,423 75,674 
Miscellaneous 41.329 713, I 93 271 754,793 17 

· Total operating re\.mue 42.807.084 12.273,982 1.535.859 56,ol6.925 10,075,256 

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 6,286,402 4,477,947 1,078,072 11,842,421 5·+1,026 
Premiwns 357,727 
Professional and technical services 607,973 39,711 50,325 698,009 549,668 
Property services 2.652,834 93,119 85,499 2,831,452 93.405 
Other purchased services 716,804 271,069 79,531 1.067,404 64,354 
Insurance claims 8,349,927 
Purchase of water 12,418,507 12,418,507 
Purchase of sewage treatment 9,160,410 9,160,410 
Solid waste charges 3,760,319 3,760,319 
General administration 3,996,523 2,102,373 91,236 6,190,132 
Franchise fees 2,094,014 575,117 2,669,131 
BABIC program 466,666 466,666 
Supplies 1,162,334 361,637 324.017 1,847,988 15,225 
Depreciation 5.557.010 912,555 447,918 6.917.483 2.077 

Total operating expenses 45.1 19,477 12.593,847 2,156,598 59,869,922 9.973.409 

Operating income (loss) (2.312,393) (319,865) (620.739) (3 .252.997) 101,847 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest revenue 66,629 6,420 294 73.343 5,391 
Interest expense and fiscal charges (1,077,774) (142,334) (143,602) (1,363,710) 
Transfers in 694,677 694,677 
Gain from disposal of capital assets 34.546 53,857 1.355 89,758 

Total nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) (976.599) (82,057) 552.724 (505,932) 5,391 

Income (loss) before contributions (3,288,992) (401,922) (68,015) (3, 758,929) 107,238 

Capital contributions 1.228.131 1,228,131 

Change in net assets (2,060,861) (401,922) (68,015) (2,530, 798) 107,238 

Total net assets -October I 71,875.136 3,719,959 649,219 76,244,314 2.626.714 

Total net assets- September 30 $ 69.814.275 $ 3.318.037 $ 581,204 $ 2,733,952 

_\djustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds 59,207 

Change in net assets of business type activitieo; $ (2.471.591) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Cash Flows- Proprieuuy Funds 

Year ended September 30,2010 

Bu~intii-T;.]!e Acthitics-Enter(!rise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities-
Water and Solid Internal 

Sewer Fund Waste Fund C'.o1fFund Tntal Service Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receivt:d from cm:tomers $ 42,146,188 $ 12.300,130 1,567,914 s 56.014,232 s 
Cash received from service usm 585,761 
Cash received from city, employe< and other contributions 9,488,433 
Cash payments for goods lllld services (33,385,628) (7.000,105) (632,956) ( 41.018,689) 
Cash payments to employees (5.903.408) (4,132.649) (931,921) ( 1(),967 ,Q78) (527,545) 
Cash payments for pr=iums and other operating expenses (1,191 ,555) 
Cash payments for claims (8,517,646) 
Cash ra:eived from miscellaneous revenues 48.582 271 48.853 

Net cush provided by (used for) operating activities 2,905.734 1.167.376 3,308 4.076.418 (162.552) 

Cash flows from noncapitul fmancing activities: 
T mnsters from other funds 694,677 694.6T 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 694.677 694,(i77 

Cash flows from fmuncing activities: 
Net proceeds from sale of capital assets 35,520 53,857 1,355 90,732 
Bond proceeds. other ob.tigations, and accrued interest 7,626,022 3,953,478 25,378 11,604,878 
.o\cquisition and construction of capitul assets (3,617.882) (842,486) (165,626) (4.625,994) 
Decrease in retainage payable (134,232) (134.232) 
Principal paid on debt (2, 782,567) (829,548) (340,000) (3,952,115) 
Interest paid on debt ( 1 ,880, 799) (13H,I87) (150,567) (2,!69,553) 
Fiscal charges and bond ""crow payment" (144.101) (2.180) (142.978) (289,259) 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital und related 
financing activities (898.039) 2,194,934 (772.438) 524.457 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investment securities ( 6,007.3 1 0) (6.007,310) 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 5,251,564 1,512,075 6,763,639 
Interest received on investments 76354 3!,888 294 108.536 6.290 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (679,392) 1,543,963 294 864.865 6.290 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, restricted cash, and 
cash equivalents 1,328,303 4,906,273 (74,159) 6,160,417 (!56,262) 

Cash, restricted cash. and cash equivalents, October 1 17.698381 2.216.412 337,026 20,25! ,819 3.444.329 

Cash, restricted cash, and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 19,026.684 $ 7.)~?.685 $ 262.867 $ 26.412.236 $ 3.288.067 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fwtds 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Business-Tvf!~ Activiliet-Ente!l!risc Funds 
Governmental 
· Activities-

Water and Solid Internal 
Sewer Fund Waste Fund Golf Fund Total Service Funds 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
opemting activities: 

Opemting income (loss) s (2.312.393) s (319.865) $ (620.739) s (3.2~2 .99~) s 101,!147 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 5,557,010 912,555 447,918 6,917,483 2,077 
ProYision for uncollcctihle accowtts (17.062) (5,447) (22.509) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(increase) decrease in trnde accowus receivable (gross} (622,149) 31,12~ 32,326 (558.696) 
(Increase) decrease in other receivables 134.144 132,520 266,6(>4 (214.772} 
(Increase) decreiiSc in inventory of supplies. ut cost 24,703 (~.766) 15,937 (45,199) 
Dt"Crcasc in prc"]laid ilcms 154 356 510 24.479 
increase (d=ease) in UCCOWJts payable (293 ,489) 79,129 (2,348} (216,70M) (44,464) 
lucro11S~ in deposits jJaynble !rum restricted asset> 37,114 37.114 
Increase in Wlpaid claims liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 16,686 (13,837) 9.685 12,534 (29.029) 
Increase (decrease) in wotkers compensation (21 I) 49.458 432 49,679 
Increase in post-employment benefits 487,244 382,593 152,964 1.022.801 51.717 
Decrc'l!Se in acc'TUed liabilities (106.017) (72.447) !16.930l (195,394) !9.208) 

Total adjustments 5.218,127 I ,487.241 624.047 7.329.415 (264.399) 

Net cash provided by (used for} .opcrating activities $ 2,905.734 $ i.i67,376 $ 3,308 ~ 4.076,418 (162.552) 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 
Contributions of capital ru;""ts from public 1,228, !31 $ s $ 1 ;.2K~ !3 1 $ 

Governmental 
Activities-

Water and Solid Internal 
Sewer .Fund Waste Fund Golf Fund Total Serviee Funds 

Reconciliation of cash, restricted cash, and cash equi\'alents to the 
statement of net W!Sets: 

Total unrestricted cash and investments per the statement of 
net assets $ 8,172,940 $ 2,256,750 s 208.818 10,638,508 $ 3,288.067 

Total restricted cW!h and investments per the statement of net assets 16.860,945 4.865.935 54.049 2! ,780.929 

Total cash and investment• per the statement of net assets 25,033,885 7.1:?.2.685 262,867 32,419.437 3,288,067 

Less investments not meeting th.:: definition of cash equiu 1ents (6.007.201) (6.007.201) 

Cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents 
at September 30, 2010 $ !9.026,684 $ 7.122,685 $ 2!12.867 26.412.236 3.288.067 

See accompanying notes to basic fmancial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30,2010 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The City of Richardson, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 
seYen-member council and a mayor who is selected from among the council members by a vote of 
the council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these financial statements present the financial condition and results of operations and activities of 
the City for which it is considered to be financially accountable. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying 
basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America and applicable to state and local governments. These include those principles prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants as published in Audits of State and Local Governments. In addition, the City has 
elected to apply only those Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) pronouncements issued 
before November 30, 1989 to its enterprise fund activities, as allowed in Section P80 of GASB's 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. 

Blended Component Unit. Richardson Improvement Corporation (RIC) is a nonprofit corporation 
that serves the citizens of the City by improving municipal parks and recreational facilities through 
land acquisition and the development of parks. The City provides all financial support to RIC and all 
members of its governing board are appointed by City Council. Because the services that RIC 
provides exclusively benefits the City and the RIC operations are so intertwined with those of the 
City, RIC is in substance a department of the City and has been blended into the City's financial 
statements in the Other Governmental Funds category and reported as a Special Revenue Fund. 
Audited financial statements for RIC may be obtained by writing City of Richardson, Attn: Finance 
Director, PO Box 830309, Richardson, TX 75083-0309. 

(b) Implementation of New Accounting Principles 

For fiscal year 2009-2010, the City has implemented the following new statements of financial 
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets 

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments 

Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies 

GASB Statement No. 51 establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible 
assets. The implementation of this statement has no effect on the City's fmancial statements at this 
time. 

GASB Statement No. 53 addresses the recognition, measurement and disclosure of information 
regarding derivative instruments. The City does not have any instruments that qualify as derivative 
instruments. Therefore this statement has no effect on the City's financial statements at this time. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30, 2010 

GASB Statement No. 58 establishes accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments 
that have petitioned for protection from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the 
United States Bankruptcy Code. Implementation of this statement has no effect on the City's 
financial statements. 

(c) Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Statements 

The two government-wide financial statements, the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities, report information on all the activities of the City. Governmental activities, which include 
those activities primarily supported by taxes or intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately 
from business-type acti\.ities, which generally rely on fees and charges for support. As a general rule, 
the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the extent to which the direct expenses of a given program 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
program. Program revenues include charges to customers and applicants who purchase, use or 
directly benefit from goods, services or priYileges provided by a given program. They also include 
operating grants, capital grants, and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not included among program 
revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order to 
support financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are 
prescribed for governmental activities and for proprietary activities. These statements present each 
major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements, while all nonmajor funds arc 
aggregated and presented in a single column. 

Governmental funds arc those funds through which most governmental functions typically arc 
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses, and balance of 
current financial resources. The City has presented the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. The fund is used to account 
for all the financial resources that are not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and 
other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are 
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement 
costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial 
resources for the payment of principal, interest and related costs on general long-term debt paid 
primarily from taxes levied by the City. The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund is reserved to 
signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures. 

33 (Continued) 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30,2010 

Capital Fund. The Capital Fund is used to account for funds expended for capital improvements, 
including streets and thoroughfares, parks and other recreational facilities, buildings and public 
facilities, and drainage improvements, and for the purchase of capital equipment. Funding sources 
include the proceeds of general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation issued by the City, as 
well as intergovernmental revenues and contributions. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial 
position and cash flows. All assets and liabilities of the proprietary funds are included in the 
Statement of Net Assets. The City has presented the following major proprietary funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund. The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of water 
and sewer services to the residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, billing 
and collection activities, and the operations, maintenance, and construction of the water and sewer 
systems. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term 
principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility 
customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the 
system. 

Solid Waste Fund. The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for the operations of solid waste 
collection and disposal and recycling services provided to the residents of the City. The fund also 
accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term principal and interest 
for solid waste debt. All costs are financed through charges to the utility customers. 

Golf Fund. The Golf Fund is used to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's golf 
course. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term 
principal and interest for golf debt. Revenues are generated through fees charged to users. The Golf 
Fund did not meet the criteria for a major fund this year; however, because of its importance to the 
financial statements and consistency, the City continues to present it as a major fund. 

The City also reports Internal Service Funds that are used to account for warehouse, mail services, 
and records management operations provided to City departments, and health insurance provided to 
employees and dependents. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing senices and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the 
proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, supplies, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds consider all 
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. Because the City, at its option, can withdraw amounts within a 
24-hour period from TexPool, TexST AR, Federated and Invesco Money Market Mutual Funds, these 
investments are also considered to be cash equivalents. 

(d) Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues 
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic 
resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the Statement of Net Assets and the operating statement presents increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water, sewer, and solid waste collection 
services. Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred. 

Gov-ernmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is, 
when they are "measurable and available." "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined, and "available" means collectible within the current period. The City considers all 
revenues available if they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period. A 30 day availability period is used for revenue recognition 
for all governmental fund type revenues, except fines and forfeitures, which are accrued using a 
45 day availability period, and for grants, which are accrued using a one year availability period. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for outstanding principal 
and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated 
absences, post-employment benefits, and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the 
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available frnancial resources. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, hotel/motel taxes, sales tax 
revenues, fines and forfeitures, and interest revenue. Licenses and permits, recreation and leisure 
fees, public safety, and other revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash. 

The City reports deferred revenue in its governmental funds. Deferred revenues arise when potential 
revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current 
period. Deferred revenues also arise when the City receives resources before it has a legal claim to 
them, as when grant moneys are received prior to the incidence of qualifYing expenditures. In 
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subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal 
claim to the resources, revenue is recognized. 

Grant revenue is recognized as revenue as soon as all applicable eligibility requirements have been 
met. 

(e) Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 

Deposits and Investments 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. 

The Legislature for the State of Texas has enacted and regularly amends the Public Funds Investment 
Act (Investment Act) that governs items such as investment strategies and policies, training for 
investment officers, quarterly reporting, and types of investments allowed. The City has developed 
an Investment Policy that is annually reviewed and approved through resolution by the City Council 
that is in compliance with the Investment Act. Accordingly, the City is authorized to invest in 
( 1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including letters of credit; 
(2) ~;rect obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; (3) obligations of 
state agencies, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than "A" or its equivalent, and other 
obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State 
of Texas, or the United States, or its instrumentalities; ( 4) Joint Investment Pools of political 
subdivisions in the State of Texas, which comply with the guidelines stated in the City's investment 
policy; (5) Certificates of Deposit issued by state or national banks and credit unions domiciled in 
Texas that are guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or secured by 
obligations mentioned above; ( 6) fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements having a defined 
termination date; and (7) no-load money market mutual funds, regulated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, with a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer, and 
includes in its investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share. 

The City is not authorized by its investment policy to invest in banker's acceptances, "bond" mutual 
funds, collateralized mortgage obligations of any type, and commercial paper, with the exception 
that the City may invest in local government investment pools and money market mutual funds that 
have commercial paper as authorized investments. 

Investment activities are conducted through the depository bank. The City's safekeeping agent holds 
all securities in the City's name. 

For fiscal year 2010, the City invested in U.S. Agencies, U.S. Treasuries, TexPool, TexSTAR, 
Federated, Invesco Money Market Funds, and Certificates of Deposits. The City records all interest 
revenue related to investment acti'Vities in the respective funds. 

The City accounts for its investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Investments that 
have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of over one year are recorded at fair value based 
on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be 
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exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Investments with a remaining maturity at 
time of purchase of one year or less are recorded at amortized cost. For these investments, amortized 
cost approximates fair value. 

TexPool and TexST AR were created to conform to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of 
the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas 
Government Code. The fair value of positions in TexPool or TexST AR is the same as the value of 
the pooi shares. 

For TexPool, the State's Comptroller of Public Accounts is the sole officer, director, and shareholder 
of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (Trust Company), which is authorized to operate 
TexPool. Pursuant to the TexPool participation agreement, administrative and investment services to 
TexPool are provided by Federated. The Comptroller maintains oversight of the services provided by 
TexPool. The TexPool Advisory Board, composed equally of participants in TexPool and other 
persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool, acts as advisor on TexPool's 
Investment Policy. 

JPMorgan Chase Asset Management (USA), Inc. (JPMCAM) and First Southwest Asset 
Management, Inc. (FSAM) serve as co-administrators for TexST AR under an agreement with the 
TexSTAR board of directors (the Board). The Board is composed of five members, three are 
representatives of participants in TexST AR and the other two members are designated by each of the 
co-administrators. The Board manages the business and affairs of TexST AR in accordance with its 
bylaws. 

Receivables and Payables 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (the current portion of 
interfund loans) or "advance to/from other funds" (the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any 
residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I. Taxes are levied on 
October 1 and are due and payable on or before January 31 of the following year. All unpaid taxes 
become delinquent February 1 of the following year. The City bills and collects its own property 
taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which they are collected. An 
allowance is established for delinquent taxes to the extent that their collectibility is improbable. 

The Statutes of the State of Texas do not prescribe a legal debt limit; however, Article XI, Section 5 
of the Texas Constitution applicable to cities with a population of more than 5,000, limits the ad 
valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation. The City operates under a Home Rule Charter 
that also imposes a limit of $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation. For the year ended September 30, 
2010, the City had a tax margin of$1.92484 per $100 assessed valuation based upon the maximum 
rates described above. 
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Inventory consists primarily of supplies, valued at cost, which approximates market. Cost is 
determined using a weighted average method. The cost of inventories is recorded as 
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. Accordingly, fund balance is 
reserved for an amount equal to inventory to signify those funds are not available for expenditure. 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items and are offset by a reservation of fund balance. 

Restricted Assets 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, including public domain assets such as roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and 
sidewalks, drainage systems, water and sewer systems, and lighting systems, are recorded in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements and in the fund financial statements of the proprietary funds. All assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The City capitalizes net 
interest costs as part of the cost of constructing various water and sewer projects when material. In 
fiscal year 2010, $796,185 in net interest costs were capitalized in the Water and Sewer Fund. The 
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets' lives are not capitalized, but are recorded as expenditures/expenses as incurred. 

Assets are capitalized that have an original cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of 
more than one year. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the 
straight-line method, with one-half year's depreciation in the year of acquisition. Estimated useful 
lives are as follows: 

Land improvements 
Water and Sewer System 
Buildings 
Other improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
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10-20 years 
10-40 years 
10-50 years 
5-50 years 
10-40 years 
3-20 years 

(Continued) 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30, 2010 

Asset Impairments and Insurance Recoveries 

The City has recorded insurance recoveries related to the impairment of capital assets as Program 
Revenue at the government-wide level, as Other Financing Sources in the Governmental Funds and 
as Other Nonoperating Revenues in the Enterprise Funds. For the year ended September 30, 2010, 
the City received $127,725 in insurance recoveries. 

Compensated Absences 

The City allows employees to accumulate unlimited unused sick leave. Earned vacation time is 
generally required to be used within one year of accrual, although the City allows employees to carry 
up to 20 days of vacation time into the next year. Upon termination, the City pays nonretirees up to 
22 days of accumulated sick leave and pays retirees up to 90 days of accumulated sick leave. Sick 
leave in excess of the 22-day maximum is not paid upon termination to nonretirees and will be paid 
only upon illness while in the employment of the City. Any accumulated vacation that was not taken 
due to work-related assignments is paid upon termmation, with authorization by the City Manager or 
his designee. 

Post-Employment Benefits 

The City provides post-employment healthcare benefits to all employees who retire from the City. 
All employees who are vested in the City's pension plan, Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(TMRS), are eligible for these benefits with 25 years or more of service, regardless of age, or at age 
60 and above. Coverage is also available to dependents or surviving spouses of retirees. The City 
subsidizes medical, dental, and hospitalization costs incurred by retirees and their dependents. 
Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City Council for their approval during the 
annual budget process. The City's plan qualifies as a single-employer, defined benefit plan. 
Complete details of the plan are listed in note 4(d). 

Long-Term Obligations 

General Obligation Bonds and other debt issued for the general government capital projects and 
acquisitions that are to be repaid from tax revenues of the City are recorded in the governmental 
activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Debt issued to fund capital 
projects and acquisitions in the proprietary funds are recorded in the business-type activities column 
in the gm:ernment-wide Statement of Net Assets and in the proprietary fund Statement ofNet Assets. 
Bond premiums and discounts as well as issuance costs and gains/losses on refunded debt 
obligations are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method 
in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary funds. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium, discount, and deferred loss. Issuance costs are reported 
as deferred charges. 

In the governmental funds, bond premiums, discounts, and issuance costs are recognized during the 
current period. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources, as are any applicable premium 
or discount. Issuance costs are reported as debt service and capital fund expenditures. 
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Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any debt used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those 
assets, and net of any unspent debt proceeds. The government-wide statement of net assets reports 
$22,179,587 of restricted net assets for governmental actiYities, of which $3,296,580 is restricted by 
enabling legislation. 

(2) Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

(a) Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

The governmental funds Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental actiYities as reported in the government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, 
including bonds payable, accrued interest, and related deferred charges, are not due and payable in 
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of this $285,002,042 
difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable 
Notes payable and other contractual obligations 
Less issuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense) 
Add issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) 
Less loss on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense) 
Less deferred charges for issuance cost (to be amortized as fiscal charges) 
Accrued interest payable 
Post-employment liability 
Compensated absences 
Workers' compensation liability 
Arbitrage rebate liability 

Net adjustment to reduce the fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at net assets ­
governmental activities 
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$ 244,561,083 
8,105,379 

(63,314) 
12,512,931 
(3,483, 156) 
(2,542,666) 
2,149,641 

14,577,927 
8,730,931 

210,780 
242,506 

$ 285,002,042 
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(b) Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Change.-; in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
includes a reconciliation between net change in fund balances - total governmental funds and 
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of 
Activities. One element of this reconciliation explains that the "Governmental funds report capital 
outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of this 
$3,484,516 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances ­
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in 
net assets of governmental activities 

$ 20,933,644 
(17,449,128) 

$ 3,484,516 

Another element of the reconciliation states "the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases, and 
notes) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current fmancial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of 
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is originally issued, whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities." The details of this $60,345,081 
difference are as follows: 

Debt issued or incurred: 
General obligations, certificates of obligations, and refunding bonds 
Notes payable and other contractual obligations 
Add premium 
Less: 

Issue costs 
Payment to escrow agent for refunding 

Principal repayments: 
General obligation bonds 
Refunded general obligation bonds 
Certificates of obligation 
Notes payable 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances ­
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
assets of governmental activities 
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$ 86,625,000 
1,123,710 
7,377,851 

(840,545) 
(663,792) 

(5,672,775) 
(19,501,560) 

(6,875,000) 
(1,227,808) 

$ 60,345,081 
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Another element of the reconciliation states, "Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds." The details of this $6,196,623 difference are as follows: 

Amortization of bond premi urn 
Amortization on bond discount 
Amortization of issuance costs 
Amortization of loss on refunded bonds 
Accrued interest 
Post-employment benefits 
Compensated absences 
Workers' compensation expense 
Arbitrage rebate 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances­
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
assets of governmental activities 

(3) Detailed Notes 

(a) Deposits and Investments 

Deposits- The City maintained the following deposit balances: 

Bank balance 

Financial institution: 
Frost -City $ 2,097,843 
Frost-RIC 78,107 
Petty cash 
U.S. Bank 561 

Total $ 2,176,511 
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$ 501,549 
(4,568) 

(192,869) 
(237,262) 
(581,358) 

(6,257,624) 
(253,283) 

83,847 
744,945 

$ =====(6=, 1=96=,6=2=3)= 

Book balance 

$ 567,950 
77,432 
13,090 

561 

$ 659,033 
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Investments - The City maintained the following investment balances at year-end: 

Investment type: 
Federal Home Loan Bank - Bonds 
TexPool 
TexSTAR 
Federal National Mortgage Assoc.- Bonds 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Assoc. - Bonds 
Federal Farm Credit- Bonds 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Assoc. - Discount Note 
Federated Government Agency Money Market Fund 
Invesco Government Agency Money Market Fund 
Federal National Mortgage Assoc. -Discount Note 
Federated Treasury Money Market Fund 
Invesco Treasury Money Market Fund 
Victory Federal Money Market Fund 
U.S. Bank 

Total fair value 

Portfolio weighted average maturity 

Fair value 

$ 32,057,376 
27,283,817 
24,986,606 
24,627,959 
16,829,696 
6,013,422 
5,998,054 
5,769,222 
3,549,881 
3,004,157 

649,705 
384,713 
109,847 
49,379 

$ 151,313,834 

Weighted 
average 
maturity 
(years) 

0.07 
0.02 
0.02 
0.05 
0.03 

0.19 

Credit Risk - Investments. The City's investment policy requires that joint investment pools 
maintain a continuous rating no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one 
nationally recognized rating agency, and that obligations of states, agencies, cities, or other political 
subdivisions of any state be rated no less than A or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally 
recognized rating agency. The City's investment policy has no other restrictions relating to credit 
ratings that would limit its investment options. Standard & Poor's has rated investments in Federal 
Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Assoc., Federal Home Loan Mortgage Assoc. and 
Federal Farm Credit Bank as AAA as of September 30, 2010. Standard & Poor's has rated 
investments in TexPool, TexST AR, Invesco Money Market Funds, Federated Money Market Funds 
and Victory Money Market Fund as AAA-m as of September 30, 2010. 

Custodial Credit Risk- Deposits. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's investment policy follows state 
statutes, which require that all deposits in financial institutions be fully collateralized or insured. For 
investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the City 
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The City's investment policy requires that all investments held by 
outside parties for safekeeping be held in the name of the City. The City was not exposed to any 
custodial credit risk at year-end. 

43 (Continued) 



(b) 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30,2010 

Interest Rate Risk - Investments. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its 
exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment 
portfolio to one year or less under normal market conditions, with a three-year maximum weighted 
average maturity. 

Concentration of Credit Risk- Investments. The City's investment policy does not place a limit 
on the amount the City may invest in a single issuer, except that the City may not invest more than 
20.0% in an individual investment pool or money market mutual fund. At September 30, 2010, the 
City's direct inYestments are in the Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, and Federal Farm Credit Bank. These 
investments are 21.2%, 15.1 %, 18.26%, and 4.0%, respectively, of the City's total investments. 

Receivables 

Receivables at September 30, 2010, for the government's individual major governmental funds, 
nonmajor funds, internal service funds in the aggregate, and for individual major business-type 
funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consists of the following: 

Total 
Capital Nonmajor governmental 

General Debt service fund funds funds 

Receivables: 
Taxes-Ad Valorem $ 1,503,226 $ $ $ $ 1,503,226 
Taxes-sales 1,764,762 1,764,762 
Taxes-hotel'motel 411,758 411,758 
Trade accounts 3,400,033 1,865,200 5,265,233 
Other 12,564 34,191 46,755 
Interest 49,202 442,471 491,673 
Intergovernmental 1,184 3,259,246 127,068 3,387,498 

Gross receivables 6,718,407 12,564 3,735,908 2,404,026 12,870,905 

Less allowance for 
uncollectibles (1,158,346) (I ,405 ,256) (2,563,602) 

Net receivables $ 5,560,061 $ 12,564 $ 3,735,908 $ 998,770 $ 10,307,303 
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Water and 
Sewer Solid Waste 

$ 5,364,869 $ 1,078,878 $ 
83,045 335,489 
4.500 
2,000 4,000 

Gross receivables 5,454,414 1,418,367 

Less allowance for 
uncollectibles (112,517) (27,820) 

Net receivables $ 5,341,897 $ 1,390,547 $ 

Total 
business-type Internal 

Golf activities service 

27,004 $ 6,470,751 $ 
2,054 420,588 257,777 

4,500 
6,000 

29,058 6,901,839 257,777 

(140,337) 

29,058 $ 6,761,502 $ 257,777 

The Water and Sewer and Solid Waste trade accounts receivable include unbilled charges for 
services rendered at September 30, 2010. 

(c) Restricted Assets 

Enterprise Funds 

At year-end, the following were the restricted assets in the Enterprise Funds: 

Water and Solid Waste 
Sewer Fund Services Fund Golf Fund 

Debt service- Sinking Fund $ 404,620 $ 73,792 $ 56,103 
Customers' deposits 2,390,188 
Rate stabilization 1,889,393 
Capital Project and Equipment 

Funds 12,186,463 4,795,191 

$ 16,870,664 $ 4,868,983 $ 56,103 
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Total 

$ 534,515 
2,390,188 
1,889,393 

16,981,654 

$ 21,795,750 
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Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010 was as follows: 

Beginning 
balance 

October 1, 
2009 Increases Decreases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being 

depreciated: 

Land $ 44,209,546 $ 722,057 $ $ 
Construction in progress 25,052,094 8,377,866 (20,993,710) 

Total capital assets, 

not being 

depreciated 69,261,640 9,099,923 (20,993,710) 

Capital assets, being 

depreciated: 

Buildings 103,139,267 7,533,910 (747,251) 

Improvements other 

than buildings 42,787,768 12,045,912 (120,232) 

Vehicles, machinery, and 

equipment 38,694,198 4,388,264 (1,465,676) 

Infrastructure 365,360,024 10,333,568 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 549,981,257 34,301,654 (2,333, !59) 

Less accumulated 

depreciation, for: 

Buildings 39.380,288 3,359,997 (731,662) 

Improvements other than 

buildings 25,545,073 2,147,277 (120,232) 

Vehicles, machinery, and 

equipment 27,282,778 2,916,205 (1,360,448) 

Infrastructure 238,353,304 9,027,726 

Total accumulated 

depreciation 330,561,443 17,451,205 (2,212,342) 

Total capital assets 

being 
depreciated, net 219,419,814 16,850,449 (120,817) 

Governmental 

activities capital 
assets, net $ 288,681,454 $ 25,950,372 $ (21,114,527) $ 
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Ending 
balance 

September 30, 
2010 

44,931,603 
12,436,250 

57,367,853 

109,925,926 

54,713,448 

41,616,786 

375,693,592 

581,949,752 

42,008,623 

27,572,118 

28,838,535 

247,381,030 

345,800,306 

236,149,446 

293,517,299 
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Beginning 
balance 

October 1, 

2009 Increases 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being 

depreciated: 

Land $ 542,839 $ 
Construction in progress 4,612,080 4,536,894 

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 5,154,919 4,536,894 

Capital assets, being 
depreciated: 

Buildings 8,477,312 12,974 
Improvements other than 

buildings 8,965,210 138,880 
\·chicle:;, rnuchinerf, and 

equipment 24,502,142 1,410,646 
Infrastructure I 72,306,279 5,690,300 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 214,250,943 7,252,800 

Less accumulated 
depreciation, for: 

Buildings 4,475,513 206,873 
Improvements other 

than buildings 3,518,753 385,837 
Vehicles, machinery, and 

equipment 18,927,542 1,463,050 
Infrastructure 84,991.112 4,861,723 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 111,912,920 6,917,483 

Total capital assets 

being 
depreciated, net 102,338,023 335,317 

Business-type 
activities capital 
assets, net $ 107.492,942 $ 4,872,211 
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Ending 
balance 

September 30, 
Decreases 2010 

$ $ 542,839 
(5, 139,384) 4,009,590 

(5,139,384~ 4,552,429 

8,490,286 

9,104,090 

(266,560) 25,646,228 
177,996,579 

(266,560) 221,237.183 

4,682.386 

3,904,590 

(265,585) 20,125,007 
89,852,835 

(265,585) 1 I 8,564,818 

(975) 102,672,365 

$ (5.140,359) $ 107,224,794 

(Continued) 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30,2010 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public services 
Library 
Parks and recreation 
Health 
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds 

and charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 
Solid Waste 
Golf 

Total depreciation expense- business-type activities 

$ 4,569,989 
2,182,236 
7,731,269 

414,019 
2,538,894 

12,721 

2,077 

$ ==17=,4=5=1=,2=05== 

$ 5,557,010 
912,555 
447,918 

$ ==6=,9=1=7=,4=83== 

(e) Construction Commitments 

(f) 

Outstanding commitments at September 30, 201 0, under authorized construction contracts for the 
Capital Fund, were $10,122,931. These outstanding commitments are to be financed by proceeds 
from bond issues and from revenues such as participation revenue from other governments or 
developers. 

lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

Individual fund transfers for fiscal year 2009-2010, were as follows: 

Transfers out 
Other 

Capital Governmental 
General Fund Fund Funds Total 

Transfer in: 
General Fund $ $ $ 481,383 $ 481,383 
Debt Service Fund 455,000 455,000 
Capital Fund 3,191,361 262,771 3,454,132 
Golf 575,000 119,677 694,677 
Other Governmental Funds 129,297 129,297 

$ 4,221,361 $ 248,974 $ 744,154 $ 5,214,489 
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Transfers from the General Fund to the Capital Fund are used to fund future capital improvements 
and street rehabilitation. The transfer from the General Fund to the Golf Fund was to maintain the 
fund balance at 30 days building toward 60 days as adopted by the City's financial policy. Transfers 
from the Wireless 911 Fund to the General Fund are used to support the expenses of the 911 Call 
Center. Transfers from the Child Safety Fund are used to support the expenses for the school 
crossing guard program. The transfer from the Capital Fund to the Golf Fund was for capital 
construction and will not be reimbursed by the Golf fund. The transfer from RIC to the General Fund 
was a donation for Wildflower! and the transfer from RIC to the Capital Fund was for a parks 
construction project. Transfers from the Hotel/Motel Fund to the Debt Service Fund are used for the 
payment of principal and interest on outstanding debt obligations. Transfers from the Library, 
Community Service, and the Police Safety Education funds to the General Fund were to close out 
these funds. 

(g) Leasing Activities 

The City's leasing activities consist of leasing various land and buildings that were purchased in 
previous years. These leases are classified as operating leases. 

The following property was leased under operating leases at September 30, 201 0: 

Land 
Buildings 
Less depreciation 

Book value 

$ 

Governmental 
activities 

493,823 
2,561,400 
(702,267) 

$ ==2='=35=2=,9=56= 

Minimum lease payments under operating leases are based on certain performance measures and 
cannot be calculated for each year. The City received payments totaling $8,976 on these leases 
during the current fiscal year, and has received cumulative payments of $138,401 over the life of 
these leases. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

September 30,2010 

The following is a summary of financial obligations for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010: 

Balance 
beginning of Balance Due within 

rear Increases Decreases end of year one vear 

Governmental-type acti.-ities: 
General obligation bonds $ 154,898,857 $ 79.105,000 $ (12,877,774) $ 221,126,083 $ 8,695,000 
Certificates of obligation 34,835,000 7,520,000 ( 18,920,000) 23,435,000 5,730,000 
Other obligations 12,177,802 1,123,710 (5,196,133) 8,105,379 714,565 

Deferred amounts: 
For bond discountS/ 

premiums/losses 2,763,680 7,619,682 (l ,416,901) 8,966,461 432,994 
Post-employment benefits 8,426,989 7,715,794 (I ,406,453) 14,736,330 
Compensated absences 8,537,552 1,137,661 (913,408) 8,761,805 1,051,148 
Workers' compensation 294,627 155,722 (239,569) 210,780 210,780 
Unpaid claims liability 700,000 700,000 700,000 
Arbitrage rebate liability 987,451 (744,945) 242,506 242,506 

Governmental-
type activity 
long-term 
debt $ 223,621 ,958 $ 104,377,569 $ (41,715,183) $ 286,284,344 $ 17,776,993 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation refunding 

bonds $ 7,011,143 $ 8,445,000 $ (397,225) $ 15,058,918 $ 585,000 
Certificates of obligation 49,840,000 10,785,000 (II ,920,000) 48,705,000 3,365,000 
Other obligations 123,281 639,096 (699,890) 62,487 19,432 

Deferred amounts: 
For bond discounts/ 

premiums/losses 90,805 1,136,198 (528,205) 698,798 55,562 
Post-employment benefits 1,297,054 1,341,094 (318,293) 2,319,855 
Compensated absences 1,269,068 98,470 (85,936) 1,281,602 153,792 
Workers' compensation 21,663 101,776 (52,097) 71,342 71,342 
Arbitrage rebate liability 26,792 26,792 

Business-type 
activity 
long-term 
debt $ 59,679,806 $ 22,546,634 $ (14,001,646) $ 68,224,794 $ 4.250,128 
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Bonds payable at September 30,2010, are comprised of the following: 

<ieneral<iovernxnent 

General Obligation Bonds: 
$73,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2010 due in annual principal payments ranging from $155,000 
to $5,600,000 through February 15, 2030. Interest rate is variable 
from 2.00% to 5.00%. $ 

$14,460,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 
due in annual principal payments ranging from $975,000 to 
$3,280,000 through February ! 5, 2019. Interest rate is variable 
from 2.00% to 5.00%. 

$79,440,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2006 due in annual principal payments ranging from $435,000 to 
$6,880,000 through February 15, 2026. Interest rate is variable 
from 4.50% to 5.25%. 

$32.975,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2005 due in annual principal payments ranging from $1,435,000 
to $2,840,000 through February 15, 2025. Interest rate is variable 
from 3.00% to 5.25%. 

$11,910,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2004 
due in annual principal payments ranging from $100,000 to $1 ,080,000 
through February 15, 2020. Interest rate is variable from 1.50% 
to 5.40%. 

$12,442,581 Adjustable Rate General Obligation Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2003. The annual principal payment is 
determined each year in June with final payment scheduled for 
June 15, 2013. Interest rate is variable and is determined on June 16 of 
each year, currently 2.0%. 

$15,275,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2002 due in annual principal payments ranging from $255,000 
to $4,260,000 through February 15, 2022. Interest rate is variable 
from 2.50% to 4.875%. 

$11,335,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001 due in annual 
principal payments ranging from $130,000 to $905,000 through 
February 15, 2021. Interest rate is variable from 4.75% to 5.25%. 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

Taxable General Obligation Bonds: 
$6,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2010A 

due in annual principal payments ranging from $485,000 to $790,000 
through February 15,2020. Interest rate is variable from 1.15% to 4.05% 
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73,000,000 

11,180,000 

73,515,000 

32,975,000 

4,740,000 

7,691,083 

11,380,000 

540,000 

215,021,083 

6,105,000 
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Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligations: 
$7,520,000 Series 2010 due in annual principal installments ranging 

from $935,000 to $1,035,000 through February 15, 2025. Interest rate 
is variable from 2.00% to 4.00% 

$5,370,000 Series 2009 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $145,000 to $805,000 through February 15, 2023. Interest rate 
is variable from 2.50% to 3.80% 

$4,500,000 Series 2008 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $260,000 to $925,000 through February 15, 2016.lnterest rate 
is 3.50% 

$3,220,000 Series 2007 due in annual principal instaliments ranging 
from $95,000 to $765,000 through February 15, 2015. Interest rate 
is variable from 4.00% to 4.50% 

$2,640,000 Series 2006 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $85,000 to $620,000 through February 15, 2014. Interest rate 
is variable from 4.00% to 5.00% 

$2,790,000 St:ries 2005 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $155,000 to $1,335,000 through February 15, 20ll.lnterest 
rate is variable from 3.15% to 4.00% 

$4,600,000 Series 2003 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $155,000 to $845,000 through February 15,2023. Interest rate 
is Yariable from 2.00% to 4.65%. 

$7,500,000 Series 2002 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $275,000 to $955,000 through February 15, 2022. Interest rate 
is variable from $3.00% to 4.85%. 

$12,100,000 Series 2001 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $410,000 to $1,110,000 through February 15, 2021.1nterest 
rate is variable from 4.25% to 5.00%. 

Total Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 

Add unamortized premium 
Less: 

Unamortized discount 
Unamortized loss on refunding 

Total Bonds and Certificates of Obligation Payable at 
September 30,2010 
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$ 7,520,000 

4,565,000 

2,915,000 

1,165,000 

360,000 

1,335,000 

1,560,000 

3,560,000 

455,000 

23,435,000 

12,512,931 

(63,314) 
(3,483,156) 

$ 253,527,544 
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Business-Type Activities 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds and Certificates of Obligation payable at September 30, 2010, 
for the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, and Golf Funds are comprised of the following: 

Water and Sewer: 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds: 

$4,080,000 General Obligation Refhnding Bonds, Series 2010 
due in annual principal installments ranging from $335,000 
$505,000 through February 15, 2021. Interest rate is 
variable from 4.00% to 5.00% 

$5,685,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2009 due in annual principal installments ranging from 
$205,000 to $645,000 through February 15,2020. Interest rate is 
variable from 2.00% to 5.00% 

$1,042,419 Adjustable Rate General Obligation Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2003 due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $44,739 to $311,185 through June 15, 
2016. Interest rate is variable and resets on June 16 of each year, 
currently 2.5% 

Total General Obligation Refunding Bonds- Water and 
Sewer Fund 

Certificates of Obligation: 
$7,210,000 Series 2010 due in annual principal installments ranging 

from $265,000 to $350,000 through February 15, 2030. Interest rate 
is variable from 2.50% to 4.1250%, 

$5,030,000 Series 2009 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $130,000 to $355,000 through February 15, 2029. Interest rate is 
variable from 2.50% to 4.50%, 

$5,000,000 Series 2008 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $85,000 to $380,000 through February 15, 2028. Interest rate is 
variable from 3.50% to 4.50%, 

$5,000,000 Series 2007 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $85,000 to $375,000 through February 15,2027. Interest rate is 
variable from 4.00% to 4.50%. 

$5,000,000 Series 2006 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $130,000 to $375,000 through February 15, 2026. Interest rate is 
variable from 4.00% to 5.00%. 

$4,235,000 Series 2005 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $85,000 to $315,000 through February 15, 2025. Interest rate is 
variable from 3.15% to 4.00%. 

$3,730,000 Series 2004 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $75,000 to $270,000 through February 15, 2024. Interest rate is 
variable from 3.00% to 4.50%. 
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$ 4,080,000 

5,360,000 

613,918 

10,053,918 

7,210,000 

4,900,000 

4,750,000 

4,575,000 

4,350,000 

3,520,000 

2,930,000 
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$3,750,000 Series 2003 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $80,000 to $275,000 through February 15,2023. Interest rate is 
variable from 2.00% to 4.65%. 

$9,600,000 Series 2002 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $345,000 to $695,000 through February 2022. Interest rate is 
variable from 3.00% to 4.85%. 

$6,885,000 Series 2001 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $80,000 to $550,000 through February 2021. Interest rate is 
variable from 4.25% to 5.0%. 

Total Certificates of Obligation- Water and Sewer Fund 

Solid Waste: 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds: 

$480,000 Series 2009 due in annual principal payments ranging from 
$5,000 to $60,000 through February 15, 2020. Interest rate is 
variable from 2.00% to 5.00%. 

Certificates of Obligation: 
$3,575,000 Series 2010 due in annual principal installments ranging 

from $150,000 to $330,000 through February 2025. Interest rate is 
variable from 2.00% to 4.00% 

$1 ,400,000 Series 2009 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $150,000 to $195,000 through February 2017.lnterest rate is 
variable from 2.50% to 3.00% 

$1 ,200,000 Series 2008 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $130,00 to $200,000 through February 2015. Interest rate 
is 3.50% 

$1,160,000 Series 2007 due in annual principal installments ranging 
from $130,000 to $190,000 through February 15,2014. Interest rate 
is variable from 4.00% to 4.50% 

Total Bonds and Certificates of Obligation- Solid Waste Fund 

Golf: 
General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds: 

$4,365,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2010 due in annual principal payments ranging from $340,000 
to $555,000 through February 15, 2021. Interest rate is variable 
from 3.00% to 5.00%. 

$225,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2005 due in annual principal payments ranging from $20,000 
to $30,000 through February 15, 2017. Interest rate is variable 
from 3.00% to 5.25%. 
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$ 2,775,000 

6,580,000 

325,000 

41,915,000 

475,000 

3,575,000 

1,250,000 

910,000 

715,000 

6,450,000 

4,365,000 

165,000 
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Certificates of Obligation: 
$6,300,000 Series 2001 due in annual principal installments ranging 

from $35,000 to $605,000 through February 2021. Interest rate is 
variable from 4.25% to 5.0%. 

Total Bonds and Certificates of Obligation - Golf Fund 

Add unamortized premiums 
Less: 

Deferred losses on refundings 
Unamortized discounts 

Total business-type General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
and Certificates of Obligation 

Debt Service Requirements 

$ 340,000 

4,870,000 

1,504,372 

(636,859) 
(168,715) 

$ 64,462,716 

Debt service requirements at September 30, 2010 for General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of 
Obligation arc as follows: 

Governmental activities Business-type activities 
Principal Interest Principal Interest 

Year ending September 30: 
2011 $ 14,425,000 $ 11,542,514 $ 3,950,000 $ 2,546,269 
2012 14,687,390 10,507,439 4,287,610 2,298,462 
2013 14,574,172 9,951,420 4,480,828 2,158,194 
2014 14,840,692 9,360,013 4,654,308 2,004,365 
2015 13,713,829 8,722,060 4,451,172 1,844,478 
2016 - 2020 80,190,000 32,864,614 21,980,000 6,610,860 
2021 - 2025 61,850,000 14,922,958 14,815,000 2,526,687 
2026 - 2030 30,280,000 3,424,500 5,145,000 407,011 

Totals $ 244,561,083 $ 101,295,518 $ 63,763,918 $ 20,396,326 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

As part of the City's debt management practices, the City defeased certain General Obligation Bonds 
and Certificates of Obligation by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust for all 
future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the related trust assets and liabilities for 
the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. At September 30, 2010, there 
was $26,690,000 of defeased bonds outstanding. 
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On June 15, 2010, the City issued $81,445,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2010 with a net interest cost of 4.05%. The bond proceeds were used to refund 
$7,205,000 General Obligation Bonds, $15,105,0000 Certificates of Obligation, pay costs associated 
with issuing the bonds and provide $60,665,000 for improvements to the City's streets, drainage 
systems, sidewalks and bridges, parks and public buildings. The refunded debt resulted in cash flow 
savings of$2,650,683 with a net present value benefit of$2,246,677. The City realized a $1,069,879 
accounting loss on the refunding, which will be amortized over the life of the new debt. 

On June 15, 2010 the City issued $6,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable 
Series 2010A with a net interest cost of 3.49%. The bond proceeds were used to refund $6,005,000 
Certificates of Obligation Taxable Series 2000B and to pay the costs associated with the issuance of 
the bonds. The refunded debt resulted in cash flow savings of $1,354,143 with a net present value 
benefit of $1,223,395. The City realized a $265,484 accounting loss on the refunding which will be 
amortized over the life of the new debt. 

Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds are recorded in the Capital Fund and are restricted to the use 
for which they were approved in the bond elections. The City Charter expressly prohibits the use of 
bond proceeds to fund operating expenditures. 

Certificates of Obligation 

On June 15, 2010 the City issued $18,305,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2010 with a net interest cost of 3.43%. The Water and Sewer fund issued 
$7,210,000 in Certificates, the Solid Waste fund issued $3,575,000 in Certificates, and $7,520,000 in 
Certificates were issued for the benefit of the Capital Fund. Proceeds from the sale of the 
Certificates, net of issuance costs of approximately $194,000 will be used for improving, renovating, 
and constructing City facilities, the purchasing of an emergency communications system for the 
police and fire departments, the purchasing of vehicles and equipment for various departments, and 
extending and improving the City's water and sewer system. 

Compensated Absences, Workers' Compensation, Post-Employment Benefits, and Arbitrage 
Rebate Liability 

Governmental-type activities record liabilities for compensated absences, workers' compensation 
claims, retiree post-employment costs, and arbitrage rebate expenses at the government-wide 
statement level. Generally, the liabilities for compensated absences, workers' compensation claims, 
and retiree post-employment costs are paid from the General Fund. Arbitrage rebate expenses are 
generally paid from the Capital Fund. Liabilities for the Business-type activities are recorded and 
liquidated in the fund that incurs the liability. 
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(i) Capital Leases and Other Contractual Obligations 

The following is a summary of capital leases and other contractual obligation transactions of the City 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010: 

Balance at 
October I, 

Computer Police Loau 
Hardware Academv STAR 

Routh 
Creek 
Pk'\\"1" 

Key TIF 
Government Economic 

Finance Fossil Grant 

Texas 
Comptroller 

of 
Public 

Accounts Total 

Business-
type 

activities 
Water and 

Sewer 
Compdter 
hardware 

2009 s 795,404 $ 1,571,374 s 286,691 $ 3,968,325 $ -ll - S J,299,86S $ 2.,.!56,i43 S il,i 77,802 $ 123,281 
Additions · 

adjustments 
Payments (497.680) (176.406) (57.021) 

Balance at 
September 30, 

979,828 143,882 
(3,968,325) (393.290) (103.411) 

1,123,710 
(5,196,133) 

639,096 
(699.890) 

2010 $ 297.':'24 $ 1.394.968 s 229.670 $===-=$ 586.538 $ 143.882 s 3.299.865 $ 2,152,732 $ 8.105,379 $ 62,487 

Notes Payable 

At September 30, 2010, the City's outstanding notes payable, which were used to finance computer 
hardware, consisted of the following: 

$740,000 Chase Equipment Leasing, Inc., three year note due in annual 
payments of$265,949 through October 2010. Interest rate is 3.86% 

$162,729 Frost Leasing, five year note due in monthly payments 
of$2,996 through October 2013. Interest rate is 3.99% 

$ 256,066 

104,145 

The following is a schedule of future debt maturities related to the notes payable as of September 30, 
2010: 

Governmental activities Business-ty(!e activities 
Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

Fiscal year ending 
September 30: 

2011 $ 269,021 $ 11 ,310 $ 19,432 $ 2,139 $ 301,902 
2012 13,481 900 20,221 1,350 35,952 
2013 14,028 352 21,042 529 35,951 
2014 1,194 4 1,792 6 2,996 

Totals $ 297,724 $ 12,566 $ 62,487 $ 4,024 $ 376,801 
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Other Contractual Obligations 

The City entered into an agreement with the City of Plano to develop a police academy to be used as 
a joint training facility. The City of Richardson and the City of Plano share the costs of 
improvements to the facilities. 

The following is a schedule of future debt maturities relating to these contractual obligations as of 
September 30, 2010: 

Principal Interest Total 

Fiscal year ending September 30: 
2011 $ 83,198 $ 59,329 $ 142,527 
2012 94,340 56,258 150,598 
2013 98,226 52,216 150,442 
2014 108,476 48,001 156,477 
2015 107,815 43,608 151,423 
2016 - 2020 594,309 144,139 738,448 
2021 - 2025 308,604 29,313 337,917 

Totals $ 1,394,968 $ 432,864 $ 1,827,832 

During fiscal year 2001-2002, the City entered into an agreement with the State of Texas Energy 
Conservation Office in which the City borrowed money from the State as part of its LoanST AR 
Revolving Loan Program. Proceeds of the loan were used to make improvements to the energy use 
efficiency of several of the City's public facilities. The projects were completed in fiscal year 2004 
for a total cost of $559,627. The following is a schedule of the payments required under the loan 
agreement as of September 30,2010: 

Fiscal year ending September 30: 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 

Totals 

$ 

$ 

Principal 

58,751 $ 
60,533 
62,370 
48,016 

229,670 $ 

Interest Total 

6,233 $ 64,984 
4,451 64,984 
2,614 64,984 

722 48,738 

14,020 $ ===24=3=,6=90= 

On January 5, 2010 Collin County signed an interlocal agreement with the City that superseded the 
December 2006 agreement for their participation in the Routh Creek Parkway project. Under the new 
agreement, the County will assume $8,032,120 of the costs for this project and the City will no 
longer be obligated to repay the $3,968,325. This amount was reclassified from a liability to 
Intergovernmental Revenue in the Capital Fund this fiscal year. 
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An infrastructure reimbursement grant and development agreement was entered into with the City 
and Centennial Park Richardson, Ltd. in September 2007. This agreement provides for a maximum 
grant amount of $3,299,865 plus 7% interest compounded annually until paid in full or termination 
of the agreement. The proceeds of the grant will be used to reimburse costs of land acquisition, site 
demolition, and utility relocation. Additional funding for this grant is contingent upon the available 
tax reYenues in the TIF zone from Sub Area No. 2. 

The Texas Comptroller of Public accounts notified the City regarding an error in sales tax payments 
made to the City. This error was the result of a local business reporting and paying taxes incorrectly 
to the State Comptroller from January 1998 through December 2005. The local sales tax 
overpayment to the City in the amount of $2,256,143 was recorded as a liability and a reduction of 
sales tax revenue in FY 2008-2009. The Comptroller's office has set up a 20-year pay out 
arrangement and $103,411 was paid in FY 2009-10. 

The City fmanced $1,618,924 with Key Government Finance for the purchase of a telephone system 
to be paid in annual installments of $130,000 beginning October 15, 2010 and ending October 15, 
2014. 

On October 15, 2009 the City entered into an agreement with Fossil, Inc. to purchase land and 
right-of-way for $220,203 to be paid in three equal installments of $73,401. The remaining 
installments are due October 15, 2010 and 2011. 

(4) Other Information 

(a) Risk Management 

The City maintains a self-insured program for workers' compensation. The City utilizes TRISTAR 
Risk Management, as the third party administrator for this program. During fiscal year 2009-2010, a 
total of $74,939 was paid in administrative costs that were recorded as an expenditure/expense in the 
General Fund and Proprietary Funds. In addition, claims and benefits paid in the amounts of 
$239,569 and $52,097 have been recorded as expenditures/expenses in the General Fund and the 
Proprietary Funds, respectively. 

The City also maintains a self-insured medical program known as "CORPlan" which is accounted 
for as an Internal Service Fund. This program provides employee health benefit coverage up to a 
maximum of $1,000,000 per employee in their lifetime and a maximum of $150,000 per employee 
per year. The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of the $150,000 coverage 
mentioned above for each employee. In fiscal year 2009-20 10, the City received refunds from the 
commercial insurance carrier in the amount of $304,255. There were no settlements exceeding the 
lifetime maximum coverage in each of the last three years. 
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All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Insurance Fund based on 
actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. Accounting standards 
require that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial 
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The City's consultant 
estimated the liability to be $700,000 for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 
September 30, 2010. The liability for unpaid claims includes the effects of specific incremental 
claims, adjustment expenses, and if probable and material, salvage and subrogation. The City 
currently does not discount its unpaid claims liabilities. 

Reconciliation of Unpaid Claims Liabilities 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 

beginning of year 
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 

Provision for insured events of the CtL'Tent year 
Increase (decrease) in prior year provision 

Payments: 

Total incurred claims and claim 
adjustment expenses 

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable 
to insured events of the current year 

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable 
to insured events of prior years 

Total payments 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 
at end of year 

(b) Interfund Charges 

$ 

$ 

2010 

700,000 $ 

8,614,000 
(177,000) 

9,137,000 

7,914,000 

523,000 

8,437,000 

2009 

500,000 

8,353,000 
378,000 

9,231,000 

7,653,000 

878,000 

8,531,000 

700,000 $ -=-==70=0=,0=0=0 = 

The City allocates a percentage of the salaries and wages and related costs of personnel who perform 
general and administrative services for construction and enterprise activities but are paid from the 
General Fund. During the year ended September 30, 2010, the City allocated $6,745,132 for such 
services. 
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Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of City management and the 
City's attorneys, the potential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not be significant to the City's 
financial statements. 

Grant Audit 

The City receives federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by federal and state agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the federal 
and state agencies for expenditures disallo',ved under the terms and conditions of the grant 
agreements of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of the City management, such disallowance, if 
any, will not be significant to the City's fmancial statements. 

(d) Post-Employment Benefits 

Retiree Health Benefits 

Plan Description 

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 4(e), the City provides post employment health 
care benefits, in accordance with City policy. All employees who are vested in the City's pension 
plan, Texas Municipal Retirement System, are eligible for these benefits with 25 years or more of 
service, regardless of age, or at age 60 and above. Coverage is also available to dependents or 
surviving spouses of retirees. At September 30, the City had 194 retirees and an additional 133 active 
employees that are eligible to retire. The City subsidizes medical, dental, and hospitalization costs 
incurred by retirees and their dependents. Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City 
Council for their approval during the annual budget process. The City's plan qualifies as a 
single-employer, defined benefit plan and is accounted for in the City's Insurance and Flexible 
Spending fund as well as the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, Golf, and Central Services funds. A 
separate fmancial statement is not issued for the plan. 

Contributions 

In fiscal year 2009-2010, the City contributed $152 each month to the plan on behalf of each retiree. 
This amount is subject to review during the annual budget process. Sample contribution rates for 
retirees and their dependents are based on the length of service of the retiree and are shown below. 

Under 10 10-14 15-19 20+ 

Years of service: 
Retiree only $ 1,363 $ 1,022 $ 682 $ 341 
Retiree/spouse 2,114 1,586 1,057 529 
Surviving spouse 1,499 1,124 750 375 
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Coverage for retiree age 65 or older 
Under 10 10-14 15-19 20+ 

Years of service: 
Retiree only 
Retiree/ spouse 
Surviving spouse 

$ 954 $ 
1,480 
1,050 

716 $ 
1,110 

787 

477 $ 
470 
525 

239 
370 
262 

Contributions to the plan are designed to fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City may 
choose to fund additional amounts to increase the reserves of the Insurance and Flexible Spending 
fund. These amounts would not reduce the actuarial liability of the plan, but would offset a portion of 
the OPEB liability in the fund financial statements. For the year ended September 30, 2010, the City 
contributed $347,472 and plan participants contributed $872,467 to the plan. 

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress 

Actuarial valuations involve the use of estimates and assumptions about the probability of events far 
into the future, including, but not limited to, assumptions about length of employee service, mortality 
rates, and future costs of health care. The valuation will be updated every two years and actual 
results will be compared with past expectations. As a result of these comparisons, new estimates and 
assumptions will be made about future results of the plan. Valuations are made based on the benefits 
in place at the time of the valuation. Any changes in the benefits offered or the contribution rates 
would impact future valuations. Actuarial techniques include smoothing mechanisms that take a 
long-term approach in the valuation of assets and liabilities of the plan and are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in the measurement of these assets and liabilities. 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Investment rate of return 
Payroll growth 
Health care trends 
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2010 

Projected unit credit 
Level percent of payroll 
30 years- closed period 

Amortized cost 
4% 
4% 

9% initial, 5% ultimate 

2009 

Projected unit credit 
Level percent of payroll 
30 years - closed period 

Amortized cost 
5% 
4% 

9% initial, 5% ultimate 
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2010 (I) 

Annual OPEB cost: 
Annual required contribution 

(ARC) $ 4,728,225 $ 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 129,620 
Adjustment to the ARC (108,017) 

Annual OPEB cost 4,749,828 

Contributions made (1,484,120) 
Change in investment rate of return 1,065,439 

Net OPEB obligation 4,331 ,147 

Net OPEB obligation, October I 7,552,269 

Net OPEB obligation, September 30 $ 11,883,416 $ 

Percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed 31.2% 

Funding progress: 
Actuarial \"aluation date October 1, 2009 
Actuarial value of assets $ $ 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 60,896,447 
Funded ratio -% 
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) $ 60,896,447 $ 
Annual covered payroll 53,511,198. 
UAAL as a percentage of covered 

payroll 113.80% 

(I) See Actuarial Changes below 

2009 2008 

3,536,996 $ 6,983,793 

3,536,996 6,983,793 

(1,361,923) (1 ,606,597) 

2,175,073 5,377,196 

5,377,196 

7,552,269 $ 5,377,196 

38.5% 23.0% 

October 1, 2008 October 1, 2007 
$ 

47,029,210 80,705,746 
-% -% 

47,029,210 $ 80,705,746 
52,621,488 51,033,789 

89.37% 158.14% 

The Schedule of Post-employment Health Care Benefits, which is found in the Required 
Supplementary Information immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents 
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Plan Changes 

For Fiscal Year 2008-2009, the City Council approved significant changes to the retiree healthcare 
program. City funding for the program was substantially reduced and premiums paid by retirees were 
increased. A new actuarial study was performed incorporating these changes, and the actuarial 
accrued liability was reduced by approximately 42%. In calculating the current year and future year's 
annual required contributions, the actuary reduced these amounts by amounts expensed in the prior 
years under the old plan. This resulted in no adjustment to the annual required contribution in the 
Fiscal Year 2008-2009. No plan changes were made in Fiscal Year 2009-2010. 
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The actuarial study performed in Fiscal Year 2008-2009 included investment return estimates of 5% 
and 4%. The 5% return was used in Fiscal Year 2008-2009. In light of the continued low interest rate 
environment, a 4% investment return for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 was used in order to be more 
conservative. The change in interest rate increased the Actuarial Accrued Liability by $13,867,237. 
The additional $1 ,065,439 cost was treated as a program expense in the current fiscal year and is 
reported as an adjustment to the Net OPEB obligation in the chart above. The interest rate 
assumption will be reevaluated for the actuarial study performed in Fiscal Year 2010-2011. 

COBRA Benefits 

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City makes health care 
benefits available to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. The federal government 
outlines certain requirements for this coverage. The premium plus a two percent administration fee is 
paid in full by the insured on or before the tenth (1Oth) day of the month for the actual month 
covered. This program is offered for 18 months after the employee's termination date. The City 
makes no contribution under this program. There were 4 participants in the program as of 
September 30, 2010. 

(e) Pension Benefits 

Plan Description 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined-benefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that 
have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the governing state statutes of 
TMRS. 

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for TMRS; the report also provided detailed 
explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the 
System. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 
78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available on TMRS' website at 
www. TMRS.com. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in 
the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan proYisions for the City were as follows: 

Valuation date 
Employee deposit rate 
City matching rate 
Vesting period 
Retirement years (age/years of service) 
Updated service credit 
Annuity increase (to retirees) 
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12/31/2009 
7% 

2 to 1 
5 Years 

60/5, Any/25 
50% 

50% ofCPI 

12/31/2008 
7% 

2 to 1 
5 Years 

60/5, Any/25 
100% 

70% ofCPI 
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The City Council reduced the Updated Service Credit and Annuity Increase benefits as part of the 
Fiscal Year 2010-2011 budget process. Due to the delay between the actuarial Yaluation and the 
required contributions as explained below, this change has been incorporated into the actuarial 
results reported for the 2009 valuation. 

Contributions 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by 
the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal 
cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level 
percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an 
active member's projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes 
the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for each city. Both the 
normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of 
annually repeating benefits, Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. 

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the 
City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for 
budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis 
for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. 

Change in Actuarial Method and Phase-in Period 

At the end of 2007, the TMRS board approved actuarial changes which provided pre-funding of 
certain benefits which had been funded on a pay-as-you-go basis in the past. The board also 
approved an 8-year phase-in of these additional costs, effective January 1, 2009. The City has chosen 
to contribute the phase-in rate for Fiscal Year 2009 and Fiscal Year 2010 rather than the full rate. 
This results in a net pension obligation being recognized on the statement of net assets at the 
government-wide level for governmental activities, and at the fund level for enterprise funds. As part 
of the plan changes approved during the FY 2010-11 budget process, the City will begin contributing 
the full rate in calendar year 20 11. 

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress 

Valuation date 12'3112009 12.'31'2008 12/31/2007 
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Projected unit credit 
Amortization method Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll Level percent of payroll 
Remaining amortization period 28 years - closed period 29 years - closed period 30 years- closed period 
Asset valuation method 10-Yr Smoothed Market Amortized cost Amortized cost 
Investment rate of return 7.5% 7.5% 7.0% 
Projected salary increases Varies by age and service Varies by age and service Varies by age and service 
Inflation rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Cost-of-living-adjustments 1.5% (3% CPI) 2.1% (3% CPI) 2.1% (3% CPI) 
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2010 

Net pension obligation: 
Annual pension cost: 

Annual required contribution 
(ARC) $ 13,429,874 $ 

Interest on net pension 
obligation (NPO) 162,883 

Adjustment to the ARC (132,611) 

Annual pension cost 13,460,146 

Contributions made (10,459,152) 

Increase in NPO 3,000,994 

Net pension obligation, October 1 2,171,774 

Net pension obligation, September 30 $ 5,172,768 $ 

Percentage of APC contribution 78% 

Funding progress: 
Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial value of assets $ 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Funded ratio 
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) $ 
Annual covered payroll 
UAAL as a percentage of 

covered payroll 

2009 2008 

11,855,749 $ 8,919,048 

11,855,749 8,919,048 

(9,683,975) (8,919,048) 

2,171,774 

2,171 ,774 $ 

82% 100% 

12/3112009 
190,620,271 
266,366,493 

71.56% 
75,746,222 
58,679,443 

129.08% 

The Schedule of TMRS Funding Progress, which is found in the Required Supplementary 
Information immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
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Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual GAAP Adjushnents Actual budget positl\'e 
Original Final basis budsct basis basis (negative) 

Revenues: 
General property taxes ~ 36,812,814 $ 36,768.485 $ 36.792.431 $ $ 36,792,431 $ 23,946 
Franchise tees 12,570.315 12.ot!1,68l 12,274,090 12.274,990 193,309 
Sales tax 22,159,664 24,"62,930 24,967,161 (103.411) 24,863,750 100,820 
Mixed beYerage and bingo tax 409,349 392.483 391,823 391.8:!3 (660) 
911 revenue 991,714 1,076,788 1.079,142 1,0"9.142 2,354 
Intergovernmental revenue 43.039 43,039 43.039 
Licenses and permits 1,584.5 I 8 1,362,55':' 1,465.813 1,465,813 103.256 
Fines and forfeitur~s 3,935,916 3,779.0&6 3,891,149 90,000 3.981.149 202.063 
Interest revenue 298,083 110,113 109,356 109.356 (757) 
Civic center use 345,678 321,339 328.504 328,504 7,165 
Recreation and leisure 3,204,808 3,204,934 3,275,010 3,275,010 70,076 
Rents 20,976 20,976 20,976 
Public safety 1,741,563 1,671,744 1,818,803 1.818,803 147,059 
Other revenue 1.254,247 1,110,457 644,290 644,290 (466,167) 
Geneml administration 7,370,132 7,245,647 6,745,132 6,745,132 (500,515) 
Contributions 22,948 22.948 22.94!1 

Total revenues 92,678,801 93.888.244 93,870.567 !13.411) 93.857.156 (31.088) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 23,497,023 24,194,925 23,625,923 521,204 24,147,127 47,798 
Public safety 37,645,215 36,997,727 36,200,308 (20,287) 36,180,021 817,706 
Public services 14,956,502 14,985,723 14,668,740 (1,953) 14,666.787 318,936 
Library 3.231,381 3.246,180 3,155.503 36,717 3,i 92.280 53,900 
Parks and recreation I 1,102,985 10.715,528 10.330,345 43.903 10,374,248 341.280 
Public health 1,254,334 1,301,821 1,271,740 1,271,740 30,081 

Capital outlay 206,011 206,011 (206,011) 
Debt service: 

Interest and fiscal charges 27,214 (27.214) 
Payments for other obligations 560,562 (457.151) 103,411 (103,41 I) 

Total expenditures 91.687,440 91.441,904 90,046,406 95.219 90.141.625 1.300,279 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 991,361 2.446,340 3.824.161 (108,6302 3,715.531 1,269.191 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 481.383 481,383 481.383 
Transfers out (991,361) (2,43 I ,36 I) (4.221,361) (4,221,361) (1,790.000) 
Insurance recoveries 72,609 72.609 72,609 
Sale of capital assets 132.581 132.581 132,581 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (991,361) (2,43 1.36 I) (3.534.788) (3 ,534.788) (1.1 03.427) 

Net change in fund 
balance 14,979 289,373 (108,630) 180,743 165,764 

Fund balances, October I 15.799,292 15,474,800 15.843.805 IR5.074 16.028.879 554.079 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 15,799.292 $ 15,489,779 $ 16,133.178 $ 76.444 $ 16.209.622 $ ~19.843 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Actuarial 
valuation date 
December 31, 

.2007 
2008 
2009 

$ 

(a) 

Actuarial 
value 

of assets 

169,208.373 
176,026,211 
190,620,271 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Required Supplementary Information 

~chedule of Pension Benefits Funding Progress 

Last Three Fiscal Y cars 

(b) (c) (d) 
Unfunded 

Actuarial Funded AAL 
accrued ratio (UAAL) 

liability (AAL) (a~/(b) (b)-(a) 

s 262,453,428 64.47% $ 93,245,055 
276,540,082 63.65% I 00.513,871 
266,366,493 (2) 11.56% 75,746,222 

(e) 

Annual 
covered 

~avroll {1) 

$ 54,789,624 
58.633,974 
58,679,443 

UAALasa 
percentage of 

covered payroll 
(d)/( e) (1) 

170.19% 
171.43% 
129.08% 

(I) Co\'~ed annual payroll and UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll arc based on the fiscal year. The rest of the information is provided by 
TMRS on a calendar year basis. 

(2) In 2010 the City Council approved changes to the retiree pension program. Se~ footnote 4(e), for complete details. 

Actuarilll 
valuation date 

October 1, 

2007 (FY 2008) 
2008 (FY 2009 J 
2008 (FY 2010) 

$ 

Schedule of Postemployment Health Care Benefits Funding Progress (I) 

Current Fiscal Year 

(a) (b~ {c) !d) 
Unfunded 

Actuari~l Actuari!!l Fu!!rled A.A..L 
value accrued ratio (UAAL) 

of assets liabilitv (AAL) (a)/(b) (b)-(a) 

$ 80,705,746 $ 80,705,746 $ 
47,029,210 (2) 47,029,210 
60,896,447 (3) 60,896,447 

{e) 

A!!IH!!!l 
covered 

~avroll (1) 

51,033,789 
52,621,488 
53,511,198 

UAALas a 
percentage !!f 

covered payroll 
(d)/{ e) 

158.14% 
89.37% 

113.80% 

(I) Post-employment health care benefit valuations are performed every second year. Annual covered payroll is for the fiscal year indicated. 

(2) In 2009 the City Council approved significant changes to the retiree healthcare program. See footnote 4(d), for complete details. 

(3) In 2010 tbe C1ty used a lower investment rate ofreturn tor calculating the AAL. See footnote 4(d), for complete details. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

(A) Budgetary Information 

As set forth in the City Charter, the City Council adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, the Debt 
Sen'ice Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Enterprise Funds, and Internal Service FunJs. These annual budget 
.adoptions are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by each fund. The budgets for 
the Enierprise Funds are prepared under a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States, except that depreciation, certain capital expenses, .Nonoperating income and cl!rtain 
Nonoperating expense items are not considered. The legal level of control for each budget is at the fund 
level. That is to say, that total expenditures for each fund should not exceed total budgeted expenditures for 
that fund. The City Council is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments and 
ratifies, through the Budget Ordinance, any transfers and/or amendments made by the City Manager. 
Subsequent to year-end, the Budget Department provides the City Council with updated reports that shows 
additional expenditures/expenses and compares unaudited actual results with the adopted budgets. The 
Golf, Solid Waste, and Water and Sewer Funds include amounts for operations and debt service. 

Original Amended 
budget budget 

General $ 92,678,801 $ 93,873,265 
Debt Service 21,773,501 21,869,593 
Water and Sewer 44,791,169 42,538,657 
Solid Waste Services 12,356,272 12,018,100 
Golf 2,252,355 2,201 ,187 
Internal Service (Combined) 11,127,703 9,476,894 
Special Police 186,940 184,553 
State Grants 76,264 
Federal Grants 511,206 
Municipal Court Security 84,100 73,726 
Library 37,300 116,880 
Traffic Safety 856,131 1,489,814 
Wireless 911 436,000 426,886 
Judicial Efficiency 29,200 47,300 
Hotel/Motel Tax 5,147,143 4,828,780 
Technology 212,658 763,800 
Tax Increment Financing 300,000 563,516 
Richardson Improvement Corp. 129,297 137,781 
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(B) Adjustments to Revenues, Expenditures and Other Financing Sources and Uses from GAAP Basis to 
Basis of Budgeting 

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and 
other uses-GAAP basis 

Beginning of year adjustment for encumbrances not recognized 
as expenditures 

End of year adjustment for encumbrances not recognized as expenditures 
Reduction in sales tax recognized for GAAP basis 
Increase in fines and forfeitures recognized for GAAP basis 

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and 
other uses-budget basis 
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$ 289,373 

217,882 
(313,101) 
(103,411) 

90,000 

$ 180,743 
======== 



Special Revenue Funds 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

September 30,2010 

Special Revenue Funds are used by the City to account for revenues derived from specific intergovernmental 
grants, taxes, and proceeds that are designated to finance particular functions or activities of the City. The City 
has the following Special Revenue Funds: 

Special Police Funds - These funds are used to account for restricted proceeds received from seizures and 
confiscations awarded to the City by the judicial system. Funds are to be utilized by the Chief of Police in 
accordance with State law. 

State Grant Funds - This fund is used to account for restricted proceeds received from the State for various 
purposes. Funds are to be utilized in accordance with the respective requirements of each program. 

Federal Grant Funds- These funds are used to account for restricted proceeds received from federal agencies 
for various purposes. Funds are to be utilized in accordance with the respective requirements of each program. 

Municipal Court Building Security Fund - This fund is used to account for restricted proceeds received from 
Municipal Court fines for security expenditures as specified by State law. 

Library Fund- This fund is used to account for donations received from citizens for library activities. 

Traffic Safety Fund- This fund is used to account for restricted revenues generated by the City's red light 
camera enforcement program. Funds are to be utilized for automated signal enforcement, public traffic or 
pedestrian safety programs, and traffic enforcement and intersection improvements. 

Wireless 911 Fund - This fund is used to account for the wireless 911 revenue that is received from the State. 
Funds are to be spent in accordance with State law. 

Judicial Efficiency Fund- This fund is used to account for special revenue to be used to improve the efficiency 
of the administration of justice in the City. 

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the hotel-motel room tax and the operations of the 
Eisemann Center for the Performing Arts and Corporate Presentations. State law requires that hotel-motel room 
tax revenues be utilized for advertising and promotion of the City and other specified activities. 

Technology Fund- This fund is used to account for the Municipal Court technology fee charged to defendants 
convicted of misdemeanor offenses. 

Tax Increment Financing Fund- In 2006, the City Council adopted a Tax Increment Financing Zone. Ad 
valorem taxes on incremental growth in real property values in the Zone are used to contribute to development in 
the Zone. The City established a special revenue fund, Tax Increment Financing, to record these financial 
transactions. 

Richardson Improvement Corporation - The Richardson Improvement Corporation is a legally separate entity 
that acts, in essence, as a department of the City. The Corporation proYides certain parks and recreation functions 
for the City and the City provides a majority of the Corporation's support. 
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Budget to Actual Comparisons 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

September 30, 2010 

These schedules present the budget to actual comparisons for funds with legally adopted budgets that have not 
been presented as part of the Required Supplementary Information. Each comparison schedule shows the original 
budget amounts, the final adopted budget amounts, and the actual financial results as presented in the financial 
statements. A column is provided to show unusual items or items that are recorded for GAAP purposes that 
would not be considered for budgetary purposes. In addition, the variance between the final adopted budget 
amounts and the actual amounts on a budget basis is presented. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

September 30, 20 I 0 

S!!ecial Revenue Funds 
Municipal Ct. 

Special State Federal Bldg. Security Library Traffic Safety 
Police Funds Grant Funds Grant Funds Fund Fund Fond 

,\ssets: 
Cash and investments $ 456,764 $ 1,732 $ $ 103,651 $ 2,543 $ 986,702 
Intergovernmental receivables 1,580 125,488 
Hotel'motel tax receivable 
Trade receivables 452,646 
Prepaid items 

Total assets $ 456,764 $ 3,312 $ 125,488 $ 103,651 $ 2,543 $ 1,439,348 

Uabilities and fund balances: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 13,565 $ 1,580 $ $ $ 2,543 $ 483,147 
Retainage payable 2'?,208 
Accrued liabilities 
Escrow 62,742 
Due to other funds 88,005 
Deferred revenue 10,275 339,672 

Total liabilities 76,307 1,580 125,488 2,543 822,819 

Fund balances: 
Resen·ed for encumbrances 23,918 4,268 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Unresen·ed: 

Undesignated 356,539 1,732 103,651 612,261 

Total fund balances 380,457 1,732 103,651 616,529 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 456,764 $ 3,312 $ 125 488 $ 103,651 $ 2,543 $ 1,439,348 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Balance Sheet- Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

September 30, 2010 

Judicial 
Sl!ecial Revenue Fonds 

Tu Richardson 
Wireless Efficiency Hotel/Motel Technology Increment Improvement 
911 Fund Fund Tax Fund Fund FinancinG Corl!oratlon Total 

s 203,431 $ 62,618 $ 1,053,770 $ 584,204 $ 407,205 $ 77,432 $ 3,940,052 
127,068 

411 ,758 411,758 
7,256 42 459,944 

88,750 2,729 91479 

$ 203.431 s 62,618 $ 1,561,534 $ 584,204 $ 407,205 $ 80,203 $ 5.030,301 

$ $ 30,740 $ 12~,818 $ 28,440 $ $ 8,891 $ 694,724 
27,208 

72,193 72,193 
62,742 
88,005 

438 902 788,849 

30,740 636,913 28,440 8,891 1,733,721 

13,231 256,655 5,214 303,286 
88,750 2,729 91,479 

203,431 31,878 822,640 299,109 401,991 68,583 2,901,815 

203,431 31,878 924,621 555,764 407 205 71,312 3,296,580 

$ 203,431 $ 62,618 $ 1,561.534 $ 584,204 $ 407 205 $ 80,203 $ 5,030,301 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Statement of Re,·enues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Nonmajor Go•:crnmental Funds 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

S(!ecial Revenue Funds 
Municipal Ct. 

Special State Federal Bldg. Securil~· Library Traffic 
Police Funds Grant Funds Grant Funds Fund Fund Safety Fund 

Revenues: 
General property taxes $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Hotel/motel tax 
Eisemann center revenue 
911 revenue 
Intergovernmental revenue 10,714 76,007 806,297 
Fines and forfeitures 89,617 93,480 1,432,735 
Interest revenue 866 169 160 2,712 
Contributions 18,657 18,992 
Other revenue 3,709 19,669 

Total revenues 123,563 76,007 806,297 93,649 38,821 1,435,447 

Expenditures: 
General government 
Parks and recreation 
Public health 22,740 
Public safety 165,025 7,356 214,688 66,963 1,360,626 
L1brary j0,890 58,357 
General administration 
Capital outlay 20,124 8,027 591.609 6,102 206,972 

Total expenditures 185,149 69 013 806,297 66 963 64,459 1,567,598 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (61,586) 6 994 26,686 (25,638) (132,151) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
T~~:;feru o!!t {1" 01;:;:\ (8,895) (54,072) , ....... , ....... ~, 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 12,594 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (3,322) (8,895) (54,072) 

Net change in fund balances (64,908) (1,901) 26,686 (79,710) (132,151) 

Fund balance, October 1 445,365 3,633 76 965 79,710 748 680 

Fund balance, September 30 $ 380,457 $ 1,732 $ $ 103,651 s $ 616.529 

See accompanying independent auditors ' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chan1,"'s in Fund Balance-
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Special Revenue Funds 
Judicial Tax Richardson 

Wireless Efficiency Hotel/Motel Technology Increment Improvement 
911 Fund Fund Tax Fund Fund Financin!l Corporation Total 

$ $ $ $ $ 263,052 $ $ 263,052 
2,712,966 2,712,966 
2,142,769 2,142,769 

442,342 442,342 
67,012 960,030 

6,249 69,620 1,691,701 
778 125 1,805 2,069 1,360 10,044 

6,711 53,500 97,860 
36,320 59,698 

443,120 6,374 4,893,860 78,400 331,424 53,500 8,380,462 

5,765 4,253,301 69,247 155,779 4,484,092 
123,371 123,371 

22,740 
26,678 1,841,336 

89,247 
330,000 150,000 480,000 

33,325 385,719 1,251,878 

26,678 39,090 4,583,301 454,966 305,779 123,371 8,292,664 

416,442 (32,716) 310,559 (376,566) 25,645 (69,871) 87,798 

129,297 129,297 
(400,000) (6,7i0) (2.50,06i) (8,500) (744,i54) 

12,594 

(400,000) (6,710) (250,061) 120,797 (602,263) 

16,442 (32,716) 310,559 (383,276) (224,416) 50,926 (514,465) 

186,989 64,594 614,062 939.040 631,621 20.386 3,811,045 

$ 203,431 $ 31 878 s 924,621 $ 555,764 $ 407,205 $ 71,312 $ 3,296,580 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Debt Service Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Variance witb 
final budget-

BudGeted amounts Actual positive 
Ori~lnal Final amounts (neGative) 

Revenues: 
General property taxes $ 21,221,430 $ 21,089,857 $ 21,029,516 $ (60,341) 
Interest reYenue 35,746 10,128 10,093 (35) 
Interest received with bond proceeds 514,554 ~514,554) 

Total revenues 21,257,176 21,614,539 21,039,609 (574,930) 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 12,781,203 12,781,203 12,547,775 233,428 
Interest and fiscal charges 8,948,795 9,044,887 9,224,683 (179,796) 
Payments for other obligations 43,503 43,503 273,956 (230,453) 

Total expenditures 21,773,501 21,869,593 22,046,414 (176,821) 

Excess of expenditures 
m.-er revenues (516,325) (255,054) (1,006,805) (751,751) 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 350,000 400,000 455,000 55,000 
Net proceeds from issuance:refunding bonds 208,060 208,060 

Total other financing sources 350,000 400,000 663,060 263,060 

Net change in fund balance (166,325) 144,946 (343,745) (488,691) 

Fund balances, October I 1,984,238 1,966,359 1,947,347 (19,012) 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 1,817,913 $ 2,111,305 s 1,603,602 $ (507,703) 

See accompanying notes independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Police Funds 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual positive 
Ori&inal Final amounts (ne&ative) 

Revenues: 
Fines and forfeitures $ 93,000 $ 40,917 $ 89,617 $ 48,700 
Intergovernmental revenue 46,500 37,451 10,714 (26,737) 
Contributions 4,000 15,007 18,657 3,650 
Other reYenue 5,000 15,730 3,709 (12,021) 
Interest income 2,969 989 866 (123) 

Total rc' enues 151,469 110,094 123,563 13,469 

Expenditures: 
Public safety 22,940 52,432 165,025 (112,593) 
Capital outlay 164,000 117,286 20,124 97,162 

Total expenditures 186,940 169,718 185,149 (15,431) 

Excess of revenues oYer 
expenditures (35,471) (59,624) (61,586) (1,962) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (14,835) (15,916) (1,081) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 12,594 12,594 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) {14,835) p,322) 11,513 

Net change in fund balance (35,471) (74,459) (64,908) 9,551 

Fund balances, October 1 365,251 445,365 445,365 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 329,780 $ 370,906 $ 380,457 $ 9,551 

Sec accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - State Grant Funds 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual positive 
Original Final amounts (negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue $ $ 72,631 $ 76,007 $ 3,376 
Interest income 

Total revenues 72,631 76,007 3,376 

Expenditures: 
Public health 37,323 22,740 14,583 
Public safety 7,356 (7,356) 
Library 38,941 38,917 24 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 76,264 69,013 7,251 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (3,633) 6,994 10,627 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out ~8,895) (8,895) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (8,895) (8,895) 

Net change in fund balance (3,633) (1,901) 1,732 

Fund balances, October I 3,633 3,633 

Fund balances, September 30 $ $ $ 1,732 $ 1,732 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Municipal Court Security Fund 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Budgeted amounts Actual 
Original Final amounts 

ReYenues: 
Fines and forfeitures $ 89,000 $ 84,000 $ 93,480 
Interest income 487 163 169 

Total revenues 89,487 84,163 93,649 

Expenditures: 
Public safety 84,100 73,726 66,963 

Total expenditures 84,100 73,726 66,963 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 5,387 10,437 26,686 

Net change in fund balance 5,387 10,437 26,686 

Fund balances, October 1 67,682 76,965 76,965 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 73,069 $ 87,402 $ 103,651 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance with 
final budget-

positive 
(ne~ative) 

$ 9,480 
6 

9,486 

6,763 

6,763 

16,249 

16,249 

$ 16,249 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Library Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

\' ariance with 
final budget-

BudGeted amounts Actual positive 
Orig!nal Final amounts (negative) 

Revenues: 
Contributions $ 15,000 $ 16,000 $ 18,992 $ 2,992 
Fines and forfeitures 
Other revenue 22,500 21,000 19,669 (1,331) 
Interest income 630 170 160 (10) 

Total revenues 38.130 37,170 38,821 1,651 

Expenditures: 
Library 32,300 23,600 58,357 (34,757) 
Capital outlay 5,000 7,600 6,102 1,498 

Total expenditures 37,300 31,200 64,459 (33,259) 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 830 5,970 ~25,638) pl,608) 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (85,680) (54,072) 31,608 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (85,680) (54,072) 31,608 

Net change in fund balance 830 (79,710) (79,710) 

Fund balances, October 1 78,821 79,710 79,710 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 79,651 $ $ $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Revenues: 
Fines 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Public satety 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Traffic Safety Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Budgeted amounts 
Original Final 

$ 711,934 $ 1,394,172 $ 
1,918 2,814 

713,852 1,396,986 

822,926 1,344,426 
33,205 145,388 

856,131 1,489,814 

(142,279) (92,828) 

Net change in fund balance (142,279) (92,828) 

Fund balances, October I 326,874 748,680 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 184,595 $ 655,852 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance with 
final budget-

Actual positive 
amounts (negative) 

1,432,735 $ 38,563 
2,712 (102) 

1,435,447 38,461 

1,360,626 (i6,200) 
206,972 (61,584) 

1,567,598 (77,784) 

(132,151) (39,323) 

(132,151) (39,323) 

748,680 

616,529 $ (39,323) 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Federal Grant Funds 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Budgeted amounts 
Ori&inal Final 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue $ $ 511 ,206 $ 
Interest income 

Total revenues 511,206 

Expenditures: 
Public safety 199,597 
Capital outlay 311,609 

Total expenditures 511,206 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balances, October I 

Fund balances, September 30 $ $ s 

Sec accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance with 
final budget-

Actual positive 
amounts (negative~ 

806,297 $ 295,091 

806,297 295,091 

214,688 (15,091) 
591,609 (280,000) 

806,297 (295,091) 

$ 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Wireless 911 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual positive 
Ori&!nal Final amounts (neGative) 

Revenues: 
911 revenue $ 433,376 $ 433,655 $ 442,342 $ 8,687 
Interest income 1,854 747 778 31 

Total revenues 435,230 434,402 443,120 8,718 

Expenditures: 
Public safety 36,000 26,886 26,678 208 

Total expenditures 36,000 26,886 26,678 208 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 399,230 407,516 416,442 8,926 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (400,0002 (400,000) (400,000) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) 

Net change in fund balance (770) 7,516 16,442 8,926 

Fund balances, October I 172,306 186,989 !86,989 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 171,536 $ 194,505 $ 203,431 $ 8,926 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Judicial Efficiency Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Budgeted amounts 
iJdginal Final 

Revenues : 
Fines and forfeitures $ 7,000 $ 6,700 $ 
Interest income 365 120 

Total revenues 7,365 6,820 

Expenditures: 

General government 9,200 15,000 
Capital outlay 20,000 32,300 

Total expenditures 29,200 47,300 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures (21 ,835) (40,480) 

Net change in fund balance (21,835) (40,480) 

Fund balances, October I 62,682 64,594 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 40,847 $ 24,114 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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\·ariance with 
final budget-

Actual positive 
amounts (negative) 

6,249 $ (451) 
125 5 

6,374 i446) 

5,765 9,235 
33,325 ~1,025) 

39,090 8,210 

(32,716~ 7,764 

(32,716) 7,764 

64,594 

31,878 $ 7,764 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Hotel-Motel Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual GAAP Adjustments Actual budget positive 
O l'ij(inal Final basis bu!!getbasi.s basis !nesative) 

Revenues: 
Hotel/motel taxes s 2,848,356 s 2,585,873 $ 2,712,966 s (30,630) $ 2,682,336 $ 96,463 
Parking fees 179,843 186,843 178,774 178,774 (8,069) 
Eisemann center revenues 1,952,350 2,019,480 1,963,995 1,963,995 (55,485) 
Miscellaneous re-\enue 36,320 36,320 36,320 
Interest income 15,013 1.556 1,805 1.805 249 

Total rc' enucs 4,995,562 4,793,752 4,893,860 po,630) 4.863,230 69.478 

Expenditures: 
General govemrncnt: 

.\rts 300,000 300,000 295,000 295,000 5,000 
Miscellaneous 10,200 19,200 305 305 18,895 
Auditorium - administration 3,657,789 3,703,873 3,520,503 6,094 3,526,397 1'?7,276 
Parking garage 499,154 475,707 437,493 291 437,784 37,923 
General administration 330,000 330,000 330.000 330,000 

Total expenditures 4,797,143 4,828,780 4,583.301 6,385 4 589,6~6 239,094 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 198,419 (35,028) 310,559 {37.015) 273,544 308,572 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Tmnsfcrs out {350,000} 

Total other financing sources (uses) (350,000) 

Net change in fund balance (151,581) (35,028) 310,559 (37,015) 273,544 308,572 

Fund balances, October I 464,434 382,522 614.062 (238,386! 375,676 ~6,846! 

Fund balance>, September 30 $ 312.853 s 347,494 $ 924,621 $ (275.401) $ 649,220 $ 301,726 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Technology Fund 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual positive 
Original Final amounts ( neg;ative) 

Revenues: 
Fines and forfeitures $ 60,000 $ 71,000 $ 69,620 $ (1,380) 
Interest income 6,204 1,897 2,069 172 
Contributions 6,711 6,711 

Total revenues 66,204 72,897 78,400 5,503 

Expenditures: 
General government 22,658 48,800 69,247 (20,447) 
Capital outlay 190,000 715,000 385,719 329,281 

Total expenditures 212,658 763,800 454,966 308,834 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures (146,454) (690,903) (376,566) 314,337 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (6,710) (6,710) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,710) (6,710) 

Net change in fund balance (146,454) (690,903) (383,276) 307,627 

Fund balances, October 1 937,937 939,040 939,040 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 791,483 $ 248,137 $ 555,764 $ 307,627 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule -Tax Increment Financing 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Variance with 
final budget-

Budgeted amounts Actual positive 
Original Final amounts (negative) 

Revenues: 
General property tax $ 266,036 $ 263,695 $ 263,052 $ (643) 
Intergovernmental revenue 58,237 67,012 67,012 
Interest income 2,750 1,347 1,360 13 

Total revenues 327,023 332,054 331,424 (630) 

Expenditures: 
General government 150,000 163,455 155,779 7,676 
General administration 150,000 150,000 150,000 

Total expenditures 300,000 313,455 305,779 7,676 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 27,023 18,599 25,645 7,046 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (250,061) (250,061) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (250,061) (250,061) 

Net change in fund balance 27,023 (231,462) (224,416) 7,046 

Fund balances, October I 636,460 631,621 631,621 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 663,483 $ 400,159 $ 407,205 $ 7,046 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Richardson Improvement Corporation 

Year ended September 30, 20 I 0 

Budseted amounts Actual 
Original Final amounts 

Re.-enues: 
Contributions $ $ 8,500 $ 53,500 

8,500 53,500 

Expenditures: 
Parks and recreation 129,297 129,281 123,371 
Capital outiay 

Total expenditures 129,297 129,281 123,371 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (129,297) (120,781) (69,871) 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 129,297 129,297 129,297 
Transfers out (8,500) (8,500) 

Total other financing sources 129,297 120,797 120,797 

Net change in fund balance 16 50,926 

Fund balances, October 1 19,695 20,386 20,386 

Fund balances, September 30 $ 19,695 $ 20,402 $ 71,312 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Variance with 
final budget-

positive 
(negative) 

$ 45,000 

45,000 

5,910 

5,910 

50,910 

50,910 

$ 50,910 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXA.S 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Internal Service Funds 

September 30,2010 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by certain departments 
to other departments within the City. The City uses two internal service funds: 

Central Services Fund- This fund is used to account for warehouse, mail, and records management operations of 
the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Insurance and Flexible Spending Fund- This fund is used to account for the health insurance program provided 
by the City to its employees and to their dependents on a subsidized cost basis. Additionally, employee 
contributions to the flexible benefits plan and related expenditures are accounted for within this fund. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Statement of Net Assets- All Internal Service Funds 

September 30, 2010 

Insurance 
Central and Flexible 

Services Fund Seending Fund Total 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments $ 267,476 $ 3,020,591 $ 3,288,067 
Accounts receivable 257,777 257,777 
Inventory of supplies, at cost 214,723 214,723 
Prepaid items 1,851 1,851 

Total current assets 484,050 3,278,368 3,762,418 

Capital assets: 
Land 56,011 56,011 
Buildings 259,990 259,990 
Improvements 23,023 23,023 
Vehicles, machinery, and equipment 268,859 268,859 

Total capital assets 607,883 607,883 

Less accumulated depreciation {550,834) (550,834) 

Total capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 57,049 57,049 

Total assets 541,099 3,278,368 3,819,467 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 9,708 186,530 196,238 
Compensated absences 471 2,964 3,435 
Unpaid claims liabilities 700,000 700,000 

Total current liabilities 10,179 889,494 899,673 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 3,457 23,982 27,439 
Post employment benefits 105,618 52,785 158,403 

Total concurrent liabilities 109,075 76,767 185,842 

Total liabilities 119,254 966,261 1,085,515 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 57,049 57,049 
Unrestricted 364,796 2,312,107 2,676,903 

Total net assets $ 421,845 $ 2,312,107 $ 2,733,952 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Fund Net Assets- All Internal Service Funds 

Year ended September 30, 2010 

Insurance 
Central and Flexible 

Services Fund Spending Fund Total 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 557,388 $ $ 557,388 
City and employee contributions 28,345 9,413,832 9,442,177 
Intergovernmental revenue 11 75,663 75,674 
Miscellaneous 17 17 

Total operating revenues 585,761 9,489,495 10,075,256 

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 307,33 1 233,695 541,026 
Premiums 357,727 357,727 
Professional and technical services 7,073 542,595 549,668 
Property services 93,405 93,405 
Other purchased services 450 63,904 64,354 
Insurance claims 8,349,927 8,349,927 
Supplies 12,767 2,458 15,225 
Depreciation 2,077 2,077 

Total operating expenses 423,103 9,550,306 9,973,409 

Operating income (loss) 162,658 (60,811) 101,847 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Interest revenue 158 5,233 5,391 

Total nonoperating revenues 158 5,233 5,391 

Change in net assets 162,816 (55,578) 107,238 

Net assets, October 1 259,029 2,367,685 2,626,714 

Net assets, September 30 $ 421,845 $ 2,312,107 $ 2,733,952 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows- All Internal Service Funds 

Y car ended September 30, 20 1 0 

Insurance 
Central and Flexible 

Services Fund Spending Fund Total 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from service users $ 585,761 $ $ 585,761 
Cash received from City, employee, and other contributions 9,488,433 9,488,433 
Cash payments for premiums and other operating expenses (173,237) (1,018,318) (1,191,555) 
Cash payments to employees (316,316) (211,229) (527,545) 
Cash payments for claims (8,517 ,646) (8,517,646) 

Net cash prm.idcd by (used for) operating activities 96,208 (258,760) (162,552) 

Cash flows from investing activity: 
Interest received on investments 158 6,132 6,290 

Net cash provided b) investing activity !58 6,132 6,290 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 96,366 (252,628) (156,262) 

Cash and cash equivalents, October I 171,110 3,273,219 3,444,329 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 267,476 $ 3,020,591 $ 3,288,067 

Reconciliation of operating Joss to net cash provided by (used for) 
operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 162,658 $ (60,811) $ 101,847 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 2,077 2,077 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in inventory of supplies, at cost (45,199) (45,199) 
Increase in accounts receivables (214,772) (214,772) 
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid items (1,851) 26,330 24,479 
Decrease in accounts payable (12,492) (31,972) (44,464) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (4,919) (4,289) (9,208) 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (32,482) 3,453 (29,029) 
Increase in post-employment benefits 28,416 23,301 51,717 

Total adjustments (66,450) (197,949) (264,399) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 96,208 $ (258,760) $ (162,552) 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of net assets: 
Total cash and investments per the statement of net assets $ 267,476 $ 3,020,591 $ 3,288,067 

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30,2010 $ 267,476 $ 3,020,591 $ 3,288,067 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statistical Section 

September 30,2010 

Tables in the statistical section present detailed information as a context for understanding what the information 
in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the overall 
financial health of the City. 

Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the City's financial performance and wdl-being have changed over 
time 

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
the City's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and 
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the 
City's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to 
help the reader understand how the information in the City's financial report relates 
to the sen·ices the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Pages 

95- 100 

101 - 104 

105-109 

110 - 111 

112 - 114 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 for the year ended 
September 30, 2002. Schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that 
year. 
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Table I 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Statement of Net Assets by Component 

Last nine fiscal years 

(In thousands) 

Fbcal Year 
2002 io!B 2004 2005 ~!iii~ 2007 2008 2009 ioiii 

Govenunental activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 113,782 $ 115,163 s 103,076 $ 107,132 $ 103,650 $ 101,178 s 118,380 $ 105,653 $ 112,015 
Restricted 9,829 5,629 4,575 7,033 5,720 12.~04 6,295 22,864 22.180 
Unrestricted 6,320 7,956 16,140 10,514 21.045 26,098 8,487 903 !5,654! 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 129,931 $ 1211.748 $ 123,791 $ 124,679 . $ 130,415 s 139,780 $ 133,162 $ 129.420 $ 128,541 

Business-type activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelatcd debt s 58,469 $ 62,561 $ 62,852 $ 60,072 s 61,323 $ 62,163 s 59,494 $ 55,054 $ 53,551 
Restricted 13,571 10.275 1,921 2,312 5,013 2,990 3,627 3,873 2,338 
Unrestricted 5 SOl 3,934 12.727 14,320 18.578 16,018 14,566 17,625 1!!,192 

Total business-type activities net assets s 77,541 s 76770 $ 77,500 s 76,704 $ 84914 $ 81,171 $ 77,687 $ 76,552 s 74,081 

Primacy government: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 172,251 $ 177.724 $ 165,928 s 167,204 $ 164,973 $ 163,341 $ 177,874 $ 160,707 $ 165,.566 
Restricted 23.400 15;904 6,496 9,345 10.733 15,494 9,922 26,737 24,518 
Unrestricted 11 821 11,890 28,867 24,834 39,623 42,116 23,053 18,528 12,538 

Total primary government net assets $ 207,472 $ 205,518 $ 201,291 $ 201.383 $ 215.329 $ 220,951 $ 210,849 $ 205,972 $ 202,622 

\0 
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Tablel 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Changes in Not Assets 

Last nine fiscal years 

(In thousands) 

(Accrual basis of 'ICcounting) 

Fiscal Year 
lOOl zooJ lDjj;l 1005 lOOti 2007 1008 iii09 liilli 

Expenses: 
GO\ =mental activities: 

General government s 16.195 $ 22,976 $ 22,253 s 22,787 $ 24,339 $ 25,381 $ 30,689 s 27.784 $ 27,767 
Public safety 31,766 30,141 31,777 34,896 35,268 37,774 41,630 43:610 44,318 
Public services 20,761 19,534 19,961 19,257 19.117 20,210 24,701 27,070 26,652 
Lilmuy 2,909 3,105 3,050 3,060 3,097 3.988 4,145 4,224 4,099 
Parks and recreation 9,501 lo,3n 10,412 10,936 11,765 12,576 13,814 13,658 14,507 
Public health 1,066 1,139 1.168 1,215 1,310 1,344 1,483 1,582 1,460 
Interest and fiscal charges 8,623 8332 7491 _ ____l2!.9_ ___ 8,088 10,116 11,094 9,577 8,169 

Total governmental activities expenses 90,821 95,604 96 112 _ ___2MIL 102,984 111,389 127,556 127,505 126,972 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 31,616 32,849 33,643 35,487 37,820 40,918 44,718 45,746 46,168 
Solid waste 9,309 9,012 9,565 9,950 10,387 11,193 12,049 12,326 12,712 
Golf 2187 2.256 2,328 2,456 2,354 2.143 2,332 2,402 2294 

Total business-type activities expenses 43 112 44,117 45,536 47,893 50,561 54,254 59,099 60,474 61,174 

<0 
0) 

Total primary government expenses $ 133,933 $ 139,721 $ 141,648 $ 147,563 $ 153,545 $ 165,643 $ 186,655 $ 187,979 $ 188,146 

Program revenue~: 
Oovenunental activities: 

Charges for sen ices: 
General government $ 3,098 $ 3,290 s 2,294 $ 2,231 $ 2,039 $ 2,138 s 3,144 $ 3,724 $ 3,111 
Publie safety 7,533 7,030 6,500 7,086 7,149 '1,313 7,937 8,903 8,398 
Public services 1,248 1,249 1,421 1,607 1,124 1,968 1,527 1,379 1,956 
Library 131 137 128 145 149 170 186 190 184 
Parks and recreation 2,174 2,454 2,498 2,563 2,679 2,796 2,898 2,891 3.291 
Public healtb 190 178 197 186 189 196 249 255 264 

Opemting grants and contributions 28 99 519 1,221 731 576 1,061 368 642 
Capital grants and contributions 11,936 4,620 2,443 1,245 ___ 3,766 5,810 4,991 10059 10144 

Total gove~ntal activities program 
26,338 revenues 19057 16,000 16.284 17,826 20,967 21,993 27,769 27,990 

Business-type activities: 
ChargeS for services: 

Water and sewer 30,359 30,720 32.982 33,921 43,938 34,645 40,338 43,116 42,807 
Solid waste 8,855 9,195 10,116 10.255 10,687 10.989 11,330 12.262 12,274 
Golf 2,151 2,090 2,028 1,952 2,163 2,022 2,144 2,045 1,536 
Capital grants and contn'butions 3,860 972 880 301 835 1,375 701 872 1,228 

Total business-type activities 
program re;·enues 45,225 42.977 46,006 46.429 sum 49,031 54.513 58.295 57,845 

Total primary government 

n- program revenues $ 71,563 $ 62.034 $ 62,006 $ 62,713 $ 75,449 $ 69,998 $ 76,506 s 86,064 $ 85,835 

0 a s· 
c: 
tD .e 



Tablel 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Changes in Net Assets 

Last nine fiscal years 

(In thousands) 

(Accrual basis of accounting) 

FlsuiYear 
iiMII 2003 2004 2005 lilll4l 2007 2008 2009 iiiiO 

Net (expense) revenue: 
Governmental activities $ (64,483) s (76,547) s (80,112) $ (83,386) $ (85,158) $ (90,422) $ (105,563) s (99,736) s (98,982) 
Business-type activities 2,113 {1,140) 470 {1 ,464) 7,062 (5.223) (4,586) (2,179) (3,329) 

Total primary government net expense $ ~62,370! $ (77,687l $ (79,642) s (84,850) $ (78.02&.._$ (95,645) $ ~110.149) $ (101,915) s (102,311! 

General revenues and other changes in net assets: 
Go\·emmental activities: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes $ 39,535 s 41,967 s 40,723 $ 44,573 s 46,550 $ 53,777 $ 55,264 $ 57,574 $ 58,10$ 
Sales taxes 18,956 19,337 20,170 21.046 21.923 23.646 23,286 20.815 24,967 
Otherta:;;es 2,588 2,554 2,925 2,832 3,302 3,540 3,719 2,986 3,105 

Fmncbise fees 11,244 10,837 10,020 10,353 15,640 11,231 11 ,871 12,206 12,275 
Interest earnings 1,423 669 1,317 1,698 3,370 6,260 4,904 2,298 332 
Insurance Blld other recoveries 2,500 173 
Transfers in (out) (117) (19) (695) 
Gain on sale of assets 1,272 109 1,160 18 134 14 

1,0 
Total govenunental activities 73,746 75,364 75,155 84,274 90 894 99.787 98,945 95,994 98.103 

-.J Busines!Hype activities: 
Interest earnings 641 318 199 425 871 1,317 868 295 73 
lnswance and other recoveries 194 30 
Transfers in (out) 117 19 695 
Gain on sale of assets 4 51 61 49 277 133 117 730 90 

Total business-type activities 645 369 260 -~- 1,148 1,480 1,102 1.044 858 

Total primary government $ 74,391 $ 75,733 $ 75,415 s 84,942 s 92,04l,_ $ 101,267 $ 100,047 $ 97.038 $ 98,961 

Change in net assets: 
Governmental activities $ 9,263 $ (1,183) $ (4.957) $ 888 $ 5,736 s 9,365 s (6.618) $ (3.742) s (879) 
Business-I}'J'C octivities 2.758 (771! 730 (796) 8 210 p,743) (3,484) !1,135) (2,471) 

Total primary government $ 12,021 $ (1,954) $ (4,227) $ 92 
~ 

$ 13,94~ $ 5,622 $ (10,102) $ (4,877) $ (3,350) 
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00 

Geneml Fund: 
Rescn~ for other"' 
Unreserved 

Total general fund 

All other go•:emrnental fmds· 
Reserved for: 

Capital projecU 
Debt service 
Other • 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 
Capital funds 

Total ail other governmental funds 

• Includes prepaid items. inventory. and encumbrances 

2001 2002 

$ 642 $ 637 
11,561 11.~20 

$ 12,203 12.157 

s 4,025 
2,396 2,210 

51 6,812 

6,116 3,830 
39,177 4,133 

$ 47,740 s 21.010 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Fund BalilllCeS, Governmental Funds 

Last ten fiscal years 

2003 2004 2005 

s 715 $ 771 s 954 
11,703 12,408 13,062 

12.418 $ 13,179 14,016 

$ 5,323 s 4,187 $ 26,233 
2.451 1,481 2,010 
5~502 1,530 2,719 

2,119 2,322 2,051 
],334 161 2,670 

$ 16.729 $ 9,681 35,683 

Table3 

2006 2007 2008 2009 1010 ----
s 935 s 949 $ 986 too 730 

14,208 14,562 15,259 ~~ 15,403 

s IS 143 $ 15.511 $ - 16245 $ 15,844 $ 16,133 

72,217 s 55,910 36,223 s 19,375 80,012 
1,452 2,116 1,785 1,947 1.604 
4,431 13,897 27,021 16,799 10,518 

2,703 3,153 3,292 3.779 2,902 
8,751 11784 2,191 ---•-.o~ 4,425 

$ 89,554 $ - 861860 70,512 42,930 $ 99,461 



Table4 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Changes in Fund Balanc:es, Govenunenllll Funds 

Last ten fiscal years 

(In thousands) 

Fiscal lear 
2DDI l002 2illl] wii4 iiiiS zliij6 1Do7 2008 _____1!!! __ __ 2010 

Rev.nues: 
General property ta;;es s 35,683 $ 39,625 $ 40,858 41,694 44,615 s 46,493 $ 53,631 $ 55,101 57,t14 58,085 
F!8llchise fees 10,120 11.244 10,837 10,020 10,353 15,640 11,231 11.871 12.<06 12,275 
Sales tax 23,473 18,956 19,337 20,170 21,046 21,923 23,646 23,286 23,070 24,967 
MlKed beverage and Bingo Tu 356 298 301 308 317 353 372 406 401 392 
Hotel/motel taxes 2,844 2,290 2,254 2,617 2,515 2,94Q 3,168 3,314 2.~.85 2.713 
911 Revenue 1,440 1,512 1,360 1,332 1,319 1.308 1,316 1.336 1.377 1,521 
Intergovernmental revenoe 621 5,371 1,962 1,664 1,458 1,664 4,071 3,312 1,366 4,946 
Licenses and pennils 1,612 1,403 1,613 1,426 1,563 1.161 1.865 1,506 l,l75 1,466 
Fines and forfeitures 3,706 4,565 4,321 4,546 4,100 4.208 4,587 5.008 5,550 5,583 
Interest revenue 4,366 1,471 662 1,314 1,652 3~221 6,087 4,820 2,278 327 
Civic center usc 249 210 236 186 231 237 286 384 334 328 
Eisemann center revenue (I) 348 933 1,207 1,520 1,571 1,422 1,936 2,452 2,143 
Recreation and leisure 2,799 2,149 2.454 2,490 2,563 2,679 2,796 2,898 2,891 3,275 
Rents(2) 921 1,039 12 16 26 12 59 79 21 
Public safety (2) 997 1,311 1,334 1,263 1,480 1,549 1,672 1,759 1,819 
Conlributions 7,368 7,109 2,222 897 951 2,743 2,150 565 138 293 
Participation 493 271 237 39 53 152 164 104 56 171 
Other nM:Oue 2,448 836 1,236 1,124 128 533 853 1,055 864 886 
General administration 5.503 5,369 "5,156 5,589 5 602 5,738 6,643 6968 6,932 6,745 

\0 Total revenues 103,081 104,945 98,329 97.969 101.965 114,079 125,149 125,601 ~~ 127.956 
\0 E~.penditures: 

General government 20,079 19,919 24,012 23,957 24,248 26.006 27,960 32,311 29,260 28,358 
Public safety 28,840 29,D48 28,021 29,699 32,909 33,002 35,186 36,507 38,860 38,193 
Public services 11,752 12,188 11,568 12,153 12,680 12,875 13,938 17,328 19,542 18,613 
Lilmuy 2,397 2,511 2,690 2,487 2,533 2.568 3,393 3,407 3,640 3,527 
Parb and recn:ation 8,988 1,879 9,178 9,202 9,749 10,343 10,756 11 ,026 11,049 11,181 
Public health 1,032 1,043 1,100 1,156 1,202 1,245 1,311 1,315 1,401 1,298 
General administmtion 545 458 415 430 230 255 291 427 480 555 
Capital outlay 54,653 50,295 19,857 8,696 6,262 14,808 20,699 27,552 37,125 20,934 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 7,!51 8,626 9,060 9,354 16.588 7,887 10,241 11,311 12,308 12,548 
Interest and fiScal charge• 11,470 11.150 8,150 7,841 7,094 7,849 10.489 10,183 9,620 9,063 
Payments for other obligations 103 116 351 267 544 615 456 474 2,690 1,228 
lss\Wlce coslii 75 311 220 197 527 I 054 29 33 ____ 2!!.._ 141 

Total OKpendi!Ures 147,085 144244 114,622 105,439 114,566 ll81507 134,749 151,874 166,194 146,339 

Deficiency of revenues 
under <Kpenditures (44,004) (39,599) (16,293) (7,470) (12,601) (4,428) (8,900) (26,273) ~~ (18,383) 



Table4 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Changes in Fund Balances, Go\'emmental Funds 

Last ten fiscal years 

(In thousands) 

llilil 2002 lliii] Iiiii4 1005 
Fbcall!!r 

200ii 2007 lOiili 180§ lOIO 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in $ 1,607 $ 5,180 $ 5,066 $ 3,089 $ 20,840 $ 7,958 s 6,740 $ 4,916 $ 4,030 $ 4,520 
Transfer out (1,643) (5,180) (5,066) (3,089) (20,840) (7,958) (6)40) (5,033) (4.049) (5,215) 
Issuance of certificates of obligation 12,135 7,524 4,600 2,790 2,640 3,220 4,500 5,370 7,520 
Issuance of general obligation bonds 11,335 5,000 3.000 22,925 53,775 5,933 60,665 
Issuance of refunding bonds 10,762 9:443 11 ,910 10,050 25,665 14,460 18,440 
Issuance of other obligations 260 19 4,531 666 197 61 1,592 1.740 1,124 
Premium oo boods 50 2,604 3,016 772 7.378 
Discount on bonds (25) (31) 
PaymetJt to refunded bond escrow ag011t (10,622) (9.384) (11,682) (10,620) (26,397) (14,Q92) (19,502) 
Lease payments 183 84 
Insurance and other recoveries 2,500 173 218 127 128 
Proceeds from sale of capUal assets 176 140 58 139 --~ 667 1.589 125 226 145 - ------

Total other financing sources 23,870 12,823 12,273 1,185 39,440 59,427 6,574 10,659 7,684 75 203 

Net change in fund balances s (20,134) $ (26,776l $ (4,020) $ (6,285) - $ 26,839 $ 54999 $ (2.326) $ !15,614) $ !27,983) $ 56,820 

Debt aervice as a percentage of 
ooncapital exp011dUures 20.3Yo 21.4% 18.8% 18.3% 22.9"/o 16.8% 18.6% 17.7% 19.2% 18.9"/o 

- Notes: 
0 (I) The EisemlllUJ Center began operations in fiscal year 2002. 
0 (2) Beginning in fJScal year 2002, rental and public safety revenues were subdivided from fines and forfeitures and other revenues. 



Table 5 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last ten fiscal years 

Less total Total taxable 
Fiscal year ended Residential Commercial Industrial exemptions/ assessed Total direct 

September 30 pro)!erty l!roperty 2rol!erty reductions value tax rate 

2001 $ 3,448,955,671 $ 4,536,408,166 $ 733,732,355 $ 785,663,173 $ 7,933,433,019 $ 0.44385 
2002 3, 762,406,441 5,076,809,116 920,979,033 952,271,488 8,807,923,102 0.44385 
2003 4,040,398,277 5,224,623,208 481,970,199 932,459,341 8,814,532,343 0.47785 
2004 4,372,095,197 4, 767,451,627 356,355,489 1,037,448,296 8,458,454,017 0.47785 
2005 4,508,605,908 4,651 ,804, 796 216,424,978 1,044,838,822 8,331,996,860 0.52516 
2006 4,736,989,728 4,781,193,675 247,435,611 1,061,552,418 8, 704,066,596 0.52516 
2007 4,887,683, 786 5,285,742,003 274,718,569 1,203,508,602 9,244,635, 756 0.57516 
2008 5,026,605,219 5,272,014,733 704,144,777 1,520,273,606 9,482,491,123 0.57516 - 2009 5,111,539,277 5,623,829,303 722,165,902 1,630,819,971 9,826,714,511 0.57516 

0 - 2010 5,085,566,353 5,673,549,267 707,813,308 1,629,085,082 9,837,843,846 0.57516 

Source: City Tax Department. 



CI!I direct rates 

Opentiom Interest 
and and Riebardson 

maintenance sinking School 
Fiscal yen rate rate Total DiJtrid 

2001 $ 0.256530 s 0.187320 $ 0.443850 $ 1.668300 
2002 0.258570 0.185280 0.443850 1.799300 
2003 0.304160 0.173690 0.477850 1.808100 
2004 0.303770 0.174080 0.477850 1.820000 
2005 0.349340 0.175820 0.525160 1.820000 
2006 0.358680 0.166480 0.525160 1.820000 
2007 0.358680 0.216480 0.575160 1.630050 
2008 ·. 0.362810 0.212350 0.575160 1.340050 
2009 0.362810 0.212350 0.575160 1.340050 
2010 0.362810 0.212350 0.575160 1.340050 

Source: Dallas County Appraisal District, Collin County Appraisal District, and City records. 

Notes: Ta-o< rates are per $100 of assessed value. 

CITY OF RICHAF.DSON, TEXAS 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last ten fiscal years 

(Per $I 00 of assessed value) 

Collin 
Co•nty 

Community 
Co tun College 

Coua!I DiJtrict 

$ 0.250000 $ 0.094049 $ 
0.250000 0.092843 
0.250000 0.091946 
0.250000 0.091932 
0.250000 0.090646 
0.250000 0.089422 
0.245000 0.087683 
0.245000 0.086984 
0.242500 0.086493 
0.242500 0.086300 

Table 6 

Overlal!l!in; rates 
Dallas Dalllls 

Ph no Dallas County County 
Independent County Community School 

School Dallas HO!Ipital College Equallmlion 
District Coua!I District District Fuad 

1.553100 $ 0.196000 $ 0.254000 $ 0.050000 $ 0.005667 
1.628500 0.196000 0.254000 0.060000 0.005525 
1.703400 0.196000 0.254000 0.060000 0.005500 
1.733400 0.203900 0.254000 0.077800 0.005460 
1.733400 0.203900 0.254000 0.080300 0.005460 
1.733400 0.213900 0.254000 0.081600 0.005300 
1.578400 0.213900 0.254000 0.081000 0.005304 
1.268400 0.228100 0.254000 0.080400 0.004714 
1.303400 0.228100 0.254000 0.089400 0.004928 
1.328400 0.228100 0.274000 0.094900 0.005212 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Principal Property Tax Payers 

Current year and ten years ago 

2010 
Percentage 
of total city 

Taxable taxable 
Cingular wireless assessed assessed 

tax~a~er value Rank value ~a~ 

AT&T $ 218,034,238 1 2.22% 
Nortel Networks 147,084,114 2 1.50 
Bank of America 128,856,152 3 1.31 
Verizon 120,969,799 4 1.23 
CISCO Systems 120,770,594 5 1.23 
Texas Instruments 103,529,363 6 1.05 
KDC-Galatyn Investments I LP 103,053,949 7 1.05 
IBM 102,386,818 8 1.04 
Equastone 65,067,940 9 0.66 
Oncor 55,903,145 10 0.57 
Fujitsu 
Crescent Real Estate 
TXU!fexas Utilities Electric 
MCI 
Alcatel 
Southwestern Bell 
Ericsson 
AOC Land Investment 
Trinet 

Total $ 1,165,656,112 11.85% 

Source: Dallas County Appraisal District, Collin County Appraisal District and City records. 

Note: 
(a) Total Taxable Value October I, 2009 = $9,837,843,846* 
(b) Total Taxable Value October 1, 2000 = $7,933,433,019 

$ 

$ 

Taxable 
assessed 

value 

224,176,685 

189,529,846 
84,583,634 
47,789,312 

278,732,918 
239,554,070 
142,131,068 
93,033,000 
52,588,650 
45,923,122 

1,398,042,305 

2001 

Rank 

3 

4 
7 
9 
1 
2 
5 
6 
8 
10 

Table 7 

Percentage 
of total city 

taxable 
assessed 
value 1(b) 

2.83% 

2.39 
1.07 
0.60 
3.51 
3.02 
1.79 
1.17 
0.66 

-----'-0.58 

17.62% 

* This is the Total Taxable Value after adjustment for Incremental Taxable Assessed Value of Real Property within Reinvestment Zone #1. 



Taxes levied 
for the 

Fiscal year ended fiscal year 
September 30 Seetember 30 

2001 $ 35,658,943 
2002 39,314,044 
2003 41,759,918 
2004 40,265,451 
2005 44,019,499 
2006 46,151,287 

..- 2007 53,459,507 
~ 2008 54,717,209 

2009 57,082,055 
2010 57,580,374 

Source: City Tax Department 

$ 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last ten fiscal years 

Collected within the 
fiscal lear of the levy 

Percentage 
Amount of levy 

35,157,349 98.59% $ 
38,854,859 98.83 
40,275,196 96.44 
39,847,436 98.96 
43,626,251 99.11 
45,714,602 99.05 
52,971,881 99.09 
54,343,141 99.32 
56,660,641 99.26 
57,222,735 99.38 

Table 8 

Collections 
· and or 

adjustments Total collections to date 
in subsequent Percentage 

years Amount of levy 

393,122 $ 35,550,471 99.70% 
382,954 39,237,813 99.81 

1,350,032 41,625,228 99.68 
321,893 40,169,329 99.76 
312,824 43,939,075 99.82 
420,109 46,134,711 99.96 
486,273 53,458,154 100.00 
572,175 54,915,316 100.36 
354,644 57,015,285 99.88 

57,222,735 99.38 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last ten fiscal yean 

Governmental activities 
Business-~!!!: activities 
eneral 

General Water and obligation 
obligation Certificates Other sewer revenue refunding Certificates 

Fiscal year bonds of obligation obligations bonds bonds of obligation ------
2001 $ 84,944,908 $ 73,234,442 $ 735,280 $ 2,170,000 $ 1,328,252 $ 25,165,558 
2002 84,553,891 77,413,779 599,044 1,250,000 1,181,110 34,121,222 
2003 83,722,581 76,843,443 4,779,180 1,180,533 1,042,419 36,496,556 
2004 89,279,810 63,088,762 5,178,049 1,115,544 910,190 38,731,238 
2005 103,399,810 58,163,679 4,831,287 1,055,000 1,135,190 41,516,320 
2006 174,629,810 36,383,644 4,277,408 990,000 1,135,190 44,826,355 
2007 167,807,3 86 36,185,000 5,412,684 925,000 1,062,613 48,610,000 
2008 160,411,425 36,770,000 10,871,911 855,000 963,575 52,115,000 
2009 154,898,857 34,835,000 12,177,802 7,011,143 49,840,000 
2010 221,126,083 23,435,000 8,105,379 15,058,917 48,705,000 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
(I) See table 14 for personal income and population data. 

Table9 

Total Percentage 
Other primJ!ry of personal Per 

obligations government income (I) capita (I) 

$ 1,089,709 $ 188,668,149 8.19% $ 2,035 
744,146 199,863,192 7.17 2,114 
381,201 204,445,913 8.07 2,137 
150,296 198,453,889 7.58 2,067 
100,071 210,201 ,357 7.67 2,190 
48,503 262,290,910 8.58 2,718 

142,455 260,145,138 8.91 2,662 
82,734 262,069,64 5 8.40 2,689 

123,281 258,886,083 8.26 2,597 
62,487 3 I 6,492,866 9.75 3,127 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last ten fiscal years (dollars in thousands, except per capita) 

General bonded debt outstanding 
General 

obligation Certificates 
Fiscal year bonds of obligation Total 

2001 $ 84,945 $ 73,f34 $ 158,179 
2002 84,554 77,414 161,968 
2003 83,723 76,843 160,566 
2004 89,280 63,089 152,369 
2005 103,400 58,164 "161,564 
2006 174,630 36,384 211,014 
2007 167,807 36,185 203,992 
2008 160,411 36,770 197,181 
2009 154,899 34,835 189,734 
2010 221,126 23,435 244,561 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements 
(1) See table 5 for property value data. 
(2) See table 14 for population data. 

Table 10 

Percentage of 
actual taxable 

value of Per 
property (1) capita (2) 

1.50% $ 1,283 
1.73 1,612 
1.72 1,581 
1.69 1,493 
1.94 1,683 
2.42 2,187 
2.21 2,088 
2.08 2,023 
1.93 1,903 
2.49 2,417 



CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

September 30,2010 

Debt 
Governmental unit outstanding 

Debt repaid with property taxes: 
Richardson Independent School District 
Plano Independent School District 
Dallas County 
Dallas County Hospital District 
Dallas County Community College District 
Collin County 

0 Collin County Community College District 
-.) 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

City direct debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Source: First Southwest Company. 

$ 411,499,988 
1,042,987,382 

121,176,552 
705,000,000 
370,325,000 
383,805,000 

45,980,000 

Table 11 

Estimated 
Estimated share of 
percentage overlapping 
applicable debt 

0.35% $ 144,765,696 
11.01 114,832,911 
3.48 4,216,944 
3.48 24,534,000 
3.48 12,887,310 
4.65 17,846,933 
4.65 2,138,070 

321,221,863 

244,561,083 

$ 565,782,946 
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Debt limit 
Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debt applicable to lhe 
limit as a percentage of debt limit 

2001 

$ 1,190,014,953 
158,179,351 

$ 1,031,835,602 

13 .29% 

2002 

$ 1,321,188,465 
161,967,670 

$ 1,159,220,795 

12.26% 

2003 

$ 1,322.179,851 
160,566,025 

$ 1,161,613,826 

17.14% 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Legal Debt Margin !nfonnation 

Last ten fiscal }oars 

$ I ,268. 768,103 
152.368,572 

s 1,116,.399,531 

12.01o/o 

2005 

$ 1,249,799,529 
161,563,490 

$ 1,088,236,039 

12.93% 

2006 

s 1,305.609,989 
211,013.454 

$ 1,094,596,535 

16.16% 

2007 

$ 1,386,695,363 
203,992.386 

$ 1,182,702,9'77 

14.71% 

2008 

$ 1,422,373,668 
197,181,425 

$ 1,225,192,243 

13.86% 

Tablel2 
·' 

1009 2010 

$ 1.474,007,177 $ 1,475,676,577 
189,733,857 244,561,083 

$ 1,284,273,320 $ ,.!.231,115,494 

12.87% 16.57% 



Table 13 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Pledged-Revenue Coverage 

Last ten fiscal years 

Water Revenue Bonds 
Utility Less Net 
service operating avallable Debt service 

Fiscal year charge expenses revenue Princi(!al Interest 
Accreted 

value Coverage 

2001 $ 30,238,213 $ 25,241,283 $ 4,996,930 $ 870,000 $ 173,008 $ $ 4.73 
2002 30,938,820 26,919,553 4,019,267 920,000 120,057 3.80 
2003 31,007,303 27,909,907 3,097,396 69,467 988,770 925,533 2.86 
2004 32,935,195 28,465,878 4,469,317 64,989 994,124 935,011 2.24 
2005 34,268,319 30,302,699 3,965,620 60,544 129,443 74,455 15.00 
2006 44,670,913 32,241,222 12,429,691 65,000 50,937 107.21 
2007 35,747,318 34,112,347 1,634,971 65,000 48,012 14.47 
2008 41,071,623 37,662,979 3,408,644 70,000 45,088 29.62 
2009 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
2010 N/A N/A N/A NIA NIA NIA N/A -0 

1.0 Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Operating expenses 
do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expense. 

Water Revenue Bonds were refunded in FY2009. 
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CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last ten caltmdar years 

Personal Per 
income(2) capita 

Estimated (thousands personal 
Year I!Oi!ulation (1) of dollars) income 

2001 92,697 $ 2,303,180 $ 24,846 
2002 94,529 2,786,423 29,477 
2003 95,650 2,532,853 26,480 
2004 96,000 2,618,353 27,275 
2005 96,000 2,740,710 28,549 
2006 96,500 3,056,396 31,672 
2007 97,720 2,920,264 29,884 
2008 97,450 3,120,154 32,018 
2009 99,700 3,134,169 31,436 
2010 101,200 3,246,751 32,083 

Sources: 
(I) NCTCOG as of January, 2010. 
(2) Information compiled by Nielsen for the Richardson Chamber of Commerce. 
(3) Information complied by Nielsen for the Richardson Chamber of Commerce. 
( 4) School Enrollment- Richardson Independent School District- Estimate. 
(5) School Enrollment- Plano Independent School District. 
(6) Unemployment- Texas Workforce Commission Website. 

Median 
age ~3) 

35.8 
35.9 
37.6 
37.6 
35.0 
35.8 
39.6 
38.1 
37.2 
38.1 

Table 14 

School enrollment Unemployment 
R.I.S.D. ( 4) P.LS.D. (S) rate(%) (6) 

35,500 48,977 5.4% 
35,275 50,632 5.4 
35,245 51,800 5.5 
35,436 49,289 4.3 
34,441 53,203 4.9 
35,000 52,816 4.1 
35,000 54,478 3.8 
35,000 54,129 4.7 
34,878 54,864 7.3 
36,075 55,355 6.9 

Note: The City of Richardson is located in both Dallas and Collin Counties. School children residing in Dallas County are enrolled in the Richardson School 
district while those residing in Collin County are enrolled in the Independent Plano Independent School District. 
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Employer 

AT&T (SBC in 2000) 
Richardson lSD 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas 
Bank of America Home Loans 
University of Texas at Dallas 
Verizon Business/Worldcom 
Fujitsu Network Communications 
Rockwell Collins 
Cisco Systems 
Elcan Optical Systems 
United Health Care 
Ericsson, Inc. 
City of Richardson 
Norte! Networks 
SBC Communications 
Alcatel USA 

Total 

Source: 
( 1) Richardson Chamber of Commerce 

Employees 
(1) 

6,000 
4,780 
3,100 
3,000 
2,830 
2,250 
1,500 
1,200 
1,200 
1,100 
1,100 
1,000 

985 

30,045 

CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Principal Employers, 

Current year and ten years ago 

2010 

Rank 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
II 
12 
13 

Percentage 
of total city 
employment 

(2) 

4.98% 
3.97 
2.57 
2.49 
2.35 
1.87 
1.25 
1.00 
l.OO 
0.91 
0.91 
0.83 
0.82 

24.95% 

(2) NCTCOG- Projections for 2010 City Employment of 120,456. 
(3) 2001 Official Statement, Bond Counsel; Richardson Chamber of Commerce. 

2001 

Employees 
(3) Rank 

3,810 3 
3,000 5 

1,879 8 
5,500 2 
2,400 7 

1,000 9 

2,900 6 

10,000 1 
3,400 4 
1,000 10 

34,889 

(4) NCTCOG- Projections for 2001 City Employment use the 2000 projection of94,972. Projections are only available in 5 year increments. 

Table 15 

Percentage 
of total city 
employment 

(4) 

4.01% 
3.16 

1.98 
5.79 
2.53 

1.05 

3.05 

10.53 
3.58 
1.05 

36.73% 



Table 16 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 

Last ten fiscal years 

Fundlonlprogram 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 -----
General government 138 153 153 144 148 149 152 155 143 145 
Public safety 419 410 391 392 390 393 398 398 397 397 
Public services 155 157 143 139 141 142 146 153 156 152 
Libmry 37 36 34 33 33 33 34 35 35 35 
Parks and recreation 93 101 91 87 82 83 83 84 78 80 
Public health 16 16 15 IS 15 15 16 16 15 16 
Water 62 62 59 61 58 56 58 61 64 66 
Wastewater 10 11 11 11 11 II II 12 12 12 
Solid waste 59 58 57 57 57 57 61 61 70 70 
Golf 17 18 17 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 

Total 1,006 1,022 971 955 951 955 975 991 986 989 

Source: City Budget Office. 



Table 17 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Last ten fiscal years 

lOOt 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 1009 2010 

Public safety: 
Police: 

Number of employees 265 259 243 244 244 243 248 249 246 229 
Number of violations (citations) 45,160 52,773 46,772 40,895 42,588 39,972 39,361 49,008 42,137 46,077 

Fire: 
Number of employees 154 151 148 148 146 ISO 150 149 !51 150 

Public services: 
Street resurfacing (miles) 0.30 0.20 2.30 ).90 0.30 8.40 2.00 1.20 
Asphalt repairs (tons) 2,734 5,281 1,665 4,217 2,374 1,252 1,403 7,683 1,322 1,091 

Parks and recreation: 
Acreage 1,278 1,278 1,278 1,598 1,598 1,598 1,598 865 865 865 

Library: 
Volumes in collection 196,188 205,858 221,636 227,328 236,479 247,059 250,035 262,208 251,535 253,802 

\l.'ater and sewer: 
Number of water consumers 31,602 31,146 31,681 32,334 32,499 32,626 32,318 32,064 31,751 31,711 
Average daily water consumption 

(thousands of gallons) 27,800 27,280 24,100 32,280 33,761 31,342 27,401 27,540 23,622 26,703 
Number of sewer consumers 30,840 31,146 31,681 32,334 31,644 31,675 31,713 31,518 31,274 31,245 

>-
w Solid waste: 

Refuse collected (tons/day) 128 133 136 133 175 165 162 162 149 152 
Bulky/brush pickups (tons/day) 40 34 34 41 54 53 60 67 60 65 
Recyclables collected (tons/day) 19 27 18 17 17 18 18 20 22 28 

Golf: 
Number of rounds played 71,213 97,174 92,751 97,500 91,944 100,750 94,825 102,584 100,266 75,630 

Source: City Departments 

Notes: 
Golf- Course renovated in 2001. 
Park and Recreation Acreage- Prior to 2008 acreage was reported as all land that the Parks Department maintained (included ROW, medians, etc.). In 2008 we are reporting only acreage of park land. 



Table 18 
CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 

Last ten fiscal } ears 

Function/program 1001 2002 1003 2004 1005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 ------
Public safety: 

Police stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Police patrol units 34 33 40 40 40 40 41 46 46 42 
Fire stations 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Public works: 
Streets- paved (miles) 407 415 414 400 400 401 402 402 405 404 
Alleys- paved (miles) 214 215 220 218 221 221 222 223 223 22 1 
Sidewalks (miles) 548 548 569 569 593 593 593 585 585 651 
Streetlights 5,630 5,630 5,630 5,640 6,022 6,036 6,036 6,120 6. 1~-9 6,171 

Parks and recreation: 
Parks 29 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 
Playgrounds 26 26 26 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 
Swimming pools 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Tennis courts 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 
Recreation centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Senior center I I I I I I I I I I 

Water: 
Water mains (miles) 435 509 517 531 554 551 555 559 563 567 ....... Fire hydrants 3,128 3,287 3,385 3,685 3,839 3,893 3,963 4,062 4,056 4,110 

~ 
Wastewater: 

Sanitary sewers (miles) 478 384 395 406 406 495 495 499 499 499 

Source: City Departments 

Notes: 
Data for sidewalks is updated every two years. 
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and
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Presentation Overview

• REDP Mission & Overview

• 2010 Review

• 2011 Economic Conditions

• 2011 Strategic Plan Summary

REDP Mission Statement

REDP, a joint effort of the City of 
Richardson and Richardson Chamber of 
Commerce, through the actions and 
resources of its public and private 
partners, shall work efficiently to create, 
facilitate, and finalize projects and 
programs which result in:

1.  Enhanced tax revenues
2.  Job opportunities
3.  Greater positive image for the city
4.  Enhanced quality of life for citizens
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Richardson ED Partnership

• Established 1984 - 27 years

• A model city-chamber partnership

• Roles
– City sets broad goals and objectives

– Chamber executes marketing and relationship 
management

• Operations
– Weekly prospect/activity review meetings

– Quarterly reports to Council

– Coordinated actions

REDP Staff
Professional Affiliations

Bill Sproull, President, F.M.
– Chair, Advisory Board, Texas Emerging Technology Fund
– Board Member, International Economic Development Council
– Board Member, North Texas Commission
– Development Board, UT Dallas

John Jacobs, Senior Vice President, MCR
– Board Member, North Texas Commercial Assn. of Realtors
– DFW Marketing Team
– Master of Corporate Real Estate, CoreNET 

Sue Walker, Vice President
– Texas Board member & South Div. Chair, Int. Council of 

Shopping Centers
– Executive Board, North Central Texas InterLink
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2010 Major Highlights

• ViaWest  - Cloud computing

• Benning Power Electronics -,”Green” power

• id Software - video gaming software HQ

• Hill & Wilkinson - general contractor HQ

• Retention & Expansion Activity
- TriQuint, TI, & Samsung expansions
- CVS Caremark & IEX retentions

• Start-ups

2010 Challenges & Opportunities

• Office & Flex Vacancies
• Slow job growth
• Retail stresses
• Corporate consolidations
• Incentives warfare
• Venture Capital market still lax
• Data Center activity strong
• Commercial property values stabilized
• Texas remains a strong market
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Partners

• State of Texas/Texas One
• UT-Dallas
• Richland College
• Texas Workforce Commission
• NTXRCIC-TETF
• RPD
• DFW Marketing Team
• Dallas Regional Chamber
• REDP Advisory Committees
• ICSC

Office & Flex Space Occupancy
Tech Boom vs Now

Total
SF

Flex*
SF

Office
SF

+ 2.3%468,28221,101,11420,632,832

- 9.7%(863,874)8,055,735

(4Q 2009)

8,919,609

(2Q 1999)

+ 11%1,332,15613,045,379 

(4Q 2009)

11,713,223

(4Q 1999)

% ChgSF ChangeNowBoom

Source: CoStar, 2011                          * Collin Tech Park totals 802,491 SF
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Office Bldgs with 
90,000+ SF Available*

Source: CoStar, 2011                          * Collin Tech Park totals 802,491 SF

00Frisco

00McKinney

00Allen

450,5694LBJ East

1,091,3885Dallas Tollway

1,866,6807Plano

2,066,6059Richardson

TOTAL SF AVAIL# OF BLDGSCITY/MARKET

Source: CoStar, 2011

Richardson Office Bldgs. 90K+ SF*

Source: CoStar, 2011                          * Collin Tech Park totals 802,491 SF

3101 PGBTPrincipal Financial90,000

2350 Lakeside BlvdTriGate109,752

1201 E. Campbell RdiStar114,247

250 E. Arapaho RdAblon118,638

2400 Lakeside BlvdEquastone137,505

3000 Waterview PkwyiStar232,578

2600 N. Central ExpyChampion234,125

1011 Galatyn PkyChampion282,000

901 S. Central ExpwySwig Co.535,771

Bldg. AddressOwnerMax Contig SF

Source: CoStar, 2011
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2010 Highlights - Retention

Mayor’s Lunch Reaches 
Large Employers & Companies on the Move

Hitachi Communications
eSurance
Presagis
Amdocs
Ripcode

Paragon Innovations
Kewl Innovations

Argo Data
Remington Medical Resort

TriQuint Semiconductor

2010 Highlights - Retention

Loaned Executive from Richland College 
Leads Retention Visitations

Selected Industry Visits
NCO

Lucidity Consulting
Progressive Insurance

Sterling Bank
Express Employment Services

Fortress Iron
Emergidata

Delta Greentech
Ciena Corp

ATI Career Training Center
Triune Systems
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2010 Highlights - Retention

CVS Caremark

Retained online prescription drug retailer at 
1300 E. Campbell Rd. 

retained 52,000 SF with 400 employees

2010 Highlights - Retention

IEX, a Nice Co.

Retained this telecom software company 
at 2425 N. Central Expressway 
54,165 SF with 130 employees
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2010 Highlights - Retention

HRSmart

Retained this employment performance software 
company at 2929 N. Central Expressway 

35,000 SF with 80 employees

2010 Highlights - Relocations

ViaWest

Data Center operator relocated from Dallas 
to 3000 Waterview Parkway

85,000 SF with 30 employees
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2010 Highlights - Relocations

Benning Power Electronics

“Green” manufacturer of power converters and 
transformers relocated Dallas office 

to 1220 Presidential Parkway
70,000 SF with 50 employees

2010 Highlights - Relocations

iD Software

Renowned video gaming software company relocates
its HQ from Mesquite to Collins Crossing 

1500 N. Greenville Ave. 57,100 SF with 250 employees
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2010 Highlights - Relocations

Hill & Wilkinson

Relocates HQ from Dallas to 2703 Telecom Parkway 
27,000 SF with 235 employees

2010 Highlights - Relocations

Gaddis Research

Consumer Market Research relocates 
to 1850 N. Greenville Ave.

23,000 SF with 30 employees
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2010 Highlights - Relocations

Dei Rossi Marketing

Customized apparel and promotional items
Relocates HQ to 1110 E. Collins

18,000 SF, 15 employees

2010 Highlights – Real Estate

Stream Realty Partners

Buys existing new 20,000 SF building
Builds out a $16M Data Center facility

at 3300 Essex Dr.  Catholic Hospital Systems is tenant.
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2010 Highlights – Start-ups

2010 Venture Capital Funding tops $33 million 
for 3 Richardson companies

– Mavenir Systems                  $13,600,000

– Sipera Systems $10,000,000

– Airwalk Communications      $10,000,000

2010 Highlights – Start-ups

2010 TETF Recipients Receive $5.95 million

1. AgileMesh - Deployable wireless video surveillance  $2,000,000

2. Device Fidelity - MicroRF technology $3,000,000

3. Interoperate.biz - Language translation technology $   700,000

4. Solarno - Nanotech for solar applications $   250,000

Richardson ranks 4th in the state with 11 start-ups receiving grants from the 
Texas Emerging Technology Fund since 2006, solidifying Richardson’s 

position as one of the top locations in Texas for start-up companies.

Only Houston, Austin and San Antonio have more.
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2010 Highlights - Workforce

2nd Annual REDP Job Fair Attracts
40+ Companies & 1,000+ Job Seekers

Partnered with Richland College & local Texas Workforce Development office

Richardson Project Results 
2006-2010

0.63

1,918

28

2010

0.76

2,694

27

2009

1.00.640.892.1Million 
SF Occ.

3,2183,7601,6666,05
1

Jobs**

29.8233140R/E/S/R*

5-Year

Avg.

200820072006Year

* - number of relocation, expansion, start-up, retention projects

** - new, announced, or net retained
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2010 Highlights - MTBC

MTBC Programs
Link to Economic Development Goals

• Innovation
– TechQuests with Raytheon, Microsoft, Alcatel-Lucent

• Talent
– STEM initiative with RISD, UT Dallas

• Programs
– Numerous Technology events/luncheons at local venues
– Tech Titans at Richardson Renaissance hotel

2010 Highlights 
Retail/Restaurants

• 28 New Restaurants Opened/Announced
• Frankie’s Mexican Cuisine – II Creeks Plaza
• String Bean Restaurant – Lennox Center
• Chicago Pizzeria – Eastside
• Urban Eatz – Eastside
• Little Greek Restaurant – Pavilion East
• Mooyah’s Burger & Fries – Lennox Center
• I Gemelli Ristorante – Camelot Village
• Sol Irlandes Mexican Chop House – The Venue
• Soulfish Grill  - Eastrich Center

• Several Restaurants Closed
• Andrea’s – Dal Rich Village
• Purdy’s – N. Plano Rd.
• Jaleo’s – The Venue
• Esther’s/Falafel – Camelot Village
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2010 Highlights 
Retail/Restaurants

Eastside – 75/Central at Campbell Rd.

10 Restaurants

Boudreaux’s Cajun Kitchen

Chicago Pizzeria (NEW)

Chilioso Mexican Bistro (NEW)

Koto’s Japanese Asian Fusion

Jersey Mike’s Subs

Panera Bread

Russo’s NY Italian Kitchen

Twisted Root Burger Co.

Urban Eatz (NEW)

Yumilicius Yogurt Shop (NEW)

2010 Highlights 
Retail/Restaurants

Joint CVB/RCC advertising campaign to:
Increase local and regional awareness

Drive new/loyal customers to area restaurants
Offer money saving discounts

40+ restaurants, over 3000 subscribers
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2010 Highlights 
Retail/Restaurants

• New Retailers
• Family Dollar – Buckingham Place
• Sleep Central – Lennox Center
• Mattress Firm – Richland Village
• Fallas Family Clothing – Buckingham 

Square
• Rockler Woodworking & Hardware –

Promenade North
• International Suit Warehouse – N. 

Central Expy
• Pet Supplies Plus – N. Coit

2011 Economic Conditions & 
Forecast*

• State & National
– Weaker U.S. $ will stimulate exports
– Hiring will be up 2.5% in Texas: 1.5% in US
– $2 trillion cash held by U.S. corporations will fuel 

increased M&A activity
– Venture/other start-up capital remains limited
– Retail sales up est. 3% similar to 2010
– Uncertain inflation est. 1.5%-2% range

* Sources:  Perryman Reports, Comerica Bank
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2011 Economic Conditions & 
Forecast

• Local
– Most active development type: multi-family

– Rising fuel prices will encourage in-migration

– New office/industrial development won’t occur 
until 2012, and then only in select markets

– Richardson has edge over N. Dallas/Collin Co. 
due to large blocks of office space

– Spec data center development will be active in 
Richardson, leading DFW area

2011 Development & 
Redevelopment Opportunities

• West Spring Valley Corridor

• Bush/75

• Former BC/BS Campus
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2011 REDP Strategies

• Retention

• Ensure programs are responsive to needs of business*

• Continue to identify procurement contacts & encourage
local companies to seek this business opportunity*

• Continue Mayor’s Lunch, industry visits, online survey

• Synchronist® system, a business retention tracking
software

• Tech Cluster Strategy

• Promote tech sectors that are synergistic with UT Dallas*

• Support RFAB by marketing to supplier companies

• Connect with equity capital resources locally/nationally

* - Strategies aligned with Council’s 2009-2011 Goals, Initiatives and Action Items

2011 REDP Strategies

• Attraction

• Focus on brokers and other key prospect sources through
Broker-Developer activities, REAL, NTCAR, Allies Day*

• Create/retain 2,000 jobs and occupancy of 700,000 SF
(In 2010: 1,918 jobs, 630,000 SF)

• Start-Ups

• Assist City with promoting StarTech facility*

• Continue to support start-ups with assistance from property
owners, SCORE, UT Dallas, working with Collin County SBDC,
capital providers and professional service firms

• Assessment of Entrepreneurial efforts

* - Strategies aligned with Council’s 2009-2011 Goals, Initiatives and Action Items
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2011 REDP Strategies

• Retail

• Support City’s Crime Watch program, participating in visits to
retailers/restaurants

• Communicate with leasing brokers/owners through newsletters,
RECON meetings* 

• Support City’s visioning process for tenanting retail/mixed-use
projects*    

• Promote “Dine Smart-Dine Local” program, help reduce sales tax
leakage*

• Identify and market Richardson centers to prospective tenants

• Serve as information resource for neighborhood associations
on new restaurants and retail

* - Strategies aligned with Council’s 2009-2011 Goals, Initiatives and Action Items

2011 REDP Strategies

•Workforce Development

• Conduct Annual Job Fair /other programs to assist residents with
job opportunities

• Collaborate with local office of Texas Workforce Commission

• Communications

• Support City with welcoming program/presentation to orient new
companies and employees to Richardson, the Chamber/MTBC

• REDP web site promotion using social media features

• Use of social media for PR efforts

• Organization

• Economic Development accreditation application

• Use of Hoover’s/D&B database – 9,800 businesses/org in Richardson

* - Strategies aligned with Council’s 2009-2011 Goals, Initiatives and Action Items
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2011 REDP Strategies

• International

• Establish an International Director position*

• Establish permanent Richardson International Business 
Advisory Committee*

• Promote export opportunities for local companies

• Recruit foreign investment into Richardson

• Enhance international corporate relationship working with
Texas-Israel Chamber, KOTRA, JETRO and similar
organizations

* - Strategies aligned with Council’s 2009-2011 Goals, Initiatives and Action Items

Richardson ED Partnership
972.792.2802

www.telecomcorridor.com
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Rainwater Harvesting Systems

City Council

February 21, 2011

2

Purpose of Ordinance

 Encourage water conservation practices

 Allow residents to install reasonably sized systems “By Right”
without having to go through a Special Permit zoning process

 Provide clear guidelines for staff to regulate these systems to 
ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the community

 DRAFT Ordinance approved by Environmental Advisory 
Commission on November 30, 2010

 Initial review by the City Council on January 03, 2011

 Zoning File 11-01 (CZO Accessory Use amendment) approved 
by CPC on Jan 18, 2011
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3

Required Components

 Catchment Surface- Rooftop 
Only

 Gutters & Downspouts

 Debris Excluder

 1 or more storage tanks

 Delivery System (gravity 
flow or pump)

4

Storage Tanks: Connected Rain Barrels

 Two or more tanks can be connected for a 
larger system
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5

Medium Single-Tank Water Storage

 214 Gallon Capacity

 5’6” Long x 1”10” Wide 
x 3’9” Tall

6

Storage Tank Size Comparison

 5’6” Long x 1”10” Wide 
x 3’9” Tall

 Compared to a typical 
2 ½ Ton A/C Unit: 

– 2’ Long x 2’ Wide x 3’
Tall
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7

Size Comparisons: 250 Gallon Tank

5’6”

2’11”

8

Larger Capacity Storage Tanks

 Recently 
Approved for a 
Special Permit

 650 Gallon 
Capacity

 7’6” Long x 2’4”
Wide x 6’7” Tall
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9

High Capacity Storage Tanks

 7’11” tall x 
8’6” diameter

 3000 Gallon 
Capacity

10

Systems 400 Gallons or smaller 
(gravity fed)

 No Permit Required

 Must comply with ordinance requirements (screening, setback, 
storage tanks, etc.)
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11

Systems Larger Than 400 
(cumulative) Gallons

 Permit Required 
 Includes all storage tanks, 

connected or unconnected
 Any type of electrical or 

mechanical delivery system

12

Additional Permits

Additional permits for 
mechanical and 
electrical devices (i.e. 
electrical pumps) 
required as necessary
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13

Allowable Uses

Non-potable uses: Irrigation & Foundation 
Watering Only

14

Uses not covered in Ordinance

Systems that 
supplement indoor 
plumbing fixtures, gray 
water systems, and 
other uses not covered 
by this ordinance must 
be approved by Special 
Permit zoning process



8

15

Connection to Potable Water

 Tank supply supplement only

 Requires a Reduced Pressure 
Principle Backflow Prevention 
Assembly or an Air Gap 

 Eliminates risk of back flow 
contaminating the potable water supply

16

Setbacks

 Front – No tanks allowed 
between any front facing 
building wall & front property 
line

 Side – 7’ from side property 
line

 Rear – 3’ from rear property 
line or side property line in 
rear setback
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17

Screening

 Modeled after RV and other 
existing screening 
requirements:

 Must be screened from view of 
adjacent street

 Wood fence or landscape 
screening wall (City approved 
plant list)

 6’ tall or height of storage 
tank(s), whichever is greater 
(up to 8’)

18

Storage Tank Requirements

 Opaque (prevent algae growth)
 Never have been used to store 

hazardous materials
 Covered and vents screened 

(mosquito prevention)
 Accessible for cleaning and 

repair
 Locked/secure openings (12”

or less)
 Overflow port
 Stable, level surface
 8’ or less in height
 1:1 underground setback ratio 

for underground tanks
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19

Health & Safety

 Non-potable water 
identification signs 
required

 Systems must be 
maintained to prevent:
 Foul and stagnant water
 Mosquito breeding and 

other pests

20

Exceptions

 Deviations from height, setback, and screening 
requirements only allowed by Special Exception of 
the Zoning Board of Adjustment

 Systems that supplement indoor plumbing fixtures, 
gray water systems, and other uses not covered by 
this ordinance must be approved by Special Permit
zoning process
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Rainwater Harvesting Systems

Questions?

City Council

February 21, 2011
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ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RICHARDSON, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 6 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF RICHARDSON, 
TEXAS, BY ADDING ARTICLE XII REGULATING THE USE OF RAINWATER 
HARVESTING SYSTEMS; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Richardson, Texas wishes to amend Chapter 6 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Richardson, Texas, to add Article XII regulating the use of 
rainwater harvesting systems; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RICHARDSON, 
TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1.  That Chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Richardson, 

Texas, is hereby amended to add Article XII, Rainwater Harvesting Systems, to read as follows: 

“ARTICLE XII.  RAINWATER HARVESTING SYSTEMS 

Sec. 6-500.  Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 

 
Air gap means a complete physical separation between the free flowing discharge end of 

a potable water supply pipeline and an open or nonpressure receiving vessel. 
 
Backflow prevention means the mechanical prevention of reverse flow, or back 

siphonage, of nonpotable water from an irrigation system into the potable water source. 
 
Backflow prevention assembly means any assembly used to prevent backflow into a 

potable water system. The type of assembly used is based on the existing or potential degree of 
health hazard and backflow condition. 

 
Catchment surface means the collection surface from which rainfall runs off. 
 
Debris means any visible contaminant including leaves and twigs, dust and dirt, bird and 

animal droppings, insects, and other visible material. 
 

DRAFT 
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Debris excluder means any screening component such as a first-flush diverter, leaf 
screen, roof washer, or other similar device that is designed to prevent debris and sediment from 
entering the storage tank of a rainwater harvesting system.  
 

Nonpotable water means untreated water that is unsafe for human consumption. 
 
Potable water means water that is suitable for human consumption. 
 
Rainwater harvesting system means any system used for the capture, storage, and 

distribution of untreated rainwater from a rooftop catchment surface or from precipitation 
captured directly from the sky to be used for outdoor landscape irrigation. 

 
Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly means an assembly containing 

two independently acting, approved check valves together with a hydraulically operating 
mechanically independent pressure differential relief valve located between the two check valves 
and below the first check valve. 

 
Storage tank means any tank, cistern, rain barrel, or container used to collect harvested 

rainwater. 
 
Sec. 6-501.  Valid License Required. 

 
(1) Any person who connects a rainwater harvesting system to the water supply within the 

city must hold a valid license, as defined by Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, 
Chapter 30, and required by V.T.C.A., Occupations Code Ch. 1903, or as defined by 
Chapter 365, Title 22 of the Texas Administrative Code, and required by V.T.C.A., 
Occupations Code Ch. 1301.  
 

(2) A property owner is not required to be licensed in accordance with V.T.C.A., 
Occupations Code, Title 12, § 1903.002(c)(1) if he or she is performing irrigation work in 
a building or on a premises owned or occupied by the person as the person's home. A 
home or property owner who installs an irrigation system must meet the standards 
contained in Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 344 regarding spacing, water 
pressure, spraying water over impervious materials, rain or moisture shut-off devices or 
other technology, backflow prevention and isolation valves. The city may, at any point, 
adopt more stringent requirements for a home or property owner who installs an 
irrigation system. See V.T.C.A., Occupations Code § 1903.002 for other exemptions to 
the licensing requirement.  

 
Sec. 6-502.  Permits Required. 
 
(1) Regardless of size, all rainwater harvesting systems are subject to the requirements for 

storage tank compliance and screening described herein; however, no permit shall be 
required for a rainwater harvesting system that conveys water to an above ground storage 
tank, such as a rain barrel, for gravity flow (hose flow) irrigation distribution only, if the 
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system consists of one or more storage tanks that cumulatively hold 400 gallons or less in 
volume. 
 

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to construct or install a rainwater harvesting system 
without having first obtained a permit from the Building Inspection Department if:  
 
(a) The system consists of one or more storage tanks that cumulatively hold 400 

gallons or more in volume. 
 

(b) The system includes the installation of any devices which would require erecting, 
installing, repairing, converting or replacing any electrical and/or plumbing 
system/device. 

 
(3) Adequate plans and specifications, as determined by the Chief Building Official, must 

accompany each application for a permit.   
 
Sec. 6-503. Inspection and fee. 
 
 It shall be the duty of the City Building Inspection Department to inspect all rainwater 
harvesting systems which require a permit to determine that they are in compliance with this 
ordinance. For such inspection and the issuance of the permit, a fee in the amount as established 
by resolution by the City Council shall be paid to the Building Inspection Department prior to the 
issuance of such permit. 
 
Sec. 6-504. Construction and Maintenance Requirements. 
 

All rainwater harvesting systems shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with 
the following requirements: 

 
(1) Compliance with State and Federal Law is the responsibility of the producer, 

provider, and user of such installations. 
 

(2) In addition to the requirements of this division, all rainwater harvesting systems 
must be in compliance with the Richardson Building Code. 

 
(3) All approved rainwater harvesting systems must be constructed and installed as 

per the specifications of the manufacturer of that particular system.  A copy of 
these specifications must be submitted to the Building Inspection Department 
along with the permit application.   
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Sec. 6-505. Restrictions and limitations. 
 
 All rainwater harvesting systems constructed and maintained under the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be subject to the following restrictions and limitations: 
 

(1) Allowable uses. Allowable uses of rainwater harvesting systems shall be restricted 
to nonpotable, outdoor irrigation and foundation watering only.   
 

(2) Limited service area.  The rainwater harvesting system shall serve only the lot 
upon which it is located. 

 
(3) Connection to the potable water supply.  Connection of more than one water 

source to an irrigation system presents the potential for contamination of the 
potable water supply if backflow occurs.  Therefore, connection of any additional 
water source to an irrigation system that is connected to the potable water supply 
shall be permitted only if the irrigation system is connected to the potable water 
supply through a reduced-pressure principle backflow prevention assembly or an 
air gap.   

 
(4) Setbacks.  Rainwater harvesting systems shall meet the following setback 

requirements:  
 

(a) Front.  No rainwater harvesting system or any component thereof shall be 
located between any front building wall and the front property line. 

 
(b) Side.  There shall be a setback of seven feet from any side property line for 

any rainwater harvesting system or any component thereof, except the side 
setback on a corner lot adjacent to a street shall not be less than 20 feet.  

 
(c) Rear.  There shall be a setback of three feet from any rear property line or 

any side property line in the rear setback area for any rainwater harvesting 
system or any component thereof. 

 
(5) Components.  Regardless of its complexity, a rainwater harvesting system shall be 

comprised of the following components:  
 

(a) Catchment surface from which rainwater is collected. Rooftops are the 
only allowable catchment surface. 

 
(b) Gutters and downspouts that channel water from the roof catchment 

surface to the tank.   
 
(c) The rainwater catchment conveyance system shall be equipped with a 

debris excluder or other approved means to prevent the accumulation of 
leaves, needles, other debris and sediment from entering the storage tank.  
Devices and methods used to remove debris or sediment shall be 
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accessible and sized and installed in accordance with manufacturer’s 
installation instructions.   

 
(d) One or more approved storage tanks. 
 
(e) A delivery system, either gravity fed or pumped to the end use. 

 
(6) Storage tanks. Regardless of the size or complexity of storage tanks, the following 

provisions are required to prevent public health hazards and nuisances: 
 

(a) Storage tanks must be opaque. 
 
(b) Storage tanks must never have been used to store hazardous materials. 
 
(c) Storage tanks must be covered and vents screened to prevent mosquito 

breeding. 
 
(d) Storage tanks must be accessible for cleaning and repair 
 
(e) Storage tank access openings exceeding 12 inches (305 mm) in diameter 

shall be secured to prevent tampering and unintended entry by either a 
lockable device or other approved method. 

 
(f) Storage tanks are required to have an overflow port. 

 
(g) Storage tanks should be placed on a stable, level surface and it must be 

capable of holding the maximum possible weight when full. 
 
(h) Underground storage tanks must observe a 1:1 setback ratio from the 

bottom of the house foundation.  
 
(i) Above ground storage tanks shall be no more than 8 feet in height.   

 
(7) Rainwater identification.  Storage tanks must be labeled “RAINWATER – DO 

NOT DRINK”, “NONPOTABLE WATER – DO NOT DRINK”, or with a similar 
phrase that clearly indicates that the water contained within is not suitable for human 
consumption. 

 
(8) Screening. A rainwater harvesting system may be installed in the side or rear yard 

of any property zoned R-2000-M, R-1800-M, R-1500-M, R-1250-M, R-1100-M, 
R-1000-M, R-950-M, R-850-F, R-850-M, RP-1500-M, D-3000-M, D-2400-M or 
D-1400-M if the storage tank(s) are screened from view of the adjacent public or 
private street by a wood fence at least six feet in height or the height of the 
storage tank(s), whichever is greater, or by a landscaping screen wall consisting of 
shrubs a minimum of three feet in height when measured immediately after 
planting and five gallons in size selected from the city-approved plant list that will 
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provide a continuous unbroken solid visual screen which at maturity will reach a 
height of six feet or the height of the storage tank(s), whichever is greater.   

 
(9) Maintenance. Any rainwater harvesting system, permitted or unpermitted shall: 

 
(a) Not remain in a condition so as to create a public health hazard or a 

nuisance to the general public; 
 
(b) Be maintained as required to keep the system functioning as designed; 
 
(c) Be maintained so as to prevent the accumulation of unwholesome, 

stagnant, or offensive water; 
 
(d) Be maintained so as to prevent the attraction or breeding of mosquitoes or 

other undesirable pests; 
 
(e) Not be used for the storage of anything other than water or for anything 

other than its intended purpose as a rainwater harvesting system; 
 
(f) Remain in compliance with the provisions listed within this ordinance or 

be appropriately abandoned in an approved manner. 
 

(10) Abandonment.  When a rainwater system is to be abandoned, all re-piping 
necessary to supply the irrigation with another water source will require 
applicable permits along with a set of plans to be approved by the Building 
Department. 

 
(11) Exceptions. No deviation from the height, setback or screening requirements 

specified herein shall be permitted unless allowed by Special Exception of the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

 
(12) Special Permit Required. No system that is supplied or supplemented by a water 

source not specified herein or used for any purpose other than irrigation shall be 
allowed except by the approval of a Special Permit through the zoning process.” 

 
SECTION 2. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Richardson in conflict 

with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 

provisions of the ordinances of the City of Richardson not in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 SECTION 3. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 

section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same 
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shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other 

than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity 

of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 

 SECTION 4. That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is 

governed by prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect when the 

offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

 SECTION 5. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or 

terms of this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Richardson, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be 

punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for each offense; 

and each and every day such violation shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 

offense. 

 SECTION 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 

and the publication of the caption, as the law and charter in such cases provide. 

 DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Richardson, Texas, on the ________ 

day of ________________, 201___. 

APPROVED: 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      MAYOR 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   CORRECTLY ENROLLED: 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY    CITY SECRETARY 
(PGS:01-04-11:46823) 
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Design Guidelines/Ordinance 
Development
Community Meeting 1 

February 16, 2011

City Council Briefing

February 21, 2011

2

Community Meeting 1 Agenda

 Welcome / Introductions

 Meeting Objectives

 Project Update

 Design Guidelines

 PD Ordinance

 Questions & Discussion

 Keypad Polling – Concepts and Standards

 Break – Informal Discussions at Stations

 Keypad Polling Review / Results

 Next Steps
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PROJECT UPDATE

4

Vision Update – Recent Milestones

Final Report to CouncilNovember 2010

Dallas Stakeholder MeetingsSeptember, November 2010

Council BriefingJuly 2010

Community Meeting 3June 2010
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Vision Update – Framework Plan

6

Vision Update – Corridor Vision
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Design Guidelines/Ordinance Development – Actions

 Engaged consulting team – HOK, Strategic Community 
Solutions, Townscape 
 Drafting PD Ordinance and Design Guidelines

 Enacted moratorium on commercial land development

 Developed schedule for immediate actions

8

Design Guidelines/Ordinance Development – Actions

 Reorganized Community Services Department (formerly 
Neighborhood Services Department) for more effective 
implementation 

 Created reporting form for Near‐Term Action Items

 Conducting meetings with Task Force teams to discuss 
Implementation responsibilities
 Capital Improvements

 Regulations and Policies

 Communications

 Public‐Private Partnerships
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Design Guidelines/Ordinance Development – Actions

 Analyzing existing/ongoing programs and projects for West 
Spring Valley interface

 Preparing for discussions with partner agencies

 Initiated Clean and Safe Program (Richardson Police, 
Community Services)

10

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) 
ORDINANCE
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Intent of PD

 Implement West Spring 
Valley Reinvestment 
Strategy 

 Replace existing zoning

 Encourage reinvestment

 Ensure sustainability by 
applying timeless 
principles

12

Key Elements of PD

 District Plan

 Land Use Sub‐Districts

 Standards
 Streetscapes

 Blocks and Sites

 Building Elements

 Landscaping

 Parking

 Signs  

 Administration
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Administration

 Modifications
 Minor: Staff approval

 Major: City Plan Commission Recommendation/Council Approval

 Development Plan prior to Building Permit
 Building elevations and sections

 Building function/Proposed use

 Parking standards being met

 Modifications being requested

 Timely Approvals

14

Key to Attracting Quality Developers and Investment

 Straightforward ordinance

 Consistent, high‐quality 
standards

 Minimal need for additional 
reviews

 Relatively quick development 
approvals
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Design Guidelines – Draft District Plan

16

Building Type by Area

XXXXCommercial

XXXXMixed Use

XXLoft

XXXXLive/Work

XXXMixed Residential

XXXXXTownhome

XXXDuplex

XXXPatio Home

GFEDCBA
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Street Typologies

 Street classification system by function
 Major Thoroughfare ‐ Expressway

 Major Thoroughfare ‐ Arterial

 Commercial

 Mixed Use

 Residential

 Characteristic streetscape features by street type and 
adjacent use
 Travel lane width

 Median

 Parking configuration

 Amenity zone

 Sidewalk/Trail

 Yard

18

DESIGN GUIDELINES
District Plan

Building Types
Street Typologies
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Design Guidelines – District Plan

 First step in implementing the Framework Plan

 Establishes sub‐districts and potential locations of Framework 
Plan elements
 Building Types

 Urban Guidelines

 Street Typologies

 Will provide supporting background information related to 
the PD ordinance

20

Design Guidelines – Draft District Plan



21

Overall, this District Plan shows corridor development 
consistent with the Vision Plan.
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11%

17%

 Strongly Agree

 Agree

 Neutral

 Disagree

 Strongly Disagree

 I’m Not Sure

22

Design Guidelines – Building Types – Patio Home

 Height

 Min. 1 Story

 Max. 2 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor

 Residential

 Use – Upper Floors

 Residential
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This sort of Patio home is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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5. Strongly Disagree

6. I’m Not Sure

24

Design Guidelines – Building Types – Duplex

 Height
 Min. 1 Story

 Max. 2 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Residential

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential
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This sort of Duplex is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Townhome

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 3 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Residential

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential



27

This sort of Townhome is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Mixed Residential

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 4 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Residential

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential
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This sort of Mixed Residential is an appropriate building type 
in some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Loft

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 4 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Residential

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential
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This sort of Loft is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Live/Work

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 4 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Retail/Office

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential
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This sort of Live/Work Unit is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Mixed‐Use

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 5 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Retail or Office

 Use – Upper Floors
 Residential
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This sort of Mixed Use is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Commercial

 Height
 Min. 2 Stories

 Max. 8 Stories

 Use – Ground Floor
 Retail or Office

 Use – Upper Floors
 Office
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This sort of Commercial is an appropriate building type in 
some parts of this Corridor.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area A



39

These building types are appropriate in Area A.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area B
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These building types are appropriate in Area B.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area C
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These building types are appropriate in Area C.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area D
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These building types are appropriate in Area D.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area E
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These building types are appropriate in Area E.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area F
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These building types are appropriate in Area F.
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Design Guidelines – Building Types – Area G
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These building types are appropriate in Area G.
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Major Thoroughfare – N. Central Expressway Frontage Road
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Major Thoroughfare (Coit and West Spring Valley)
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Commercial Street – Type 1
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Commercial Street – Type 2

56

Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Mixed‐Use Street
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Residential Street – Type 1
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Design Guidelines – Street Typologies

Residential Street – Type 2
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The street typologies are appropriate for use within this 
Corridor.
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DESIGN GUIDANCE

How compatible are these  building designs with what you 
want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?
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PATIO HOME

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?

1. Least

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7. Most

Image 1

 L
ea

st

 M
ost

17%

3%

14%

8%

14%

25%

19%

64

What is your opinion?

1. Least

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7. Most

Image 3

 L
ea

st

 M
ost

29%

3%

11%

14%

9%

23%

11%



65

DUPLEX

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?

1. Least

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7. Most

 L
ea

st

 M
ost

46%

14%
16%

8%

3%3%

11%

Image 6

68

TOWNHOME

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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MIXED RESIDENTIAL

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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LIVE / WORK

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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MIXED USE

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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LOFT

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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COMMERCIAL

How compatible are these building designs with what 
you want to see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote from ‘1’ for least compatible, to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What isi
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SIGNS

How compatible are these signs with what you want to 
see in the West Spring Valley Corridor?

Vote ‘1’ for least compatible, up to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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AWNINGS/CANOPIES

How compatible are these awnings & canopies with 
what you want to see in the West Spring Valley 
Corridor?

Vote ‘1’ for least compatible, up to ‘7’ for most 
compatible.
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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What is your opinion?
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NEXT STEPS

102

Next Steps – Schedule of Significant Events 

March 28, 2011CC input and briefing on Community Meeting 2

March 17, 2011Community Meeting 2
(All Stakeholders)

March 13, 2011Expiration of existing moratorium

March 10, 2011Focus Group Meeting 2
(HOA Reps, Key Property Owners)

February 28, 2011Public Hearing on extension of moratorium

February 21, 2011CC input and briefing on Community Meeting 1

February 16, 2011Community Meeting 1
(All Stakeholders)

January 27, 2011Focus Group Meeting 1
(HOA Reps, Key Property Owners)
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Next Steps – Schedule of Significant Events 

June 11, 2011Expiration of extended moratorium

May 23, 2011Adoption of Ordinances

May, 2011CC Hearing on zoning change, design 
guidelines, MTP amendment

April 2011CPC Hearing on zoning change, design 
guidelines, MTP amendment

104

DISCUSSION
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